


THE MISSION STATEMENT OF CORTLAND BANKS

Cortland Banks’ mission is to earn the enthusiastic, long-term
loyalty of customers by being responsive to their needs for
products, convenience and personal service in a manner that
routinely exceeds expectations. In building long-lasting
relationships with our customers, we will generate solid financial
returns for our shareholders, rewarding careers for our employees,
and economic benefits for our communities. Success in this
mission is vital to our continued independence as a community
bank. Our success will require relentless focus on identifying
and meeting the wants and needs of our constituents, as we
demonstrate a genuine caring for customers, employees,

shareholders and community.
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

To Our Shareholders,

The rapid deterioration of the economy in the fourth
quarter was quite remarkable, and heightened the uncer-
tainty regarding both the depth and duration of the current
recession. The turbulence in the financial markets which
originated with the housing market, and specifically the
subprime mortgage arena, has escalated into a broad and
increasingly severe crisis affecting global financial mar-
kets and almost every aspect of the world economy. The
impact to the banking industry, and more specifically to
our own Company, is clearly reflected in the quarterly and
annual earnings results reported for 2008.

FDIC insured banks lost $32.1 billion in the fourth quarter
of 2008 alone. It is the first quarterly earnings deficit for
the banking industry since 1990. There were two major
factors that contributed to these results. The first was the
need for large additional loan loss provisions triggered by a
rapid and deep deterioration in the economy during the
fourth quarter. Economic activity in the fourth quarter
contracted by 6.3% as monthly job losses throughout
the quarter were in excess of 500,000, helping push the
national unemployment rate towards 8.1%, where it stands
today. As a result, U.S. household wealth fell by a record
$5.1 trillion from October to December. That made it five
consecutive quarters that household net worth had fallen,
bringing the cumulative net worth loss to $12.8 trillion
during that period. Against such results, it is easy to
understand the historic weakness in consumer, investor
and business confidence.

The other major factor contributing to the banking indus-
try’s fourth quarter losses is a relatively new accounting
concept known as “other than temporary impairment”
(OTTI), which is also linked with challenges in determin-
ing fair value measurements in the absence of an active and
liquid market. These accounting rules were designed to
improve the transparency of financial statements to
improve their usefulness for shareholders and investors.
However, in extreme economic conditions, where markets
seize up and cease to function normally, unintended con-
sequences can occur. Existing rules required significant
write-downs in the value of assets throughout 2008, but
especially in the fourth quarter as economic and financial
market conditions rapidly deteriorated.

The chairman of the FDIC recently stated that, “This is one
of the most difficult periods we’ve had to deal with since
the FDIC was created 75 years ago.” The chairman also
indicated support for a definition of market value that
would make it easier for banks to interpret and apply

fair-value accounting rules. These rules have been blamed
by many, including Congressional lawmakers and a former
Treasury Secretary, for worsening the current credit crisis.
The very nature of these rules is to increase volatility in
both earnings and shareholder equity, particularly in tur-
bulent times such as these.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB), as a
result of a study conducted by the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on mark-to-market accounting stan-
dards, is currently reassessing existing impairment
accounting models and evaluating guidance for determin-
ing the measurement of fair value. While any forthcoming
changes may prove beneficial in determining future earn-
ings, the indication is that these changes will not be
applicable retroactively, so the “book is closed” on 2008.

Our Company’s earnings results for 2008, and the change
in our dividend payout practice, can be attributed in large
part to these factors. Cortland Bancorp’s reported annual
earnings of $2.353 million, or $0.52 per share, were sig-
nificantly impacted by two specific asset valuation charges
in the fourth quarter of 2008. First, in light of the rapidly
deteriorating economy, escalating pace of unemployment
and falling real estate values, the decision was made to
bolster loan loss reserves through a $1.29 million charge to
earnings. This charge did not reflect concerns about any
specific credits, but rather our heightened concern about
the operating environment and its probable adverse impact
to our loan portfolio. The second item represented a
$1.251 million OTTI charge recorded to reduce the car-
rying value of certain investment securities that, although
still paying according to their contractual terms, are
adjudged to be unlikely to repay all amounts of interest
and principle based on a preponderance of current evi-
dence and supporting information. Prior to these unusual
two fourth quarter charges, earnings for the year were
$4,036,000, or $0.90 per share, in line with Management’s
expectations.

We were generally pleased with operating results relative
to our core banking operations, and the progress being
made towards meeting our strategic initiatives during
2008. It was gratifying to see our lending relationships
continue to grow, particularly loans in the commercial and
small business sector. These loan types increased by more
than $20.0 million since the previous year-end. Gross loans
for all categories increased by more than 10%. The
increase in commercial loans and gross loans remained




in line with the Company’s strategic plan initiative to grow
loans by building long-lasting customer relationships.

The Company also remained on target to meet its asset
quality goals. Problem loans accounted for on a non
accrual basis, which had been $2.285 million at Decem-
ber 31, 2007, decreased to $0.858 million at the end of
2008. The ratio of non accrual loans to total loans, which
was 1.02% at year end 2007, improved to 0.34% by the end
of 2008. The total of all loans past due more than 30 days,
which were in excess of $2.943 million, or 1.32% of loan
balances at December 31, 2007, declined to $1.393 million
or 0.57% at December 31, 2008.

Strategically, the Company remained on target with its
growth and expansion plans. A new branch location was
opened in Middlefield, Ohio in May. The Company also
completed construction of a new branch office facility in
Brookfield, which opened the following month in June. By
November, the Company had completed construction of a
new branch office in North Lima, Ohio which greatly
raised the Company’s visibility in the Boardman, Poland
and North Lima markets. Deposit growth between the
office’s mid-November opening and year end exceeded
Management’s expectations. Despite this growth in the
Bank’s branch network, full-time equivalent employment
averaged 161 employees in 2008 as compared to
164 employees in 2007, due in large part to the application
of new technologies and software to bolster productivity.
Technology and innovation remain major components of
our strategic plan.

As the Company was moving towards completion of con-
struction on its branch office in North Lima, Ohio, the
Emergency Economic Stabilization Act was being signed
into law providing for among other things, $700 billion in
funding to the U.S. Treasury to purchase troubled assets
from financial institutions. On October 14, 2008, the
Treasury, the Federal Reserve’s Board of Governors and
the FDIC issued a joint statement announcing additional
steps aimed at stabilizing the financial markets. First, the
Treasury announced a $250 billion voluntary Capital Pur-
chase Program that allowed qualifying financial institu-
tions to sell preferred shares to the Treasury. Second, the
FDIC announced the Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Pro-
gram (the “TLGP”), enabling the FDIC to temporarily
guarantee certain debt of FDIC institutions, as well as fully
insure all non-interest bearing deposit accounts. These

actions were intended to restore public confidence in the
banking system, ease liquidity concerns and stabilize a
rapidly deteriorating economy.

While the Company elected to participate in the Tempo-
rary Liquidity Program, we decided not to participate in
the government’s Capital Purchase Program. The federal
government’s offer of capital in the form of Preferred
Stock was considered to be expensive initially (approxi-
mately 8% on a pretax basis) and even more expensive
after the first five years (approximately 14% on a pretax
basis) and needed to be repaid after the tenth year. In
addition, the government reserved the right to unilaterally
change the terms and conditions of the deal after the fact.

While our Company remains well capitalized despite its
election to not participate in the Capital Purchase Program,
the board of directors has determined that, at this time, it is
in the best interest of our shareholders and customers to
maximize capital retention to help ensure that the Com-
pany remains well capitalized even if general economic
and financial conditions should continue to deteriorate. In
addition, regulatory bodies have indicated that “the level of
capital in the banking system needs to be strengthened to
raise its resilience to future episodes of economic and
financial stress.” With the capital markets effectively
closed, the most expedient way to bolster capital is to
curtail cash dividends, while working to improve the level
of core earnings.

In lieu of the quarterly cash dividend, the Company will
pay a quarterly 1% stock dividend beginning with the April
2009 dividend. Despite this action, the board remains
firmly committed to the principle that cash dividends
are an essential means of returning value to shareholders.
The board plans to reinstitute cash dividends, and return to
a sustainable payout level, once the economy and financial
markets have sufficiently stabilized.

As always, we value the loyalty of our shareholders and
sincerely hope that you remain committed to the Company
as we steer toward more stable and prosperous times.

Fad S Gl Mo

Karl Ray Mahan
Chairman of the Board




BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS

CORTLAND BANCORP

Cortland Bancorp (the “Company”) was incorporated
under the laws of the State of Ohio in 1984, as a one bank
holding company registered under the Bank Holding Com-
pany Act of 1956, as amended. On March 13, 2000, the
Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve system
approved the Company’s application to become a financial
holding company as authorized by the Gramm-Leach-
Bliley Act of 1999. The principal activity of the Company
is to own, manage and supervise the Cortland Savings and
Banking Company (“Cortland Banks” or the “Bank”™). The
Company owns all of the outstanding shares of the Bank.

The Company is subject to supervision and regulation by the
Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the
“Federal Reserve Board”). As a financial holding company,
the Company may engage in activities that are financial in
nature or incidental to a financial activity, as authorized by
the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 (The Financial Ser-
vices Reform Act). Under the Financial Services Reform
Act, the Company may continue to claim the benefits of
financial holding company status as long as each depository
institution that it controls remains well capitalized and well
managed. The Company is required to provide notice to the
Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System when it
becomes aware that any depository institution controlled by
the Company ceases to be well capitalized or well managed.
Furthermore, current regulation specifies that prior to initi-
ating or engaging in any new activities that are authorized
for financial holding companies, the Company’s insured
depository institutions must be rated “satisfactory” or better
under the Community Reinvestment Act (CRA). As of
December 31, 2008, the Company’s bank subsidiary was
rated “satisfactory” for CRA purposes, and remained well
capitalized and, in management’s opinion, well managed.
Cortland Bancorp owns no property. Operations are con-
ducted at 194 West Main Street, Cortland, Ohio.

The business of the Company and the Bank is not seasonal
to any significant extent and is not dependent on any single
customer or group of customers.

NEW RESOURCES LEASING COMPANY

New Resources Leasing Company was formed in
December 1988 as a separate entity to handle the function
of commercial and consumer leasing. The wholly owned
subsidiary has been inactive since incorporation.

THE CORTLAND SAVINGS
AND BANKING COMPANY

The Cortland Savings and Banking Company is a full ser-
vice state chartered bank engaged in commercial and retail
banking and trust services. The Bank’s services include
checking accounts, savings accounts, time deposit accounts,
commercial, mortgage and installment loans, night depos-
itory, automated teller services, safe deposit boxes and other
miscellaneous services normally offered by commercial
banks. Cortland Banks also offers a variety of Internet
Banking products as well as discount brokerage services.

Business is conducted at a total of fourteen offices, eight of
which are located in Trumbull County, Ohio. Two offices
are located in the communities of Windham and Mantua, in
Portage County, Ohio. One office is located in the com-
munity of Williamsfield, Ashtabula County, Ohio, two are
located in the communities of Boardman and North Lima
in Mahoning County, Ohio and one in Middlefield which is
in Geauga County, Ohio.

Cortland Bank’s main office (as described in its charter) is
located at 194 West Main Street, Cortland, Ohio. Admin-
istrative offices are located at the main office. The Hub-
bard, Niles Park Plaza, Victor Hills and Middlefield offices
are leased, while all of the other offices are owned by
Cortland Banks.

The Bank, as a state chartered banking organization and
member of the Federal Reserve System, is subject to periodic
examination and regulation by both the Federal Reserve
Bank of Cleveland and the State of Ohio Division of Finan-
cial Institutions. These examinations, which include such
areas as capital, liquidity, asset quality, management practices
and other aspects of the Bank’s operations, are primarily for
the protection of the Bank’s depositors. In addition to these
regular examinations, the Bank must furnish periodic reports
to regulatory authorities containing a full and accurate state-
ment of its affairs. The Bank’s deposits are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). The Bank
along with the Company elected to participate in the FDIC’s
Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program (TLG Program).
The TLG Program consists of two components: a temporary
guarantee of newly issued senior unsecured debt (the Debt
Guarantee Program) and a temporary unlimited guarantee of
funds in non-interest bearing transaction accounts (the Trans-
action Guarantee Program). The TLG Program, announced
by the FDIC on October 14, 2008, is intended to strengthen
confidence and facilitate liquidity in the banking system.

COMPETITION

Cortland Banks actively competes with state and national
banks located in Northeast Ohio and Western Pennsylvania.
It also competes for deposits, loans and other service busi-
ness with a large number of other financial institutions, such
as savings and loan associations, credit unions, insurance
companies, consumer finance companies and commercial
finance companies. Also, money market mutual funds, bro-
kerage houses and similar institutions provide in a relatively
unregulated environment many of the financial services
offered by banks. In the opinion of management, the prin-
cipal methods of competition are the rates of interest charged
on loans, the rates of interest paid on deposit funds, the fees
charged for services, and the convenience, availability,
timeliness and quality of the customer services offered.

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2008 the Company through its sub-
sidiary bank, employed 141 full-time and 34 part-time
employees. The Company provides its employees with a
full range of benefit plans, and considers its relations with
its employees to be satisfactory.




REPORT ON MANAGEMENT’S ASSESSMENT OF
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

TLAND

CORP

REPORT OF PACKER THOMAS INDEPENDENT
REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Cortland Bancorp is responsible for the preparation, integrity,
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
included in this annual report. The consolidated financial
statements and notes included in this annual report have been
prepared in conformity with United States generally accepted
accounting principles and necessarily include some amounts
that are based on management’s best estimates and judgments.

We, as management of Cortland Bancorp, are responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting that is designed to produce reliable finan-
cial statements in conformity with United States generally
accepted accounting principles. The system of internal control
over financial reporting as it relates to the financial statements
is evaluated for effectiveness by management and tested for
reliability through a program of internal audits. Actions are
taken to correct potential deficiencies as they are identified.
Any system of internal control, no matter how well designed,
has inherent limitations, including the possibility that a control
can be circumvented or overridden and misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, because of
changes in conditions, internal control effectiveness may vary
over time. Accordingly, even an effective system of internal
control will provide only reasonable assurance with respect to
financial statement preparation.

Management assessed the Company’s system of internal con-
trol over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, in
relation to criteria for effective internal control over financial
reporting as described in Internal Control-Integrated Frame-
work, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organization of
the Treadway Commission. Based on this assessment, man-
agement concludes that, as of December 31, 2008, its system
of internal control over financial reporting is effective and
meets the criteria of the Internal Control-Integrated Frame-
work. S.R. Snodgrass A.C., independent registered public
accounting firm, has issued an attestation report on the Com-
pany’s internal control over financial reporting.

&a{;w\u A? g gy

Lawrence A. Fantauzzi James M. Gasior

President and Secretary
Chief Executive Chief Financial
Officer Officer

Cortland, Ohio
March 16, 2009
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The Shareholders and Board of Directors
Cortland Bancorp

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance
sheet of Cortland Bancorp and Subsidiaries as of December 31,
2007 and the related consolidated statements of income,
shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the years in
the two-year period ended December 31, 2007. These con-
solidated financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the auditing
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstate-
ment. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial state-
ments. An audit also includes assessing the accounting prin-
ciples used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Cortland Bancorp and Subsidiaries as of Decem-
ber 31, 2007 and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended
December 31, 2007, in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

/ﬂm 7 Lomeas’

PACKER THOMAS

Youngstown, Ohio
February 29, 2008




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Cortland Bancorp

We have audited Cortland Bancorp and subsidiaries’ internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis-
sion. Cortland Bancorp’s management is responsible for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assess-
ment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting
included in the accompanying Report on Management’s Assessment
of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

‘We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those stan-
dards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial report-
ing, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the main-
tenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the
risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Cortland Bancorp maintained, in all material respects,
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission.

‘We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consoli-
dated balance sheet of Cortland Bancorp as of December 31, 2008 and
the related consolidated statements of income, shareholder’s equity,
and cash flows for the year then ended, and our report dated March 16,
2009, expressed an unqualified opinion.

S.R. Snodgrass A.C.

Wexford, Pennsylvania
March 16, 2009

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Cortland Bancorp

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of
Cortland Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”) and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2008, and the related consolidated statements of
income, shareholder’s equity, and cash flows for the year then ended.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit. The financial statements of
Cortland Bancorp and subsidiaries for the years ended December 31,
2007 and 2006 were audited by other auditors whose report, dated
February 29, 2008, expressed an unqualified opinion on those
statements.

‘We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those stan-
dards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Cortland Bancorp and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2008, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended,
in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements,
effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted Emerging Issues
Task Force No. 06-4, Accounting for Deferred Compensation and
Post-retirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split Dollar Life
Insurance Arrangements. Also, as discussed in Note 12 to the con-
solidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2008, the Com-
pany adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157,
Fair Value Measurements.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the Cortland
Bancorp and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Spon-
soring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, and our report
dated March 16, 2009 expressed an unqualified opinion on the effec-
tiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

S.R. Snodgrass A.C.

Wexford, Pennsylvania
March 16, 2009




(EX}ELAND

CORTLAND BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006

(Amounts in thousands except per share data)

2008 2007 2006
Interest income
Interest and feeson loans . ... ........... . $15,481 $15,784 $14,291
Interest and dividends on investment securities:
Taxable INterest. . . .. o oo 5,302 6,788 5,943
Nontaxable INterest . . .. . ..ottt 1,530 1,811 2,051
Dividends . ... ... 194 235 202
Interest on mortgage-backed securities . ............... ... ...... 4,852 4,008 3,795
Other interest INCOME . . . . . . v v ittt ittt e e e e 200 366 215
Total interest INCOME . . . . .. .\ v ittt e i 27,559 28,992 26,497
Interest expense
DEPOSItS .« v vttt 8,816 10,456 8,509
Borrowed funds. . . ... ... ... 3,117 3,375 3,073
Subordinated debt . . . ...... ... . ... 244 154
Total interest eXPense. . . .. ..ot et 12,177 13,985 11,582
Net interest iNCOME . . . . .o vttt e ittt 15,382 15,007 14,915
Provision for loan losses Note 4) . .................... 1,785 40 225
Net interest income after provision for loan losses ................ 13,597 14,967 14,690
Other income
Fees for other customer SErviCes . . . .. oo oo it 2,314 2,307 2,239
Investment securities gains (losses) -net........................ (1,112) 77 18
Gainonsale of loans -net . ............ ... .. . .. ... 30 88 106
Other real estate gains (Iosses) -net . ................vvinnn... 43 (D) 47)
Earnings on bank owned life insurance . . .. ........... ... ...... 537 521 433
Other non-interest INCOME . . . . . . vttt ettt it e e e e e eee e 47 97 86
Total other InCOME. . . . .. ..ot e 1,859 3,089 2,835
Other expenses
Salaries and employee benefits . . ...... ... ... . L L L 7,156 7,199 6,776
Net occupancy and equipment €XPense . . . . ... .....wweweeeenwn... 1,957 1,871 1,811
State and local taxes . .. ... it 552 580 552
Office supplies . . ... . 368 396 367
Bank exam and auditexpense . . ... .......... ... 460 443 486
Marketing eXpense . . . ... ...ttt 345 256 194
Other operating eXpenses . . ... ... .....ouueenieennemnnennnn.. 1,977 1,850 1,835
Total other eXpenses . . ..........uuuiteenmneennnn. 12,815 12,595 12,021
Income before federal income taxes . ........................... 2,641 5,461 5,504
Federal income taxes (Note 11) . ............... .. .. ... ... ... 288 1,111 928
Net iNCOME . . . . . oo $ 2,353 $ 4,350 $ 4,576
Net income per share, both basic and diluted (Note 1) . ............ $ 0.52 $ 095 $ 0.99
Dividends declared per share . . . .............................. $ 0.86 $ 0.85 $ 0.84

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements




CORTLAND BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
As of December 31, 2008 and 2007

(Amounts in thousands except per share data)

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks . . .......... ... ...
Interest-bearing deposits . . . ... ...

Total cash and cash equivalents. .. ............. i,

Investment securities available for sale (Note 2) .. ......... ... .. ..
Investment securities held to maturity (approximate
fair value of $71,210 in 2008 and $113,087 in 2007) Note 2) .. ............
Total 1oans (NOtE 3) . . ... it e e e e
Less allowance for loan losses (Note 4) . ....... ... ... . ...
Net loans . ... e

Premises and equipment (NOte 5) . . . ...ttt
Other @sSetS . . . ..ottt

Total assets . . .. ... ...

LIABILITIES

Noninterest-bearing depoSits . . . . ...ttt

Interest-bearing deposits (NOte 6) . . . .. ..o
Total deposits . . ...

Federal Home Loan Bank advances (Note 7) ... ...,
Other short term bOTTOWINGS . . . . . o oo e
Subordinated debt (Note 8) . ... ... ... i e
Other liabilities . . . . . . . .

Total Liabilities . . . .. ... .. .. . .

Commitments and contingent liabilities (Notes 9 and 17)

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common stock - $5.00 stated value - authorized 20,000,000 shares;

issued 4,728,267 shares in 2008 and 4,639,973 shares in 2007 (Note 1) .......
Additional paid-in capital (Note 1) ... ... ... . ..
Retained earnings . . . .. ...
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (Note 1). ........... ... ... .......
Treasury stock, at cost, 230,800 shares in 2008 and 250,545 shares in 2007 . . . . ..

Total shareholders’ equity (Note 16) .. .......... ... ... ..

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity .......................

2008 2007
$ 83%4 $ 9,375
18,449 66
26,843 9,441
121,348 126,507
70,406 112,115
246,017 223,109
(2,470) (1,621)
243,547 221,488
7,571 6,206
23,650 16,937
$493,365 $492,694
$ 58,635 $ 58,224
321,318 306,564
379,953 364,788
62,500 64,000
5,648 6,413
5,155 5,155
4,081 3,514
457,337 443,870
23,641 23,200
21,078 20,976
6,480 9,386
(11,078) (94)
(4,093) (4,644)
36,028 48,824
$493,365 $492,694

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements




CORTLAND BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006

(Amounts in thousands except per share data)
Accumulated Total
Additional Other Share-
Common  Paid-In  Retained Comprehensive Treasury holders
Stock Capital ~ Earnings Income (Loss) Stock Equity

Balance at December 31,2005. . . ............. $22,523  $20,211  $10,310 $ (@877 $(3,842) $ 48,325
Comprehensive Income:
Netincome . . ... ........ .. ... 4,576 4,576

Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Unrealized gains on available for sale securities,
net of reclassification adjustment . . ... ..... 422 422
Total comprehensive income . . . ............... 4,998

Common Stock Transactions:
Treasury shares reissued net of shares

repurchased - 60,137 shares . .............. (390) 1,529 1,139
Cash dividends declared ($0.84 per share) ... .. .. (3,865) (3,865)
2% stock dividend . . . ......... .. ... .. ... 449 1,014 (1,463)

Cash paid in lieu of fractional shares. . ......... 5) 5)
Balance at December 31,2006. . .............. 22,972 20,835 9,553 (455) (2,313) 50,592
Comprehensive Income:

Netincome . . . ... .. 4,350 4,350

Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Unrealized gains on available for sale securities,

net of reclassification adjustment . . ... ..... 361 361
Total comprehensive income . . .. .............. 4,711
Common Stock Transactions:
Treasury shares reissued - 53,670 shares . ....... (249) 1,195 946
Treasury shares purchased - 205,986 shares . .. ... (3,526) (3,526)
Cash dividends declared ($0.85 per share) . ... ... (3,895) (3,895)
1% stock dividend . . ..................... 228 390 (618)
Cash paid in lieu of fractional shares. . ......... 4) 4)
Balance at December 31,2007 . .. ............. 23,200 20,976 9,386 (94) (4,644) 48,824
Cumulative effect of adjustment from adoption of
Emerging Issues Task Force issue 06-04 (Note 1) . . (539) (539)
Balance after cumulative effects of adjustment . . . . 23,200 20,976 8,847 (94) (4,644) 48,285
Comprehensive loss:
NetIncome . ......... ... ... 2,353 2,353

Other comprehensive losses, net of tax:
Unrealized losses on available for sale securities,

net of reclassification adjustment . . .. ...... (10,984) (10,984)
Total comprehensive loss . .. ................. (8,631)
Common Stock Transactions:
Treasury shares reissued - 71,562 shares . ....... (300) 1,298 998
Treasury shares purchased - 51,817 shares . ... ... (747) (747)
Cash dividends declared ($0.86 per share) . ...... (3,874) (3,874)
Stock Dividends - Note 1 .. ................ 441 402 (843)
Cash paid in lieu of fractional shares. . ......... 3) 3)
Balance at December 31,2008. . ............... $23,641 $21,078  $ 6,480 $(11,078) $(4,093) $ 36,028

DISCLOSURE OF RECLASSIFICATION FOR AVAILABLE
FOR SALE SECURITY GAINS AND LOSSES:

2008 2007 2006
Unrealized holding gains (losses) on available for sale securities arising during
the period net of tax of $(6,037), $212 and $224 . . ... ... ... ... ... ... $(11,718)  $412 $434
Less: Reclassification adjustment for (losses) gains recognized in net income,
net of tax of $(378), $26 and $6. . . . . .. .. (734) 51 12
Net unrealized gains (losses) on available for sale securities, netof tax . ................ $(10,984) $361 $422

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements




CORTLAND BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006

(Amounts in thousands)

2008 2007 2006

Cash flows from operating activities
NEet iNCOME . . . o oottt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e $ 2,353 $ 4,350 $ 4,576
Adjustments to reconcile net income to
net cash flows from operating activities:

Depreciation, amortization and accretion .. ............... 758 775 991
Provision for loan loss . .. ........... ... ... .. ... ...... 1,785 40 225
Deferred tax expense (benefit) . ... ..................... (507) 189 (205)
Investment securities (gains) losses . .................... 1,112 77) (18)
Gainson salesof loans . ............ ... . ... ... .. ..... 30) (88) (106)
Loss on the sale or disposal of fixed assets ............... 68 4 3
Other real estate (gains) losses. . ........ ... ... ........ 43) 1 47
Loans originated for sale . ............ ... ... ... ...... (2,277) (6,199) (6,978)
Proceeds from sale of loans originated for sale ............ 2,071 6,396 6,975
Earnings on bank owned life insurance .................. (537) (521) (433)
Changes in:
Interest and fees receivable. . ... ................... 461 (59) (245)
Interest payable ........... ... ... ... . .. (313) 174 185
Other assets and liabilities ........................ 396 24 65
Net cash flows from operating activities . . .......... 5,297 5,009 5,082
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of securities available forsale .. ................... (30,518) (13,502) (13,339)
Purchases of securities held to maturity . .. ................... (11,908) (36,283) (12,017)
Proceeds from sales of securities available forsale ............. 1,006
Proceeds from call, maturity and principal
payments On SECUITHES . . . . oottt et 71,463 44,692 26,050
Net increase in loans made to customers . . ................... (24,615) (18,922) (17,223)
Proceeds from disposition of other real estate . ................ 523 34 143
Purchases of premises and equipment . ...................... 2,114) (2,006) (1,180)
Net cash flows from investing activities ............ 2,831 (25,987) (16,560)
Cash flows from financing activities
Net increase in deposit acCOUNLS . . ... ..ot e n e ... 15,165 8,970 5,443
Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank Advances............. 10,000 29,500
Pay down of Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings............. (11,500) (20,500)
Net increase (decrease) in short term borrowings. .. ............ (765) (602) 3,904
Proceeds from subordinated debt issuance . .. ................. 5,155
Dividends paid . .......... ... . 3,877) (3,899) (3,870)
Purchases of treasury stock ......... ... ... ... . ... (747) (3,526)
Treasury shares reissued . .......... ... . . ..., 998 946 1,139
Net cash flows from financing activities . . .......... 9,274 16,044 6,616
Net change in cash and cash equivalents . .................. 17,402 (4,934) (4,862)
Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year . ........... . .. ... 9,441 14,375 19,237
Endof year. .. ..... ... oo $ 26,843 $ 9,441 $ 14,375

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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CORTLAND BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES CO]Q)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting and reporting policies of Cortland Bancorp, and its bank subsidiary, Cortland Savings and
Banking Co., reflect banking industry practices and conform to U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. A
summary of the significant accounting policies followed by the Company in the preparation of the accompanying
consolidated financial statements is set forth below.

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Cortland Bancorp
(the Company) and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Cortland Savings and Banking Company (the Bank) and New
Resources Leasing Co. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

Industry Segment Information: The Company and its subsidiaries operate in the domestic banking industry
which accounts for substantially all of the Company’s assets, revenues and operating income. The Company,
through its subsidiary bank, grants residential, consumer, and commercial loans and offers a variety of saving
plans to customers located primarily in the Northeastern Ohio and Western Pennsylvania area.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash Flow: Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, amounts due from banks and federal funds sold.
Generally, federal funds are sold and purchased for one-day periods. The Company reports net cash flows for
customer loan transactions, deposit transactions and deposits made with other financial institutions.

The Company paid interest of $12,490,000, $13,810,000 and $11,397,000 in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
Cash paid for income taxes was $910,000 in 2008, $950,000 in 2007 and $1,120,000 in 2006. Transfers of loans
to other real estate were $1,007,000 in 2008, $282,000 in 2007 and $144,000 in 2006.

Investment Securities: Investments in debt and equity securities are classified as held to maturity, trading or
available for sale. Securities classified as held to maturity are those that management has the positive intent and
ability to hold to maturity. Securities classified as available for sale are those that could be sold for liquidity,
investment management, or similar reasons, even though management has no present intentions to do so.

Securities held to maturity are stated at cost, adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts,
with such amortization or accretion included in interest income. Securities available for sale are carried at fair
value with unrealized gains and losses recorded as a separate component of shareholders’ equity, net of tax
effects. Realized gains or losses on dispositions are based on net proceeds and the adjusted carrying amount of
securities sold, using the specific identification method. Interest on securities is accrued and credited to
operations based on the principal balance outstanding, adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion
of discounts.

Unrealized losses on corporate bonds have not been recognized into income. Management has the intent and
ability to hold these securities for the foreseeable future. The fair value is expected to recover as the bonds
approach their maturity date and/or market conditions become more favorable to the bonds’ intrinsic value.

Other-than-Temporary Investment Security Impairment. Securities are evaluated periodically to determine
whether a decline in their value is other-than-temporary. Management utilizes criteria such as the magnitude and
duration of the decline, in addition to the reasons underlying the decline, to determine whether the loss in value is
other-than-temporary. The term “other-than-temporary” is not intended to indicate that the decline is permanent,
but indicates that the prospect for a near-term recovery of value is not necessarily favorable, or that there is a lack
of evidence to support a realizable value equal to or greater than the carrying value of the investment. Once a

(Continued)



CORTLAND BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

decline in value is determined to be other-than-temporary, the value of the security is reduced and a corre-
sponding charge to earnings is recognized.

Trading Securities: Trading securities are principally held with the intention of selling in the near term and are
carried at market value. Realized and unrealized gains and losses on trading account securities are recognized in
the Statement of Income as they occur. The Company did not hold any trading securities at December 31, 2008,
2007 or 2006. There was no trading activity in 2008, 2007 or 2006.

Loans: Loans are stated at the principal amount outstanding net of the unamortized balance of deferred loan
origination fees and costs. Deferred loan origination fees and costs are amortized as an adjustment to the related
loan yield over the contractual life using the level yield method. Interest income on loans is accrued over the term
of the loans based on the amount of principal outstanding. The accrual of interest is discontinued on a loan when
management determines that the collection of interest is doubtful. Generally a loan is placed on nonaccrual status
once the borrower is 90 days past due on payments, or whenever sufficient information is received to question the
collectability of the loan or any time legal proceedings are initiated involving a loan. Interest income accrued up
to the date a loan is placed on nonaccrual is reversed through interest income. Cash payments received while a
loan is classified as nonaccrual are recorded as a reduction to principal or reported as interest income according to
management’s judgment as to the collectibility of principal. A loan is returned to accrual status when either all of
the principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future payments are, in manage-
ment’s judgment, collectable, or when it otherwise becomes well secured and in the process of collection. When a
loan is charged-off, any interest accrued but not collected on the loan is charged against earnings.

Loans Held for Sale: The Company originates certain residential mortgage loans for sale in the secondary
mortgage loan market. For the majority of loan sales, the Company concurrently sells the rights to service the
related loans. In addition, the Company may periodically identify other loans which may be sold. These loans are
classified as loans held for sale, and carried, in the aggregate, at the lower of cost or estimated fair value based on
secondary market prices. To mitigate interest rate risk, the Company may obtain fixed commitments to sell such
loans at the time loans are originated or identified as being held for sale. Such a commitment would be referred to
as a derivative loan commitment if the loan that will result from exercise of the commitment will be held for sale
upon funding under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133 (“SFAS 133”), Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 149 (“SFAS 149”), Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. Loans
held for sale was $236,000 at December 31, 2008, $109,000 at December 31, 2006 and none at December 31,
2007.

Allowance for Loan Losses and Allowance for Losses on Lending Related Commitments: Because some loans
may not be repaid in full, an allowance for loan losses is recorded. Increases to the allowance consist of
provisions for loan losses charged to expense and recoveries of previously charged-off loans. Reductions to the
allowance result from the charge-off of loans deemed uncollectable by management. After a loan is charged-off,
collection efforts continue and future recoveries may occur.

A loan is considered impaired when it appears probable that all principal and interest amounts will not be
collected according to the loan contract. Allowances for loan losses on impaired loans are determined using the
estimated future cash flows of the loan, discounted to their present value using the loan’s effective interest rate.
Allowances for loan losses for impaired loans that are collateral dependent are generally determined based on the
estimated fair value of the underlying collateral. Smaller balance homogeneous loans are evaluated for
impairment in the aggregate. Such loans include one-to-four family residential, home equity and consumer
loans. Commercial loans and commercial mortgage loans are evaluated individually for impairment. Impaired
loans are generally classified as nonaccrual loans.

(Continued)
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CORTLAND BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES CO]Q)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Estimating the risk of loss and the amount of loss on any loan is necessarily subjective. Accordingly, the
allowance is maintained by management at a level considered adequate to cover possible losses that are currently
anticipated. Management evaluates the portfolio in light of economic conditions, changes in the nature and
volume of the portfolio, industry standards and other relevant factors. Specific factors considered by manage-
ment in determining the amounts charged to operations include previous loss experience; the status of past due
interest and principal payments; the quality of financial information supplied by customers; the cash flow
coverage and trends evidenced by financial information supplied by customers; the nature and estimated value of
any collateral supporting specific loan credits; risk classifications determined by the Company’s loan review
systems or as the result of regulatory examination process; and general economic conditions in the lending area of
the Company’s bank subsidiary. Key risk factors and assumptions are dynamically updated to reflect actual
experience and changing circumstances. While management may periodically allocate portions of the allowance
for specific problem loans, the entire allowance is available for any charge-offs that occur.

The Company maintains an allowance for losses on unfunded commercial lending commitments to provide for the risk
of loss inherent in these arrangements. The allowance is computed using a methodology similar to that used to
determine the allowance for loan losses. This allowance is reported as a liability on the balance sheet within accrued
expenses and other liabilities, while the corresponding provision for these losses is recorded as a component of other
expense.

Certain asset-specific loans are evaluated individually for impairment, based on management’s best estimate of
discounted cash repayments and the anticipated proceeds from liquidating collateral. The actual timing and amount of
repayments and the ultimate realizable value of the collateral may differ from management’s estimates.

The expected loss for certain other commercial credits utilizes internal risk ratings. These loss estimates are sensitive to
changes in the customer’s risk profile, the realizable value of collateral, other risk factors and the related loss
experience of other credits of similar risk. Consumer credits generally employ statistical loss factors, adjusted for other
risk indicators, applied to pools of similar loans stratified by asset type. These loss estimates are sensitive to changes in
delinquency status and shifts in the aggregate risk profile.

Premises and Equipment: Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is
computed generally on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives (5 to 40 years) of the various assets.
Maintenance and repairs are expensed and major improvements are capitalized.

Other Real Estate: Real estate acquired through foreclosure or deed-in-lieu of foreclosure is included in other assets.
Such real estate is carried at the lower of cost or fair value less estimated costs to sell. Any reduction from the carrying
value of the related loan to fair value at the time of acquisition is accounted for as a loan loss. Any subsequent reduction
in fair market value is reflected as a valuation allowance through a charge to income. Costs of significant property
improvements are capitalized, whereas costs relating to holding and maintaining the property are charged to expense.

Intangible Asset: A core deposit intangible asset resulting from a branch acquisition is being amortized over a 15 year
period. The intangible asset, net of accumulated amortization, was $61,000 and $98,000 at December 31, 2008 and
2007, respectively, and is included in other assets. The annual expense was $37,000 at December 31, 2008, 2007 and
2006. The estimated aggregate amortization expense for the next year is $37,000, and $24,000 in the following year.

Cash Surrender Value of Life Insurance: Bank-owned life insurance (“BOLI”) represents life insurance on the lives of
certain Company employees, officers and directors who have provided positive consent allowing the Company to be
the co-beneficiary of such policies. Since the Company is the owner of the insurance policies, increases in the cash
value of the policies, as well as its share of insurance proceeds received, are recorded in other noninterest income, and
are not subject to income taxes. The cash value of the policies is included in other assets. The Company reviews the
financial strength of the insurance carriers prior to the purchase of BOLI and quarterly thereafter. The amount of BOLI

(Continued)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

with any individual carrier is limited to 15% of Tier I Capital. The Company has purchased BOLI to provide a long-
term asset to offset long-term benefit liabilities, while generating competitive investment yields.

Endorsement Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangement: On January 1, 2008, the Company changed its accounting
policy and recognized a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings totaling $539,000 related to accounting for
certain endorsement split-dollar life insurance arrangements in connection with the adoption of Emerging Issues Task
Force Issue No. 06-4, Accounting for Deferred Compensation and Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split
Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements.

Transfers of Financial Assets: Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales, when control over the assets has
been surrendered. Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when (1) the assets have been isolated
from the Company, (2) the transferee obtains the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that
right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and (3) the Company does not maintain effective control over the
transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity.

Adpvertising: The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred.

Income Taxes: A deferred tax liability or asset is determined at each balance sheet date. It is measured by
applying currently enacted tax laws to future amounts that result from differences in the financial statement and
tax bases of assets and liabilities.

Other Comprehensive Income: Accumulated other comprehensive income for the Company is comprised solely
of unrealized holding gains (losses) on available for sale securities, net of tax.

Per Share Amounts: The Board of Directors declared 1% common stock dividends payable as of January 1, 2009
and 2008 and a 2% common stock dividends payable January 1, 2007. The board also declared a 1% stock
dividend on March 9, 2009. The common stock dividend declared on March 9, 2009 will result in the issuance of
44,508 shares and the common stock dividend issued on January 1, 2009 resulted in the issuance of 43,786 shares
of common stock, which have been included in the 4,728,267 shares reported as issued at December 31, 2008.

Basic and diluted earnings per share are based on weighted average shares outstanding. Average shares
outstanding and per share amounts have been restated to give retroactive effect to the 1% common stock
dividend of January 1, 2009 and March 9, 2009. Average shares outstanding and per share amounts similarly
reflect the impact of the Company’s stock repurchase program.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic earnings per common share and diluted earnings per

common share:
Years Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
Net income ($000 omitted) . . . ......................... $ 2353 $ 4350 $ 4,576
Weighted average common
shares outstanding . . . .......... ... 4,492,237 4,583,921 4,612,964
Basic earnings pershare . . .............. . ... . ... ... $ 0.52 $ 0.95 $ 0.99
Diluted earnings per share. .. .......... ... .. ... ...... $ 0.52 $ 0.95 $ 0.99

Off Balance Sheet Financial Instruments: Financial instruments include off-balance sheet credit instruments,
such as commitments to make loans and commercial letters of credit, issued to meet customer financing needs.
The face amount for these items represents the exposure to loss, before considering customer collateral or ability
to repay. Such financial instruments are recorded when they are funded.

(Continued)
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Reclassifications: Certain items in the financial statements for 2006 and 2007 have been reclassified to conform
to the 2008 presentation.

New Accounting Standards

In October 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. 157-3, Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset When the Market for That Asset is
Not Active. This FSP clarifies the application of FAS Statement No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, in a market that is not active and
provides an example to illustrate key considerations in determining the fair value of a financial asset when the market for that
financial asset is not active. This FSP shall be effective upon issuance, including prior periods for which financial statements have
not been issued. Revisions resulting from a change in the valuation technique or its application shall be accounted for as a change in
accounting estimate (FAS Statement No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections. The disclosure provisions of Statement
154 for a change in accounting estimate are not required for revisions resulting from a change in valuation technique or its

application.)
NOTE 2 - INVESTMENT SECURITIES
The following is a summary of investment securities:

(Amounts in thousands)

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
December 31, 2008
Investment securities available for sale
U.S. Government agencies and corporations . ............. $ 11,314 $ 561 $ $ 11,875
Obligations of states and political subdivisions. . . ... ....... 7,293 289 84 7,498
Mortgage-backed and related securities. . . .. ............. 80,073 2,067 162 81,978
Corporate Securities . . . .. .. .. ... .. _ 35,702 6 19,460 _ 16,248
Total debt securities. . . . . ..........c.... ... .. 134,382 2,923 19,706 117,599
Other SECUrities . . . . . . v v vt e e e 3749 - 3749
Total available forsale. . .. .................. $138,131 $2,923 $19,706 $121,348
Investment securities held to maturity
U.S. Treasury SECUriti€s. . . . . . oot v vt et $ 134 $ 18 $ $ 152
U.S. Government agencies and corporations . ............. 32,894 407 50 33,251
Obligations of states and political subdivisions. . . ... ....... 22,626 726 49 23,303
Mortgage-backed and related securities. . . ... ............ 14,752 265 513 14,504
Total held to maturity. . . . ................... $ 70,406 $1,416 $ 612 $ 71,210
December 31, 2007
Investment securities available for sale
U.S. Government agencies and corporations . ............. $ 12,365 $ 314 $ 2 $ 12,677
Obligations of states and political subdivisions. . . ... ....... 8,428 344 8,772
Mortgage-backed and related securities. . . .. ............. 66,508 607 268 66,847
Corporate securities . . ... ....... ... ... 35,769 36 1,175 34,630
Total debt securities. . . ... .................. 123,070 1,301 1,445 122,926
Other SeCUrities . . . . . . . o vt e e 3,581 3,581
Total available forsale . . . ... ................ $126,651 $1,301 $1,445 $126,507
Investment securities held to maturity
U.S. Treasury SeCUrities. . . . . .. v v v v e $ 139 $ 7 $ $ 146
U.S. Government agencies and corporations . ............. 71,179 361 24 71,516
Obligations of states and political subdivisions. . . ... ....... 23,990 886 7 24,869
Mortgage-backed and related securities. . . ... ............ 16,807 63 314 16,556
Total held to maturity. . . .. .................. $112,115 $1,317 $ 345 $113,087

(Continued)
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NOTE 2 - INVESTMENT SECURITIES (Continued)

At December 31, 2008 other securities consisted of $3,523,000 in Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) stock and $226,000 in Federal
Reserve Bank (FED) stock. At December 31, 2007 the FHLB stock was $3,355,000 and $226,000 in FED stock. Each investment is
carried at cost, and the Company is required to hold such investments as a condition of membership in order to transact business with
the FHLB and the FED.

The amortized cost and estimated market value of debt securities at December 31, 2008, by contractual maturity,
are shown below. Actual maturities will differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to
call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

(Amounts in thousands)

December 31, 2008

Amortized Estimated
Cost Fair Value
Investment securities available for sale
Due inone year or 1ess. ... .........ovvuinnan... $ 1,000 $ 1,012
Due after one year through five years . .. ........... 4,140 4,291
Due after five years through ten years.............. 2,387 2,522
Due aftertenyears . . ...t 46,782 27,796
Subtotal . . ....... ... 54,309 35,621
Mortgage-backed securities. .. ................... 80,073 81,978
Total . ... . $134,382 $117,599
Investment securities held to maturity
Ducinoneyearorless................oovuin... $ 6,297 $ 6,306
Due after one year through five years . .. ........... 2,458 2,563
Due after five years through ten years.............. 13,087 13,315
Due aftertenyears . . ............. ... 33,812 34,522
Subtotal . . ........ .. 55,654 56,706
Mortgage-backed securities. ... .................. 14,752 14,504
Total ... ... $ 70,406 $ 71,210

The following table sets forth the proceeds, gains and losses realized on securities sold or called for each of the
years ended December 31:

(Amounts in thousands)

2008 2007 2006
Proceeds . ... ... .. $42,325 $9,991 $1,526
Gross realized gains . ............ ... . ... ... .. 139 77 18

Gross realized 1osses. . . ...

Investment securities with a carrying value of approximately $104,162,000 at December 31, 2008 and
$95,137,000 at December 31, 2007 were pledged to secure deposits and for other purposes.

(Continued)
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NOTE 2 - INVESTMENT SECURITIES (Continued)

The following is a summary of the fair value of securities with unrealized losses and an aging of those unrealized
losses at December 31, 2008:

(Amounts in thousands)

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
U.S. Government agencies
and corporations . . ....... $ 3,947 $ 50 $ $ $ 3,947 $ 50
Obligations of states and
political subdivisions . . . .. 2,906 105 370 28 3,276 133
Mortgage-backed and related
securities . ............. 7,046 526 12,098 149 19,144 675
Corporate securities . ....... 2,737 1,944 12,199 17,516 14,936 19,460

$16,636 $2,625 $24,667 $17,693 $41,303 $20,318

The above table represents 135 investment securities where the current value is less than the related amortized
cost.

The following is a summary of the fair value of securities with unrealized losses and an aging of those unrealized
losses at December 31, 2007:

(Amounts in thousands)

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
U.S. Government agencies
and corporations . . .. ..... $ 3,466 $ 23 $ 2,741 $ 3 $ 6,207 $ 26
Obligations of states and
political subdivisions . . ... 391 7 391 7
Mortgage-backed and related
securities . ............. 105 1 29,695 581 29,800 582
Corporate securities . ....... 24,930 761 5,949 414 30,879 1,175
$28,501 $785 $38,776 $1,005 $67,277 $1,790

The above table represents 123 investment securities where the current value is less than the related amortized
cost.

The unrealized losses on the Company’s investment in U.S. Government agencies and corporations, obligations,
of states and political subdivisions, and mortgage-backed and related securities were caused by changes in
market rates and related spreads, as well as reflecting current distressed conditions in the credit markets and the
market’s on-going reassessment of appropriate liquidity and risk premiums. It is expected that the securities
would not be settled at a price less than the amortized cost of the Company’s investment because the decline in
market value is attributable to changes in interest rates and relative spreads and not credit quality, and because the
Company has the ability and intent to hold those investments until a recovery of fair value, which may be at
maturity. The Company does not consider those investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at Decem-
ber 31, 2008.

(Continued)
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NOTE 2 - INVESTMENT SECURITIES (Continued)

At December 31, 2008, the Company recognized $1,251,000 of other-than-temporary losses attributable to its
General Motors Corporation Corporate Securities with a cost basis of $2,354,000. The impairment charges were
recognized in light of (a) the decrease in profitability and profit forecasts by industry analysts resulting from
intense competitive pressures in the automotive industry, and (b) a sector downgrade by industry analysts,
dysfunctional credit markets and the resultant adverse sales trends.

The remaining unrealized loss on investments in corporate securities relates to Collateralized Debt Obligations,
(CDO’S), representing pools of trust preferred debt primarily issued by bank holding companies and insurance
companies. The net unrealized loss on these securities at December 31, 2008 was $19,454,000 as compared to an
$817,000 net loss at December 31, 2007. All available cash flows for the cash flow portion of the Other Than
Temporary Impairment (“OTTI”) test under EITF 99-20 indicate that there has been no adverse effect on
projected cash flows as of December 31, 2008. As the Company has the ability and intent to hold the investments
until a recovery of fair value, which may be at maturity, it does not consider the investments to be other-than-
temporarily impaired at December 31, 2008.

During September 2008, the U.S. government placed mortgage finance companies Federal National Mortgage
Association (FNMA) and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC), under conservatorship, giving
management control to their regulator, the Federal Housing Finance Agency, or FHFA, and providing both
companies with access to credit from the U.S. Treasury. Debt obligations now provide an explicit guarantee of the
full faith and credit of the United States government to existing and future debt holders of Fannie Mae and
Freddie Mac limited to the period under which they are under conservatorship.

In response to the takeover, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation tentatively approved a rule, proposed by
all four federal bank regulators, that eases capital requirements for federally insured depository institutions that
hold FNMA and FHLMC corporate debt, subordinated debt, mortgage guarantees and derivatives. The so-called
risk weighting for banks on FNMA and FHLMC’s credit claims was cut to 10 percent from 20 percent. The
change has the effect of increasing the risk-based capital ratios of financial institutions holding such obligations,
providing additional capacity for lending and asset growth.

Adversely affected by these actions were the value of the common stock and preferred stock of both FNMA and
FHLMC. Neither the Company nor its bank subsidiary owned any common or preferred shares of either FNMA
or FHLMC.

NOTE 3 - LOANS RECEIVABLE

The following is a summary of loans:
(Amounts in thousands)

December 31,

2008 2007

1-4 family residential mortgage loans. . .. ......... ... ... .. .. ....... $ 68,985 $ 68,135
1-4 family residential mortgage loans held forsale. .. ................. 236
Commercial mortgage loans . . . ... . i 128,705 120,950
Consumer 10ans . . .. ... ..t e 8,162 8,484
Commercial loans. . . ... ... .. 27,750 14,981
Home equity loans . . ... .. 12,179 10,559

Total 10ANS . . o o v e e e e e e e e e $246,017 $223.109
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NOTE 4 - ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

The following is an analysis of changes in the allowance for loan losses for the year ended:

(Amounts in thousands)

December 31,

2008 2007 2006
Balance at beginning of year. . ............ ... . ... ... ...... $ 1,621 $2,211 $2,168
Loan charge-offs. . ... ... .. . (1,100) (728) (288)
Recoveries . ... 164 98 106
Net loan charge-offs .. ...... ... ... . . .. . . . (936) (630) (182)
Provision charged to operations . ........................... 1,785 40 225
Balance atend of year ............... .. $ 2,470 $1,621 $2,211

Loans on which the accrual of interest has been discontinued because circumstances indicate that collection is
questionable amounted to $858,000, $2,285,000 and $3,923,000 at December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. Interest income on these loans, if accrued, would have increased pretax income by approximately
$79,000, $188,000 and $315,000 for 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. There were no loans outstanding at past
due 90 days or more and still accruing interest for 2008, 2007 and 2006.

Impaired loans are generally included in nonaccrual loans. Management does not individually evaluate certain
smaller balance loans for impairment as such loans are evaluated on an aggregate basis. These loans generally
include 1-4 family, consumer and home equity loans. Impaired loans are generally evaluated using the fair value
of collateral as the measurement method. At December 31, 2008, December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006,
the recorded investment in impaired loans was $924,000, $2,274,000 and $1,939,000 with an average balance
during the year of $1,489,000, $1,832,000 and $1,671,000, while the allocated portion of the allowance for loan
losses for such loans was $262,000, $716,000 and $815,000, respectively. There were $483,000 in 2008 and
$516,000 in 2007 of impaired loans that did not have any allowance for loss recorded. In 2006 all impaired loans
had a reserve assigned to them. Interest income recognized on impaired loans using the cash basis was $37,000
for 2008, $68,000 for 2007 and $44,000 for 2006.

There were $550,000 in renegotiated loans at December 31, 2008, $546,000 at December 31, 2007 and none at
December 31, 2006. The total interest recognized on these loans was $21,000 at December 31, 2008 and $12,000
at December 31, 2007.

There were no renegotiated loans for which interest has been reduced at December 31, 2008, December 31, 2007
and December 31, 2006.

As of December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, there were $27,499,000, $14,691,000 and $13,765,000 in loans that
were neither classified as nonaccrual nor considered impaired, but which can be considered potential problem
loans.

Any loans classified for regulatory purposes as loss, doubtful, substandard or special mention that have not been
disclosed above do not (i) represent or result from trends or uncertainties which management reasonably expects
will materially impact future operating results, liquidity or capital resources, or (ii) represent material credits
about which management is aware of any information which causes management to have serious doubts as to the
ability of such borrowers to comply with the loan repayment terms.
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NOTE 5 - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT
The following is a summary of premises and equipment:

(Amounts in thousands)

Land .. ... ...
Premises. . ....... ... ... ..
Equipment. . .. ... ...
Leasehold improvements . .. .....................
Construction in Progress. . . . .o v v i i

Less accumulated depreciation. . . .. ................
Netbook value . ... ....................

December 31,

2008

$ 1,387
7,974
7,142

254

16,757
9,186

$ 7,571

2007

$ 1,384
6,522
7,789

275
280

16,250
10,044

$ 6,206

Depreciation expense was $681,000 in 2008, $576,000 in 2007 and $485,000 in 2006.

NOTE 6 - DEPOSITS

The following is a summary of interest-bearing deposits:

(Amounts in thousands)

Demand . ........ ... .. .. ... . ... .. ... ..
Money Market . . . ... ... .
Savings. . . ...

Time:

In denominations under $100,000 . . . ... ... .........
In denominations of $100,000 ormore. . . . . ... .......

December 31,

At December 31, 2008, stated maturities of time deposits were as follows:

(Amounts in thousands)

2008 2007
S, $25033 $ 23460
C... 40,106 19,698
C... 79908 74,024
... 110,645 120,864
... 65626 68,518
C... $321,318  $306,564

$108,325

24,074

10,327

13,397

10,650

9,498

$176,271

The following is a summary of time deposits of $100,000 or more by remaining maturities:

(Amounts in thousands)

December 31,
2008 2007
Certificates Other Time Certificates  Other Time
of Deposit Deposits Total of Deposit Deposits Total
Three months or less . . $ 8,464 $ 964 $ 9428 $17,572 $ 435 $18,007
Three to six months. . . 10,507 492 10,999 12,811 288 13,099
Six to twelve months . . 22,092 — 22,092 24,193 340 24,533
One through five
years. . .. ... .. .. 15,094 6,132 21,226 4,668 5,316 9,984
Over five years. . . ... 1,051 830 1,881 1,381 1,514 2,895
Total . .. ... $57,208 $8,418 $65,626  $60,625 $7,893 $68,518
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NOTE 7 - FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES AND OTHER BORROWINGS
The following is a summary of total Federal Home Loan Bank advances and other borrowings:

(Amounts in thousands)

Weighted
Average
Interest December 31,
Rate 2008 2007
Federal Home Loan Bank advances
Variable rate LIBOR based Federal Home Loan Bank advances, with
monthly interest payments:
Due 2000. . . .. $ $ 2,500
Due 2011, . .o 3,000
Fixed rate payable and convertible fixed rate Federal Home Loan Bank
advances, with monthly interest payments:
Due in 2008. . . . . ... 6,000
Due in 2009. . . ... 5.3033 % 6,000 6,000
Duein 2010. . . ... ... 5.6635 % 15,500 15,500
Duein 2011, ... ..o 4.4641 % 8,500 5,000
Duein 2012. . . ... 4.4500 % 1,500 1,500
Duein 2013. . . .. ... . 2.9140 % 2,500
Due in 2014. . . . ... 4.1585 % 6,500 6,500
Due in 2015. . .. o 2.9300 % 4,000
Duein 2016. . . ... ... 4.0700 % 2,000 2,000
Due in 2017. . . . ..o 4.1216 % 16,000 16,000
Total Federal Home Loan Bank advances .. .............. 4.5495 % 62,500 64,000
Other borrowings
Securities sold under repurchase agreements ................... 0.3112% 4,743 4,644
U.S. Treasury interest-bearing demand note . . .. ................ 0.0000 % 905 594
Federal Funds Purchased . . .. ....... ... .. ... . . .. . . . . . ...... 1,175
Total other borrowings . . .............o ... 0.2613 % 5,648 6,413
Total Federal Home Loan Bank advances and
other bOrrowings . . ... ..o v i 4.1941%  $68,148 $70,413

Securities sold under repurchase agreements represent arrangements that the Bank has entered into with certain
deposit customers within its local market areas. These borrowings are collateralized with securities. There are
$10.0 million in securities, allocated for this purpose, owned by the Bank and held in safekeeping accounts at
independent correspondent banks.

Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) advances are collateralized by the FHLB stock owned by the Bank, which had
a carrying value of $3,523,000 at December 31, 2008, and a blanket lien against the Bank’s qualified mortgage
loan portfolio, $8,039,000 in collateralized mortgage obligations, $1,992,000 in Federal Agency Securities and
$23,871,000 in mortgage-backed securities. Maximum borrowing capacity from the FHLB totaled $71,416,000
at December 31, 2008.

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, $23,500,000 and $27,000,000 of the FHLB fixed rate advances are
convertible to quarterly LIBOR floating rate advances on or after certain specified dates at the option of the
FHLB. Should the FHLB elect to convert, the Company acquires the right to prepay any or all of the borrowing at
the time of conversion and on any interest payment due date, thereafter, without penalty.
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NOTE 7 - FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, $32,500,000 and $26,000,000 of the FHLB fixed rate advances are putable
on or after certain specified dates at the option of the FHLB. Should the FHLB elect to exercise the put, the
Company is required to pay the advance off on that date without penalty.

NOTE 8 - SUBORDINATED DEBT

In July 2007 a trust formed by the Company issued $5,000,000 of floating rate trust preferred securities as part of
a pooled offering of such securities due December 2037. The Bancorp owns all $155,000 of the common
securities. The securities bear interest at the 3-month LIBOR rate plus 1.45%. The Company issued subordinated
debentures to the trust in exchange for the proceeds of the trust preferred offering. The $5.155 million in
debentures represent the sole assets of this trust. The Company may redeem the subordinated debentures, in
whole or in part, at a premium declining ratably to par in September 2012.

In accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 46, as revised in December 2003, the trust is not consolidated with
the Company’s financial statements. Accordingly, the Company does not report the securities issued by the trust
as liabilities, but instead reports as liabilities the subordinated debentures issued by the Company and held by the
trust. The subordinated debentures qualify as Tier 1 capital for regulatory purposes in determining and evaluating
the Company’s capital adequacy.

NOTE 9 - COMMITMENTS

The Bank occupies office facilities under operating leases extending to 2018. Most of these leases contain an
option to renew at the then fair rental value for periods of five and ten years. These options enable the Bank to
retain use of facilities in desirable operating areas. In most cases, management expects that in the normal course
of business, leases will be renewed or replaced by other leases. In 2008 two of the leased facilities were replaced
by Bank owned facilities and one new leased facility was opened. Rental and lease expense was $242,000 for
2008, $265,000 for 2007 and $299,000 for 2006. The following is a summary of remaining future minimum lease
payments under current noncancelable operating leases for office facilities:

(Amounts in thousands)

Years ending:

December 31,2009 ................. $134
December 31,2010 ................. 134
December 31, 2011 . ................ 100
December 31,2012 . ................ 56
December 21,2013 ................. 56
Lateryears. ...........c.ouuuuee.n.. 258

Total. . ... $738

At December 31, 2008, the Bank was required to maintain aggregate cash reserves amounting to $4,569,000 in
order to satisfy federal regulatory requirements. These amounts earn interest.

The Bank grants commercial and industrial loans, commercial and residential mortgages, and consumer loans to
customers in Northeast Ohio and Western Pennsylvania. Although the Bank has a diversified portfolio, exposure
to credit loss can be adversely impacted by downturns in local economic and employment conditions.
Approximately 2.02% of total loans are unsecured at December 31, 2008, compared to 1.04% at December 31,
2007.
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NOTE 9 - COMMITMENTS (Continued)

The Company currently does not enter into derivative financial instruments including futures, forwards, interest
rate risk swaps, option contracts, or other financial instruments with similar characteristics. The Company also
does not participate in any partnerships or other special purpose entities that might give rise to off-balance sheet
liabilities.

The Company, through its subsidiary bank, is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the
normal course of business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include
commitments to extend credit, standby letters of credit and financial guarantees. Such instruments involve, to
varying degrees, elements of credit risk in excess of the amount recognized on the balance sheet. The contract or
notional amounts or those instruments reflect the extent of involvement the Company has in particular classes of
financial instruments.

In the event of nonperformance by the other party, the Company’s exposure to credit loss on these financial
instruments is represented by the contract or notional amount of the instrument. The Company uses the same
credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for instruments recorded on the
balance sheet. The amount and nature of collateral obtained, if any, is based on management’s credit evaluation.

The following is a summary of such contractual commitments:

(Amounts in thousands)

December 31,

2008 2007
Financial instruments whose contract
amounts represent credit risk:
Commitments to extend credit
Fixedrate .. ... .o v $ 1,301 $ 2,125
Variable rate .. ......... .. ... ... .... 35,699 36,576
Standby letters of credit .................. 850 1,179

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any
condition established in the contract. Generally these financial arrangements have fixed expiration dates or other
termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments
issued by the Bank to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party. Since many of the commitments
are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent
future cash requirements. The Bank evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The
amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Bank upon extension of credit, is based on
management’s credit evaluation of the counterparty. Collateral held varies but may include accounts receivable,
inventory, property, plant and equipment and income-producing commercial properties.

The Company’s subsidiary bank also offers limited overdraft protection as a non-contractual courtesy which is
available to businesses as well as individually/jointly owned accounts in good standing for personal or household
use. The Company reserves the right to discontinue this service without prior notice. The available amount of
overdraft protection on depositors’ accounts at December 31, 2008, totaled $11,536,000. The total average daily
balance of overdrafts used in 2008 was $161,000, or less than 2% of the total aggregate overdraft protection
available to depositors.
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NOTE 10 - BENEFIT PLANS

The Bank has a contributory defined contribution retirement plan (a 401(k) plan) which covers substantially all
employees. Total expense under the plan was $237,000 for 2008, $244,000 for 2007 and $229,000 for 2006. The
Bank matches participants’ voluntary contributions up to 5% of gross pay. Participants may make voluntary
contributions to the plan up to a maximum of $15,500 with an additional $5,000 catchup deferral for plan
participants over the age of 50. The Bank makes monthly contributions to this plan equal to amounts accrued for
plan expense.

The Bank and Bancorp provide supplemental retirement benefit plans for the benefit of certain officers and non
officer directors. The plan for officers is designed to provide post-retirement benefits to supplement other sources
of retirement income such as social security and 401(k) benefits. The benefits will be paid for a period of 15 years
after retirement. Director Retirement Agreements provide for a benefit of $10,000 annually on or after the
director reaches normal retirement age, which is based on a combination of age and years of service. Director
retirement benefits are paid over a period of 10 years following retirement. The Bank and Bancorp accrue the cost
of these post-retirement benefits during the working careers of the officers and directors. At December 31, 2008,
the cumulative expense accrued for these benefits totaled $1,900,000, with $1,562,000 accrued for the officers’
plan and $338,000 for the directors’ plan.

The following table reconciles the accumulated liability for the benefit obligation of these agreements:

(Amounts in thousands)

Years Ended
December 31,

2008 2007
Beginning balance ................ ... ....... $1,689 $1,484
Benefitexpense ............ ... ... ... 281 275
Benefit payments . .......... ... ... .. ... ... .. (700 (70
Ending balance. .. ............ ... ... ... ..... $1,900 $1,689

Supplemental executive retirement agreements are unfunded plans and have no plan assets. The benefit
obligation represents the vested net present value of future payments to individuals under the agreements.
The benefit expense, as specified in the agreements for the entire year 2009, is expected to be under $300,000.
The benefits expected to be paid in the next year are $70,000.

The Bank has purchased insurance contracts on the lives of the participants in the supplemental retirement benefit
plan and has named the Bank as the beneficiary. Similarly, the Bancorp has purchased insurance contracts on the
lives of the directors with the Bancorp as beneficiary. While no direct linkage exists between the supplemental
retirement benefit plan and the life insurance contracts, it is management’s current intent that the revenue from
the insurance contracts be used as a funding source for the plan. At December 31, 2008, the cumulative income
accrued on these contracts totaled $3,002,000 on a tax equivalent basis, with $2,058,000 accrued on the officers’
contracts and $944,000 on the directors’ contracts.

In accordance with the Emerging Issues Task Force issue 06-04 “Accounting for Deferred Compensation and
Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements” the Bank and the
Bancorp began to accrue for the monthly benefit expense of postretirement cost of insurance for split-dollar life
insurance coverage. At January 1, 2008, the Bank and Bancorp recorded the cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle for recognizing a liability for the death benefit promised under a split-dollar life insurance
arrangement. The total liability was $539,000 with the offset to retained earnings. Total net amount expensed for
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NOTE 10 - BENEFIT PLANS (Continued)

the year ended December 31, 2008 was $46,000. The accumulated liability at December 31, 2008 is $585,000.
The accrual for the year ended December 31, 2009 is expected to be under $50,000.

NOTE 11 - FEDERAL INCOME TAXES
The composition of income tax expense is as follows:

(Amounts in thousands)
Years Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
CUITENL . . o e e e e e e e $ 795 $ 922 $1,133
Deferred . . ... ... .. e (507) 189 (205)
Total ... ... .. . $ 288 $1,111 $ 928

The following is a summary of net deferred taxes included in other assets:

(Amounts in thousands)
December 31,

2008 2007 2006
Gross deferred tax assets:
Provision for loan and other real estate losses. . ........ $ 516 $ 227 $ 428
AMT credit™. . ... ... .. .. 47
Other items . .. ... .. .. e 748 776 764
Loan origination cost -net . . . .................... 148 141 103
Impairment loss on securities . .. .................. 425
Unrealized loss on available for sale securities . .. ...... 5,707 49 235
Total gross deferred tax assets. . .. ................. 7,544 1,193 1,577
Valuation allowance . .............. ..., (63)
Total net deferred tax assets . .. ................... 7,481 1,193 1,577
Gross deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation . . .. ...t (431) (330) (350)
Other items . .. ... ...t (594) (572) (561)
Total net deferred tax liabilities . ............. (1,025) (902) 911)
Net deferred tax asset . .. ...........ouu.o... $ 6,456 $ 291 $ 666

* Represents the Company’s cumulative alternative minimum tax credit which was used in 2007.
The following is a reconciliation between tax expense using the statutory tax rate of 34% and the income tax
provision:

(Amounts in thousands)
Years Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006

SEAtULOTY TAX oo e $ 898 $1,857 $1,871
Tax effect of non-taxable income . ................... (695) (846) (909)
Tax effect of non-deductible expense. . . .. ............. 85 100 111
Tax effect of change in estimate® . ... ................ (145)
Total income taxes . .. ........o.ouuieuunnn.. $ 288 $1,111 $ 928

* A one time adjustment to tax accrual estimate was recorded in the first quarter of 2006.
The related income tax (benefit) expense on investment securities gains and losses amounted to $(315,000) for 2008, $26,000 for
2007 and $6,000 for 2006, and is included in the total federal income tax provision.

The Company adopted the provisions of FIN No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes”, an interpretation of FASB
Statement 109, effective January 1, 2007. FIN No. 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and a measurement attribute for the
financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. Benefits from tax
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NOTE 11 - FEDERAL INCOME TAXES (Continued)

positions should be recognized in the financial statements only when it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained
upon examination by the appropriate taxing authority that would have full knowledge of all relevant information. A tax position that
meets the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold is measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than fifty percent
likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. Tax positions that previously failed to meet the more-likely-than-not recognition
threshold should be recognized in the first subsequent financial reporting period in which that threshold is met. Previously
recognized tax positions that no longer meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold should be derecognized in the first
subsequent financial reporting period in which that threshold is no longer met. FIN No. 48 also provides guidance on the accounting
for and disclosure of unrecognized tax benefits, interest and penalties. Adoption of FIN No. 48 did not have a significant impact on
the Company’s financial statements. In accordance with FIN No. 48 interest or penalties incurred for income taxes will be recorded
as a component of income tax expense.

NOTE 12 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted the provisions of FAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, for financial assets and
financial liabilities. FAS No. 157 provides enhanced guidance for using fair value to measure assets and liabilities. The standard
applies whenever other standards require or permit assets or liabilities to be measured at fair value. The standard does not expand the
use of fair value in any new circumstances. The FASB issued Staff Position No. 157-1, Application of FASB Statement No. 157 to
FASB Statement No. 13 and Other Accounting Pronouncements That Address Fair Value Measurements for Purposes of Lease
Classification or Measurement under Statement 13, which removed leasing transactions accounted for under FAS No. 13 and related
guidance from the scope of FAS No. 157. The FASB also issued Staff Position No. 157-2, Partial Deferral of the Effective Date of
Statement 157, which deferred the effective date of FAS No. 157 for all nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities to fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2008.

FAS No. 157 establishes a hierarchal disclosure framework associated with the level of pricing observability utilized in measuring
assets and liabilities at fair value. The three broad levels defined by FAS No. 157 hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of the reported date.

Level 2:  Pricing inputs are other than quoted prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as of the
reported date. The nature of these assets and liabilities include items for which quoted prices are available but which trade less
frequently, and items that are fair valued using other financial instruments, the parameters of which can be directly observed.

Level 3:  Assets and liabilities that have little to no pricing observability as of the reported date. These items do not have two-way
markets and are measured using management’s best estimate of fair value, where inputs into the determination of fair value require
significant management judgment or estimation.

The following table presents the assets reported on the consolidated balance sheet at their fair value as of December 31, 2008 by
level within the fair value hierarchy. As required by SFAS No. 157, financial assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.
Fair Value Measurements at 12/31/08 Using
(In thousands)

Quoted Prices in

(Amounts in thousands) Active Markets for Significant Other Significant
Identical Assets Observable Inputs ~ Unobservable Inputs

Description 12/31/08 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Available for Sale Securities . . . .. ... ... ... $117,599 None $101,351 $16,248

The following table presents the changes in the Level 3 fair-value category for the twelve months ended December 31, 2008. The
Company classifies financial instruments in Level 3 of the fair-value hierarchy when there is reliance on at least one significant
unobservable input to the valuation model. In addition to these unobservable inputs, the valuation models for Level 3 financial
instruments typically also rely on a number of inputs that are readily observable either directly or indirectly.

Net realized/ unrealized gains (losses) Net unrealized losses

included i Transfers ~ Purchases included in net income
Included in in and/or issuances for the period relating
January 1,  Noninterest Other out of and December 31, to assets held at
(Amounts in thousands) 2008 income comprehensive income level 3 settlements 2008 December 31, 2008
Assets
Securities Available for sale $ $(1,251) $(12,710) $30,209 $ $16,248 $(1,251)
(Continued)
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On September 30, 2008, the Company changed its valuation technique for pooled trust preferred holdings available-for-sale.
Previously, the Company relied on prices compiled by third party vendors using observable market data (Level 2) to determine the
values of these securities. However, FAS 157 assumes that fair values of financial assets are determined in an orderly transaction and
not a forced liquidation or distressed sale at the measurement date. Based on financial market conditions at September 30, 2008, the
Company concluded that the fair values obtained from third party vendors reflected forced liquidation or distressed sales for these
trust preferred securities. Therefore, the Company estimated fair value based on a discounted cash flow methodology using
appropriately adjusted discount rates reflecting nonperformance and liquidity risks. The change in the valuation technique for these
trust preferred securities resulted in a transfer of $16,248 into Level 3 financial assets.

The Company conducts other-than-temporary impairment analysis on a quarterly basis. The initial indication of other-than-
temporary impairment for both debt and equity securities is a decline in the market value below the amount recorded for an
investment. A decline in value that is considered to be other-than-temporary is recorded as a loss within non-interest income in the
consolidated statement of income. In determining whether an impairment is other than temporary, the Company considers a number
of factors, including, but not limited to, the length of time and extent to which the market value has been less than cost, recent events
specific to the issuer, including investment downgrades by rating agencies and economic conditions of its industry, and the
Company’s intent and ability to retain the security for a period of time sufficient to allow for a recovery in market value or maturity.
Among the factors that are considered in determining the Company’s intent and ability is a review of its capital adequacy, interest
rate risk position and liquidity.

The Company also considers the issuer’s financial condition, capital strength and near-term prospects. In addition, for debt
securities and perpetual preferred securities that are treated as debt securities for the purpose of other-than-temporary analysis, the
Company considers the cause of the price decline (general level of interest rates and industry- and issuer-specific factors), current
ability to make future payments in a timely manner and the issuer’s ability to service debt. The assessment of a security’s ability to
recover any decline in market value, the ability of the issuer to meet contractual obligations and the Company’s intent and ability to
retain the security require considerable judgment.

Certain of the corporate debt securities are accounted for under EITF 99-20, “Recognition of Interest Income and Impairment on
Purchased Beneficial Interests that Continue to Be Held by a Transferor in Securitized Financial Assets.” For investments within the
scope of EITF 99-20 at acquisition, the Company evaluates current available information in estimating the future cash flows of these
securities and determines whether there have been favorable or adverse changes in estimated cash flows from the cash flows
previously projected. The Company considers the structure and term of the pool and the financial condition of the underlying
issuers. Specifically, the evaluation incorporates factors such as interest rates and appropriate risk premiums, the timing and amount
of interest and principal payments and the allocation of payments to the various note classes. Current estimates of cash flows are
based on the most recent trustee reports, announcements of deferrals or defaults, expected future default rates and other relevant
market information. At December 31, 2008, the Company concluded that no adverse change in cash flows occurred during the
fourth quarter.

The Company analyzed the cash flow characteristics of these securities. Based on this analysis and because the Company has the
intent and ability to hold these securities until recovery of fair value, which may be at maturity; and, for investments within the scope
of EITF 99-20, determined that there was no adverse change in the cash flows as viewed by a market participant, the Company does
not consider the investments in these assets to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2008. However, there is a risk
that this review could result in recognition of other-than-temporary impairment charges in the future. As of December 31, 2008,
management does not believe any unrealized loss represents an other-than-temporary impairment. The unrealized losses at
December 31, 2008 were primarily interest rate-related. The Company owns 32 collateralized debt obligation securities totaling
$34,988,000 (par value) that are backed by trust preferred securities issued by banks, thrifts, and insurance companies (TRUP
CDOs). The market for these securities at December 31, 2008 is not active and markets for similar securities are also not active. The
inactivity was evidenced first by a significant widening of the bid-ask spread in the brokered markets in which TRUP CDOs trade
and then by a significant decrease in the volume of trades relative to historical levels. The new issue market is also inactive as no new
TRUP CDOs have been issued since 2007. There are currently very few market participants who are willing and or able to transact
for these securities. The market values for these securities (and any securities other than those issued or guaranteed by the US
Treasury) are very depressed relative to historical levels. For example, the yield spreads for the broad market of investment grade
and high yield corporate bonds reached all time wide levels versus Treasuries at the end of November and remain near those levels
today. Thus in today’s market, a low market price for a particular bond may only provide evidence of stress in the credit markets in
general versus being an indicator of credit problems with a particular issuer.

(Continued)
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NOTE 12 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Given conditions in the debt markets today and the absence of observable transactions in the secondary and new issue markets, we
determined:

* The few observable transactions and market quotations that are available are not reliable for purposes of determining fair value at
December 31, 2008,

* An income valuation approach technique (present value technique) that maximizes the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizes the use of unobservable inputs will be equally or more representative of fair value than the market approach valuation
technique used at prior measurement dates and

* The TRUP CDOs will be classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy because the Company determined that significant
adjustments are required to determine fair value at the measurement date.

The TRUP CDO valuations were prepared by an independent third party. Their approach to determining fair value involved these
steps:

1. The credit quality of the collateral is estimated using average probability of default values for each issuer (adjusted for rating
levels).

2. The default probabilities also considered the potential for correlation among issuers within the same industry (e.g. banks with
other banks).

3. The loss given default was assumed to be 95% (i.e. a 5% recovery).

4. The cash flows were forecast for the underlying collateral and applied to each CDO tranche to determine the resulting
distribution among the securities.

5. The expected cash flows were discounted to calculate the present value of the security.

6. The calculations were modeled in several thousand scenarios using a Monte Carlo engine and the average price was used for
valuation purposes.

7. The effective discount rates on an overall basis generally range from 3.91% to 24.72% and are highly dependent upon the credit
quality of the collateral, the relative position of the tranche in the capital structure of the CDO and the prepayment assumptions.

The following table presents the assets measured on a nonrecurring basis on the consolidated statements of financial condition at
their fair value as of December 31, 2008, by level within the fair value hierarchy. Impaired loans that are collateral dependent are
written down to fair value through the establishment of specific reserves. Techniques used to value the collateral that secure the
impaired loan include: quoted market prices for identical assets classified as Level 1 inputs; observable inputs, employed by
certified appraisers, for similar assets classified as Level 2 inputs. In cases where valuation techniques included inputs that are
unobservable and are based on estimates and assumptions developed by management based on the best information available under
each circumstance, the asset valuation is classified as Level 3 inputs.

December 31, 2008

(Amounts in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets Measured on a Nonrecurring Basis:
Impaired loans $ $ 179  $ $ 179

Impaired Loans — A loan is considered to be impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the
Company will be unable to collect all amounts due (both interest and principal) according to the contractual terms of the loan
agreement. Impaired loans are measured, as a practical expedient, at the loan’s observable market price or the fair market value of
the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. At December 31, 2008, the recorded investment in impaired loans was $441,000
with a related reserve of $262,000 resulting in a net balance of $179,000.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments” (“SFAS 1077),
requires disclosure of fair value information about financial instruments, whether or not recognized in the balance sheet, for which it
is practicable to estimate the value. In cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates using
present value or other estimation techniques. Those techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the

(Continued)



CORTLAND BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006

NOTE 12 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

discount rate and estimates of future cash flows. Such techniques and assumptions, as they apply to individual categories of the
financial instruments, are as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents — The carrying amounts for cash and cash equivalents are a reasonable estimate of those assets’ fair
value.

Interest-bearing deposits — The carrying amounts for interest-bearing deposits are a reasonable estimate of those assets’ fair value.

Investment securities — Fair value is reported utilizing Level 2 and Level 3 inputs. Securities are based on quoted market prices,
where available. If quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on quoted market prices for similar securities or
estimates from independent pricing services.

Loans, net of allowance for loan loss — The fair value is estimated by discounting future cash flows using current market inputs at
which loans with similar terms and qualities would be made to borrowers of similar credit quality.

Demand and savings deposits — Demand, savings, and money market deposit accounts are valued at the amount payable on
demand as of year-end.

Accrued interest receivable — The carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of these assets fair value.

Time deposits — The fair values of certificates of deposit based on the discounted value of contractual cash flows. The discount
rates are estimated using rates currently offered for similar instruments with similar remaining maturities.

FHLB advances — The fair value for fixed rate advances is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using rates at which
advances would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities. The fair value for the fixed
rate advances that are convertible to quarterly LIBOR floating rate advances on or after certain specified dates at the option of the
FHLB and the FHLB fixed rate advances that are putable on or after certain specified dates at the option of the FHLB are priced
using the FHLB of Cincinnati’s model.

Other borrowings — Other borrowings generally have an original term to maturity of one week or less. Consequently, their carrying
value is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Subordinated debt — The carrying amount for the subordinated debt is a reasonable estimate of the debts’ fair value due to the fact
the debt floats based on LIBOR and resets quarterly.

Accrued interest payable — The carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of these liabilities fair value.
The fair value of unrecorded commitments at December 31, 2008 and 2007, is not material.

In addition, other assets and liabilities of the Company that are not defined as financial instruments are not included in the
disclosures, such as property and equipment. Also, non-financial instruments typically not recognized in financial statements
nevertheless may have value but are not included in the above disclosures. These include, among other items, the estimated earning
power of core deposit accounts, the trained work force, customer goodwill and similar items. Accordingly, the aggregate fair value
amounts presented do not represent the underlying value of the Company.

The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are as follows:

(Amounts in thousands)

December 31, 2008

December 31, 2007

Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
ASSETS:
Cash and due frombanks. . . . ..................... $ 8,394 $ 8,394 $ 9,441 $ 9,441
Interest-bearing deposits . .. ........ ... ... ... 18,449 18,449
Investment securities . . . ... ..... ..ot 191,754 192,558 238,622 239,594
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses . . . ............ 243,547 248,267 221,488 220,692
Accrued interest receivable . .. ... ... ... . ... . ... ... 2,637 2,637 3,100 3,100
LIABILITIES:
Demand and savings deposits. . .. .......... ... .... $203,682 $203,682 $175,406 $175,406
Time deposits. . . ... 176,271 180,431 189,382 190,656
FHLB advances .. ...........c.uuuiiineinnenn.. 62,500 67,889 64,000 64,952
Other borrowings . .. ...t 5,648 5,648 6,413 6,413
Subordinated Debt .. ......... ... ... ... ...... 5,155 5,155 5,155 5,155
Accrued interest payable . .. ...... ... ... oL L. 967 967 1,265 1,265
(Continued)
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NOTE 13 - REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet
minimum capital requirements can initiate certain actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the
Company’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the
Company must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Company’s assets, liabilities and certain
off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Company’s capital amounts and classifications are
also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company to maintain: (1) a minimum ratio
of 4% both for total Tier I risk-based capital to risk-weighted assets and for Tier I risk-based capital to average assets, and (2) a
minimum ratio of 8% for total risk-based capital to risk-weighted assets.

Under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Company is categorized as well capitalized, which requires
minimum capital ratios of 10% for total risk-based capital to risk-weighted assets, 6% for Tier I risk-based capital to risk-weighted
assets and 5% for Tier I risk-based capital to average assets (also known as the leverage ratio). There are no conditions or events
since the most recent communication from regulators that management believes would change the Company’s capital classification.

(Amounts in thousands)

December 31, December 31,
2008 2007
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

Total Risk-Based Capital . . . ..... ... ... ... ... ...... $54,521 $55,455

Ratio to Risk-Weighted Assets . .. ..................... 17.15% 19.18%
Tier I Risk-Based Capital . .......... ... ... ... ...... $52,045 $53,820

Ratio to Risk-Weighted Assets . .. ..................... 16.37% 18.62%

Ratio to Average ASSetS. . .. ..o vttt 10.58 % 10.99%

Tier I risk-based capital is shareholders’ equity, noncumulative and cumulative perpetual preferred stock, qualifying trust preferred
securities and minority interests less intangibles and the unrealized market value adjustment of investment securities available for
sale. Total risk-based capital is Tier I risk-based capital plus the qualifying portion of the allowance for loan losses. Assets and
certain off balance sheet items adjusted in accordance with risk classification comprise risk-weighted assets of $317,861,000 and
$289,081,000 as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Assets less intangibles and the net unrealized market value
adjustment of investment securities available for sale averaged $492,033,000 and $489,443,000 for the years ended December 31,
2008 and 2007, respectively.

NOTE 14 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Certain directors, executive officers and companies with which they are affiliated were loan customers during 2008. The following
is an analysis of such loans:

(Amounts in thousands)

Total related-party loans at December 31, 2007 . ................ $2.,385
New related-party loans. . ... ... .. .. 601
Repayments orother. . ....... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... 338

Total related-party loans at December 31, 2008 . ......... $2.,648

(Continued)
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NOTE 15 - CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Below is condensed financial information of Cortland Bancorp (parent company only). In this information, the parent’s investment
in subsidiaries is stated at cost, including equity in the undistributed earnings of the subsidiaries since inception, adjusted for any

unrealized gains or losses on available for sale securities.
BALANCE SHEETS

(Amounts in thousands)

Assets:
Cash . ... .
Investment securities available for sale. . .............
Investment in bank subsidiary. . ...................
Investment in non-bank subsidiary. .. ...............
Subordinated note from subsidiary bank. . ............
Other assets . .. ... e

Liabilities:
Other liabilities . .. ... ......... .. ... .. ... ......
Subordinated debt . . ... ....... ... ... ... ...

Shareholders’ equity:
Common stock (Note 1). . .......................
Additional paid-in capital (Note 1) ... ..............
Retained earnings . . ........... ... ... ... .. ...
Accumulated other comprehensive loss .. ............
Treasury stock

Total shareholders’ equity . . ...............

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(Amounts in thousands)

Dividends from bank subsidiary . . .. ...... ... .. L
Interest and dividend income . . . . ... ... ... ...
Investment securities 10SSES . . . . . . . ..ot
Other iNCOME . . . . . . .. e
Interest on subordinated debt . . . . ... ... ... ... ... ...
Other EXPENSES. « . o v v vt e e e e e e e e e

Income before income tax and equity in

undistributed earnings of subsidiaries. . .. ........ ... .. L L.
Income tax benefit . .. ... ... ...
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries . .. ......................

Netincome . .. ... .. ... .. ... . e

December 31,

2008 2007
$ 631  $229
166 650
31,934 42,500
15 15
6,000 6,000
2,977 2,837
$41,723  $54,295
$ 540 3 316
5,155 5,155
23,641 23,200
21,078 20,976
6,480 9,386
(11,078) (94)
4,093)  (4,644)
36,028 48,824
$41,723  $54.295

Years ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
$1,750 $ 7,000 $2,800
319 51 46
(188)
117 110 89
(244) (154)
(272) (257) (283)
1,482 6,750 2,652
56 120 78
815 (2,520) 1,846
$2,353 $ 4,350 $4,576

(Continued)
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NOTE 15 - CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Amounts in thousands)

Years ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
Cash flows from operating activities
Net iNCOME . . ..ottt e e e e e e e e e e $ 2,353 $ 4,350 $ 4,576
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash flows from operating
activities:
Equity in undistributed net income of subsidiaries . ............. (815) 2,520 (1,846)
AcCretion On SeCUtieS. . . . oo vttt ittt i e e 1 2 2
Deferred tax benefit. ... ... ... . ... ... ... 12) (12) (13)
Investment securities 10SSes . . .. ..., .. 188
Change in other assets and liabilities . ....................... (101) (192) (141)
Net cash flows from operating activities . ................. 1,614 6,668 2,578
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from call, maturity and principal payments
O SECUITEIES . & & v ettt et e 350
Purchase of subordinated note from subsidiary bank .............. (6,000)
Net cash flows from investing activities . ................. 350 (6,000)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from subordinated debt . . . .......... ... .. ... .. ... ... 5,155
Dividends paid. . . . ... ... (3,877) (3,899) (3,870)
Purchases of treasury stock . .......... .. ... .. . ... (747) (3,526)
Treasury shares reissued . ......... .. ... .. . . ... 998 946 1,139
Net cash flows from financing activities . ... .............. (3,626) (1,324) (2,731)
Net change incash ........ ... ... . ... . .. (1,662) (656) (153)
Cash
Beginning of year . ....... ... ... 2,293 2,949 3,102
End of year . .. ..ot $ 631 $ 2,293 $ 2,949

NOTE 16 - DIVIDEND RESTRICTIONS

The Bank is subject to regulations of the Ohio Division of Financial Institutions which restrict dividends to retained earnings (as
defined by statute) of the current and prior two years. Under this restriction, at December 31, 2008, approximately $473,000 is
available for the payment of dividends by the Bank without seeking prior regulatory approval. In addition, regulations specify that
dividend payments may not reduce capital levels below minimum regulatory guidelines.

NOTE 17 - LITIGATION

The Bank is involved in legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of management, the outcomes from
these other matters, either individually or in the aggregate, are not expected to have any material effect on the Company.

(Continued)




CENLAND
CORTLAND BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES CO]Q)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006

NOTE 18 - STOCK REPURCHASE PROGRAM

On February 27, 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a Stock Repurchase Program which permitted the Company to
repurchase up to 100,000 shares of its outstanding common shares in the over-the-counter market or in privately negotiated
transactions in accordance with applicable regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission. Based on the value of the
Company’s stock on February 27, 2007, the commitment to repurchase the stock over the program was approximately $1,715,000.

On August 14, 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to an additional 100,000 shares of its
outstanding common shares in over-the-counter market or in privately negotiated transactions. Based on the value of the Company’s
stock on August 14, 2007, the commitment to repurchase these additional shares over the program was approximately $1,635,000.

On November 27,2007, the Company’s Board of Directors increased to 300,000 shares the size of its current stock buyback program
by authorizing the repurchase of up to an additional 100,000 shares of its outstanding common shares in the over-the-counter market
or in privately negotiated transactions. Based on the value of the Company’s stock on November 27, 2007, the commitment to
repurchase these additional shares over the program was approximately $1,375,000.

The repurchase program terminates on February 28, 2009 or upon the purchase of 300,000 shares, if earlier. Repurchased shares are
designated as treasury shares, available for general corporate purposes, including possible use in connection with the Company’s
dividend reinvestment program, employee benefit plans, acquisitions or other distributions. Under the program the Company
repurchased 205,986 shares in 2007 and 51,817 shares in 2008, for a total of 257,803 shares. The Company also reissued
71,562 shares to existing shareholders through its dividend reinvestment program during 2008, net of repurchased fractional shares.
Based on the price of the Company’s stock at December 31, 2008, the remaining commitment to repurchase the 42,197 remaining
shares of stock was approximately $401,000 at December 31, 2008.

The following table shows information relating to the repurchase of shares of the Company’s common stock during 2008:

Total Number Maximum
of Shares Number
Purchased as of Shares
Part of Publicly That May Yet Be
Total Number Average Announced Purchased Under
of Shares Price Paid Plans or the Plans or
Purchased Per Share Programs Programs
October . . .............. NONE $NONE NONE 42,197
November . ............. NONE NONE NONE 42,197
December .............. NONE NONE NONE 42,197
Fourth Quarter. .......... NONE $NONE NONE 42,197
Third Quarter ........... 15,000 $ 1342 15,000 42,197
Second Quarter . ......... 25,045 $ 15.82 25,045 57,197
First Quarter . ........... 11,772 $ 12.61 11,772 82,242
TOTAL . ............... 51,817 $ 14.40 51,817 42,197




FIVE YEAR SUMMARY
AVERAGE BALANCE SHEET, YIELDS AND RATES

The following schedules show average balances of interest-earning and non interest-earning assets and liabilities, and Shareholders’
equity for the years indicated. Also shown are the related amounts of interest earned or paid and the related average yields or interest
rates paid for the years indicated. The averages are based on daily balances.

(Fully taxable equivalent basis in thousands of dollars)

2008 2007
Average Interest Yield Average Interest Yield
Balance Earned or Balance Earned or

Outstanding or Paid Rate Outstanding or Paid Rate

Interest-earning assets:
Federal funds sold and other earning assets . ............. $ 11462 $ 200 1.8% $ 6950 $ 366 53%
Investment securities:
U.S. Treasury and other U.S.

Government agencies and corporations . . . . .......... 55,048 3,102 5.6% 87,867 4772 5.4%
U.S. Government mortgage-backed
pass through certificates . . .. ......... ... .. ... .... 95,737 4852 51% 80,689 4,008 5.0%
States of the U.S. and political
subdivisions (Note 1,2,3) . ......... ... ........ 31,827 2,235 7.0% 37,488 2,633 7.0%
Other securities . . ... ....... ..., 40,465 2,394 5.9% 32,860 2,251 6.9%
TOTAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES ................. 223,077 12,583 5.6% 238,904 13,664 5.7%
Loans (Note 2,3,4). . ...t 228,440 15,557 6.8% 215496 15,856 7.4%
TOTAL INTEREST-EARNING ASSETS . . ... ........... 462,979  $28,340 6.1% 461,350 $29,886 6.5%
Non interest-earning assets:
Cash and due from banks . ... ...................... 6,791 8,220
Premises and equipment . . ... ... ... ... 7,055 5,374
Other. . . ... 11,546 14,103
TOTAL ASSETS . . . . .. $488,371 $489,047
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits:
Interest-bearing demand deposits. . . ... .............. $ 49653 $ 706 1.4% $ 46,508 $ 888 1.9%
Savings. . . ... 77,401 851 1.1% 78,072 799  1.0%
Time . ..o 178,372 7,259 4.1% 184,586 8,769 4.8%
TOTAL INTEREST-BEARING DEPOSITS . . . . .......... 305,426 8,816 2.9% 309,166 10,456  3.4%
Borrowings:
Federal funds purchased . ... ......... .. ... ......... 154 7 45% 605 29 4.8%
Securities sold under agreement to repurchase . ........... 4,759 92 19% 5,764 243 4.2%
Subordinated debt . ... ...... ... .. ... . ... ... 5,155 244 4.7% 2,175 154 7.1%
Other borrowings under one year . . . ... ............... 4,946 228 4.6% 13,963 715 5.1%
Other borrowings overone year . . ... ................. 61,102 2,790 4.6% 45,843 2,388 5.2%
TOTAL BORROWINGS ... ... ... ... ... .. ... ...... 76,116 3,361 4.4% 68,350 3,529 5.2%
TOTAL INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES . . . ... ...... 381,542 $12,177 3.2% 377,516  $13,985 3.7%
Non interest-bearing liabilities:
Demand deposits . . . . ... . 56,496 57,668
Other liabilities . . . . ... ... . . 5,214 3,775
Shareholders equity . .. .......... ... .. ... ... ... 45,119 50,088
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY . .. $488,371 $489,047
Net interest inCOMe . . . . . ..o in ettt e $16,163 $15,901
Net interest rate spread (Note 5) . .. .................... 2.9% 2.8%
Net interest margin (Note 6) . . .. ...................... 3.5% 3.5%

Note 1 — Includes both taxable and tax exempt securities.

Note 2 — The amounts are presented on a fully taxable equivalent basis using the statutory tax rate of 34% in 2008, 2007, 2006 and 2005, and
have been adjusted to reflect the effect of disallowed interest expense related to carrying tax exempt assets. Tax-free income from
states of the U.S. and political subdivisions, and loans amounted to $1,528 and $166 for 2008, $1,809 and $155 for 2007, $2,045
and $192 for 2006, $2,156 and $209 for 2005 and $2,545 and $193 for 2004 respectively.

Note 3 — Average balance outstanding includes the average amount outstanding of all nonaccrual investment securities and loans. States
and political subdivisions consist of average total principal adjusted for amortization of premium and accretion of discount less
average allowance for estimated losses, and include both taxable and tax exempt securities. Loans consist of average total loans
less average unearned income.




(Fully taxable equivalent basis in thousands of dollars)

2006 2005 2004
Average Interest Yield  Average Interest Yield  Average  Interest Yield
Balance Earned or Balance Earned or Balance Earned or
Outstanding or Paid Rate Outstanding or Paid Rate Outstanding or Paid Rate
$ 4228 $ 215 51% $ 3,619 $ 119 33% $ 5,623 $ 83 1.5%
83,615 4257 5.1% 67,402 3,259 4.8% 62,418 2920 4.7%
79,317 3,795 4.8%
84,928 3,810 4.5% 85,357 3,634 4.3%
42,409 2,995 7.1% 44,756 3,184 7.1% 53,832 3,764  7.0%
29,628 1,888 6.4% 24,758 1,294 52% 14,953 716  4.8%
234,969 12,935 5.5% 221,844 11,547 52% 216,560 11,034 5.1%
195,838 14,381  7.4% 192,873 13,040 6.8% 193,927 12,474 6.4%
435,035 $27,531 6.3% 418,336 $24,706  5.9% 416,110 $23,591 5.7%
8,733 9,417 9,276
4,226 4,316 4,637
12,365 12,418 14,252
$460,359 $444.487 $444.275
$ 47415 $ 752 1.6%  $ 49,355 $ 389 08% $ 48945 § 263 0.5%
82,845 850 1.0% 89,107 647 0.7% 90,584 501 0.6%
161,050 6,907 4.3% 144,793 5,123 3.5% 147,662 5,023 3.4%
291,310 8,509 2.9% 283,255 6,159 22% 287,191 5,787 2.0%
478 25 53% 428 15 3.5% 289 4 1.4%
3,991 158  4.0% 2,540 59 2.3% 2,698 26 1.0%
7,924 365 4.6% 599 21 3.5% 2,781 37 13%
46,858 2,525 5.4% 46,365 2411 52% 40,325 2,156 5.3%
59,251 3,073 52% 49,932 2,506 5.0% 46,093 2,223 4.8%
350,561 $11,582 3.3% 333,187 $ 8,665 2.6% 333,284 $ 8,010 2.4%
57,271 58,320 56,778
3,214 3,315 4,385
49,313 49,665 49,828
$460,359 $444.487 $444.275
$15,949 $16,041 $15,581
3.0% 3.3% 3.3%
3.7% 3.8% 3.7%

Note 4 — Interest earned on loans includes net loan fees of $263 in 2008, $219 in 2007, $291 in 2006, $242 in 2005 and $203 in 2004.
Note 5 — Net interest rate spread represents the difference between the yield on earning assets and the rate paid on interest-bearing

liabilities.

Note 6 — Net interest margin is calculated by dividing the difference between total interest earned and total interest expensed by total

interest-earning assets.
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Years Ended December 31,

SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Total Interest Income . . .. ......... ... ........ $ 27,559 $ 28,992 $ 26,497 $ 23,586 $ 22,288
Total Interest Expense. . . . ........ .. ... .. ..... 12,177 13,985 11,582 8,665 8,010
NET INTEREST INCOME (NII) . . .. ............ 15,382 15,007 14,915 14,921 14,278
Provision for Loan Losses . . .. ................. 1,785 40 225 545 415
NII After Loss Provision. . ... ................. 13,597 14,967 14,690 14,376 13,863
Security Gains (Losses). . . .. ... ... (1,112) 77 18 308 1,052
Gainon Saleof Loans . .. .................... 30 88 106 89 54
Total Other Income . .. ...................... 2,941 2,924 2,711 2,718 2,725
INCOME BEFORE EXPENSE . ................ 15,456 18,056 17,525 17,491 17,694
Total Other Expenses . . .. .................... 12,815 12,595 12,021 12,200 11,861
INCOME BEFORE TAX .. ................... 2,641 5,461 5,504 5,291 5,833
Federal Income Tax . ... ........... .. ........ 288 1,111 928 957 990
NETINCOME . ......... ... .. .. $ 2,353 $ 4,350 $ 4,576 $ 4,334 $ 4,843

BALANCE SHEET DATA

ASSELS . o i $493,365 $492,694 $471,751 $459,701 $446,393
Investments. . . .. ..... ... .. 191,754 238,622 233,103 234,652 225,841
Total Loans. . .. .......... ... 246,017 223,109 205,208 188,202 191,777
Allowance for Loan Losses . . ... ............... 2,470 1,621 2211 2,168 2,629
Deposits . . . v vt 379,953 364,788 355,818 350,375 344919
Borrowings . . ... ... 68,148 70,413 62,015 58,111 47,889
Subordinated Debt . . . .. ...... ... ... ... ... .... 5,155 5,155

Shareholders” Equity . ....................... 36,028 48,824 50,592 48,325 49,398
AVERAGE BALANCES

ASSELS . L i $488,371 $489,047 $460,359 $444.,487 $444,275
Investments. . . .. ...... ... 223,077 238,904 234,969 221,844 216,560
NetLoans. . .. ...t 226,907 213,568 193,648 190,329 191,428
Deposits . . ..ot 361,922 366,834 348,581 341,575 343,969
Subordinated Debt . . . . ...... .. .. ... ......... 5,155 2,175

Borrowings . . ... ... 70,961 66,175 59,251 49,932 46,093
Shareholders” Equity . ....................... 45,119 50,088 49,313 49,665 49,828
PER COMMON SHARE DATA (1)

Net Income, both Basic and Diluted . . ... ......... $ 052 $ 0095 $ 099 $ 095 $ 179
Cash Dividends Declared . .................... 0.86 0.85 0.84 1.02 0.99
Book Value. .. ........... ... ... .. ... ....... 8.01 10.90 10.92 10.57 10.95

ASSET QUALITY RATIOS

Loans 30 days or more beyond their contractual due
date as a percent of total loans . ... ............ 0.57% 1.32% 2.26% 2.95% 2.45%

Underperforming Assets as a
Percentage of:

Total Assets . . .. ... .o 0.43 0.63 0.84 0.83 0.76

Equity plus Allowance for Loan Losses . ....... 5.45 6.17 7.50 7.58 6.52

Tier I Capital .. ........... ... ... ... ... 4.03 6.38 7.78 7.81 7.05
FINANCIAL RATIOS
Return on Average Equity . . . .................. 5.22% 8.68% 9.28% 8.73% 9.72%
Return on Average Assets . . ... ................ 0.48 0.89 0.99 0.98 1.09
Effective Tax Rate . . .. ......... ... ...... . ... 10.90 20.34 16.86 18.09 16.97
Average Equity to Average Assets . .............. 9.24 10.24 10.71 11.17 11.22
Equity to Asset Ratio . . . ..................... 7.30 9.91 10.72 10.51 11.07
Tangible Equity to Tangible Asset Ratio . .......... 7.29 9.89 10.70 10.48 11.02
Cash Dividend Payout Ratio . .................. 165.38 89.69 84.31 107.00 91.45
Net Interest Margin Ratio . ... ................. 3.49 3.45 3.67 3.83 3.74

(1) Basic and diluted earnings per common share are based on weighted average shares outstanding adjusted retroactively for stock dividends. Cash
dividends per common share are based on actual cash dividends declared, adjusted retroactively for the stock dividends. Book value per common
share is based on shares outstanding at each period, adjusted retroactively for the stock dividends.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The following is management’s discussion and anal-
ysis of the financial condition and results of opera-
tions of Cortland Bancorp (the “Company”). The
discussion should be read in conjunction with the
Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes
and summary financial information included else-
where in this annual report.

NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995
provides a “safe harbor” for forward-looking state-
ments. In addition to historical information, certain
information included in this discussion and other
material filed or to be filed by the Company with
the Securities and Exchange Commission (as well as
information included in oral statements or other writ-
ten statements made or to be made by the Company)
may contain forward-looking statements that involve
risks and uncertainties. The words “believes,”
“expects,” “

templates,” “anticipates,” “forecasts,” “intends,” or
similar terminology identify forward-looking state-
ments. These statements reflect management’s
beliefs and assumptions, and are based on informa-
tion currently available to management.

99 ¢

may,” “will,” “should,” “projects,” “con-

LR TS

Economic circumstances, the Company’s operations
and actual results could differ significantly from
those discussed in any forward-looking statements.
Some of the factors that could cause or contribute to
such differences are changes in the economy and
interest rates either nationally or in the Company’s
market area; changes in customer preferences and
consumer behavior; increased competitive pressures
or changes in either the nature or composition of
competitors; changes in the legal and regulatory
environment; changes in factors influencing liquidity
such as expectations regarding the rate of inflation or
deflation, currency exchange rates, and other factors
influencing market volatility; unforeseen risks asso-
ciated with other global economic, political and
financial factors.

While actual results may differ significantly from the
results discussed in the forward-looking statements,

the Company undertakes no obligation to update
publicly any forward-looking statement for any rea-
son, even if new information becomes available.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ESTIMATES

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition
and results of operation are based upon our consol-
idated financial statements, which have been pre-
pared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.
The preparation of these consolidated financial state-
ments requires management to make estimates and
judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of our consolidated financial statements, Actual
results may differ from these estimates under differ-
ent assumptions or conditions.

Certain accounting policies involve significant judg-
ments and assumption by management which have a
material impact on the carrying value of certain assets
and liabilities; management considers such account-
ing policies to be critical accounting policies. The
judgments and assumptions used by management are
based on historical experience and other factors,
which are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Management believes the following are critical
accounting policies that require the most significant
judgments and estimates used in the preparation of its
consolidated financial statements;

Accounting for the Allowance for loan Losses

The determination of the amount of the provision for
loan losses charged to operations reflects manage-
ment’s current judgment about the credit quality of
the loan portfolio and takes into consideration
changes in lending policies and procedures. changes
in economic and business conditions, changes in the
nature and volume of the portfolio and in the terms of
loans, changes in the experience, ability and depth of
lending management, changes in the volume and
severity of past due nonaccrual and adversely clas-
sified or graded loans, changes in the quality of the
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loan review system, changes in the value of under-
lying collateral for collateral-dependent loans, the
existence and effect of any concentrations of credit
and the effect of competition, legal and regulatory
requirements and other external factors. The nature of
the process by which we determine the appropriate
allowance for loan losses requires the exercise of
considerable judgment. While management utilizes
its best judgment and information available, the ulti-
mate adequacy of the allowance in dependent upon a
variety of factors beyond our control , including the
performance of our loan portfolio, the economy,
changes in interest rates and the view of the regula-
tory authorities toward loan classifications. The
allowance is increased by the provision for loan
losses and decreased by charge-offs when manage-
ment believes the uncollectibility of a loan is con-
firmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any are credited to
the allowance. A weakening of the economy or other
factors that adversely affect asset quality could result
in an increase in the number of delinquencies, bank-
ruptcies or defaults and a higher level of non-per-
forming assets, net charge offs, and provision for loan
losses in future periods.

The Company’s allowance for loan losses method-
ology consists of three elements (i) specific valuation
allowances determined in accordance with SFAS 114
based on probable losses on specific loans; (ii) his-
torical valuation allowances determined in accor-
dance with SFAS based on historical loan loss
experience for similar loans with similar character-
istics and trends; and (iii) general valuation allow-
ances determined in accordance with SFAS based on
general economic conditions and other qualitative
risk factors both internal and external to the Com-
pany. These elements support the basis for determin-
ing allocations between the various loan categories
and the overall adequacy of our allowance to provide
for probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio.
These elements further supported by additional anal-
ysis of relevant factors such as the historical losses in
the portfolio, trends in the non-performing/non-
accrual loans, loan delinquencies, the volume of
the portfolio, peer group comparisons and federal
regulatory policy for loan and lease losses. Other
significant factors of portfolio analysis include
changes in lending policies/underwriting standards,

trends in volume and terms, portfolio composition
and concentrations of credit, and trends in the
national and local economy.

With these methodologies, a general allowance is
established for each loan type based on historical
losses for each loan type in the portfolio. Addition-
ally, management allocates a specific allowance for
“Impaired Credits,” in accordance with SFAS No. 114,
“Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan.”
The level of the general allowance is established to
provide coverage for management’s estimate of the
credit risk in the loan portfolio by various loan seg-
ments not covered by the specific allowance. The
allowance for credit losses is discussed in more detail
in Note 4 Allowance for Loan Losses and in Man-
agement Discussion and Analysis “Allowance for
Loan Losses.”

Investment Securities

The classification and accounting for investment
securities are discussed in detail in Note 1 of the
consolidated Financial Statements presented else-
where herein. Under SFAS No 115, Accounting for
Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities,
investment securities must be classified as held-to-
maturity, available-for-sale, or trading. The appropri-
ate classification is based partially on our ability to
hold the securities to maturity and largely on man-
agement’s intentions, if any, with respect to either
holding or selling the securities. The classification of
investment securities is significant since it directly
impacts the accounting for unrealized gains and
losses on securities. Unrealized gains and losses on
trading securities, if any, flow directly through earn-
ings during the periods in which they arise, whereas
available-for-sale securities are recorded as a sepa-
rate component of shareholder’s equity (accumulated
other comprehensive income or loss) and do not
affect earnings until realized. The fair values of
our investment securities are generally determined
by reference to quoted market prices and reliable
independent sources. At each reporting date, we
assess whether there is an ‘“other-than-temporary”
impairment to our investment securities. Such
impairment must be recognized in current earnings
rather than in other comprehensive income (loss).
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Investment securities are discussed in more detail in
Note 2 and Note 12 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements and in Management Discussion and Anal-
ysis on “Investment Securities” presented elsewhere
herein.

Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes is based on income
reported for financial statement purposes and differs
from the amount of taxes currently payable, since
certain income and expense items are reported for
financial statement purposes in different periods than
those for tax reporting purposes. Taxes are discussed
in more detail in Note 11 to the Consolidated Finan-
cial Statements presented elsewhere herein. Accrued
taxes represent the net estimated amount due or to be
received from taxing authorities. In estimating
accrued taxes, we assess the relative merits and risks
of the appropriate tax treatment of transactions taking
into account statutory, judicial and regulatory guid-
ance in the context of our tax position.

We account for income taxes using the asset and
liability approach, the objective of which is to estab-
lish deferred tax assets and liabilities for the tempo-
rary differences between the financial reporting basis
and tax basis of our assets and liabilities at enacted
tax rates expected to be in effect when such amounts
are realized or settled.

CERTAIN NON GAAP MEASURES

Certain financial information has been determined by
methods other than Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP). Specifically, certain financial
measures are based on core earnings rather than
net income. Core earnings exclude income, expense,
gains and losses that either are not reflective of
ongoing operations or that are not expected to reoccur
with any regularity or reoccur with a high degree of
uncertainty and volatility. Such information may be
useful to both investors and management, and can aid
them in understanding the Company’s current per-
formance trends and financial condition. Core earn-
ings are a supplemental tool for analysis and not a
substitute for GAAP net income. Reconciliation from
GAAP net income to the non GAAP measure of core
earnings is shown as part of management’s discussion

and analysis of quarterly and year-to-date financial
results of operations.

CORPORATE PROFILE

Cortland Bancorp (the “Company”) is a bank holding
company headquartered in Cortland, Ohio whose
principle activity is to own, manage and supervise
the Cortland Savings and Banking Company (“Cort-
land Banks” or the “Bank™).

Cortland Banks with total assets of $490.2 million at
December 31, 2008, is a state charter bank engaged in
commercial and retail banking services. The Bank
offers a full range of financial services to our local
communities with an ongoing strategic focus on
commercial banking relationships.

The Bank’s results of operations depend primarily on
net interest income, which in part, is a direct result of
the market interest rate environment. Net interest
income is the difference between the interest income
earned on interest bearing assets, and the interest paid
on interest bearing liabilities. Net interest income is
affected by the shape of the market yield curve, the
re-pricing of interest earning assets and interest bear-
ing liabilities and the pre-payment rate of mortgage
related assets. Our results of operation may be
affected significantly by general and local economic
conditions, particularly those with respect to changes
in market interest rates, credit quality, governmental
policies and actions of regulatory authority.

SIGNIFICANT DEVELOPMENTS

As a result of a continued deterioration of the
residential real estate market, which began in 2007
with problems in the subprime mortgage market, the
national economy continued to falter through 2008,
significantly impacting the financial service industry
as a whole. The faltering economy has been marked
by contractions in the availability of credit to con-
sumers and business, increases in borrowing rates,
falling home prices, increasing home foreclosures
and escalating unemployment rates.

Deterioration of the housing market has been accom-
panied by overall disruption and volatility in the
financial and capital markets. As national and global
markets ceased to function effectively during the
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year, financial companies across the spectrum have
been affected by a lack of liquidity and continued
credit deterioration.

Concerns for the stability of the banking and financial
systems reached a magnitude which resulted in
unprecedented government intervention. On Octo-
ber 3, 2008, the President of the United States signed
the Emergency Stabilization Act of 2008 (“EESA”)
into law, creating the Troubled Asset Relief Program
(“TARP”). The Act provides the U.S. Secretary of the
Treasury with broad authority to implement certain
actions and to help restore stability and liquidity to
U.S. Markets.

Then, on October 14, 2008, the Treasury, the Board of
Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the
“FRB”), and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corpo-
ration (the “FDIC”) issued a joint statement announc-
ing additional steps aimed at stabilizing the financial
markets. First, the Treasury announced a $250 billion
voluntary Capital Purchase Program (the “CPP”) that
allows qualifying financial institutions to sell pre-
ferred shares to the Treasury. Second the FDIC
announced the Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Pro-
gram (the “TLGP”). The temporary guarantee com-
ponent of the program enables the FDIC to
temporarily guarantee the senior debt of all FDIC-
insured institutions and certain holding companies,
while the transaction guarantee component fully
insures all deposits in non-interest bearing transac-
tion accounts. Third, to further increase access to
funding for businesses in all sectors of the economy,
the FRB announced further details of its Commercial
Funding Facility program (the “CPFF”) which pro-
vides a broad backstop for the commercial paper
market.

These actions were intended to restore confidence in
the banking system, ease liquidity concerns and sta-
bilize the rapidly deteriorating economy. Institutions
not wanting to participate in one or both parts of the
TLGP were required to notify the FDIC of their
election to opt out on or before December 31,
2008. Institutions electing to participate are subject
to a fee of 75 basis points per annum based on the
amount of senior unsecured debt issued under the
temporary guarantee component and a ten basis point
surcharge will be added to the institutions current

FDIC insurance assessment for balances in non-inter-
est bearing transaction accounts that exceed the
$250,000 insurance limits.

During 2008, the Company and its banking subsid-
iary, the Cortland Savings and Banking Company
elected to participate in the TLGP. The Company was
eligible but did not participate in the federal govern-
ments Capital Purchase Program. This decision was
made based on the overall strong capital and liquidity
position. The Company meets regulatory require-
ments as a well capitalized institution.

2008 OVERVIEW

Net Income for 2008 was $2,353 or $0.52 per share,
representing a decrease of 45.3% from the $0.95 per
share earned in 2007.

The Company’s financial results for 2008 were
affected by two notable specific factors. Loan loss
reserves were bolstered by $1,290 in provision
expense during the fourth quarter giving recognition
to the current economic recession and expectations
for continued deterioration in credit quality arising
from the faltering economy. Total provisions for loan
loss were $1,785 in 2008, significantly higher than
provisions for loan loss of $40 recorded in 2007.

The increase in the loan loss provision was mostly
related to managements assessment of the increased
credit risk in the commercial real estate and com-
mercial loan portfolios and the current economic
environment.

While non-accrual loans and past due loans
decreased during 2008, loans charged off, net of
recoveries increased from $163 thousand in the
fourth quarter of 2007 to $414 thousand during the
same three month period of 2008. Net charge-offs for
the year were $630 thousand in 2007 as compared to
$936 thousand in 2008. The increase in net charge
offs was mostly related to commercial real estate
loans. As a result of the increase in loan loss provi-
sion, our allowance for loan losses as a percentage of
total loans is now 1.00% at December 31, 2008,
increasing from 0.73% at the end of 2007.

An other-than-temporary-impairment charge of
$1.251 million relates to an investment in General
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Motors Corporation (“GM”) Senior notes. General
Motors, faced with the prospect of running out of
cash, received emergency bailout funds from the
federal government in December and recently sub-
mitted a restructuring plan to the federal government.
GM credit ratings which had been rated as below
investment grade prior to receipt of government bail-
out funds continued to decline through the end of
2008 and the company is considering a possible
negotiation with bondholders which would effec-
tively cut outstanding corporate debt by up to two-
thirds. In light of the possibility of a negotiated
settlement with GM bondholders, rating agency
downgrades, an inactive market for the debt securities
and the financial instability of the domestic auto
maker in these turbulent economic times, it was
determined that the value of this particular corporate
security is other-than-temporary, requiring a charge
to income in the fourth quarter.

Core earnings, which exclude the other-than-tempo-
rary impairment charge, net gains on loans sold and
investment securities gains or losses, loss on other
real estate, and certain other non recurring items,
were $3.083 million in 2008, compared to the
$4.244 million earned in 2007. The largest difference
between core income in 2008 and 2007 relates to the
increase of $1,745 in provision for loan loss as
explained above. Core earnings per share were
$0.69 in 2008 and $0.93 in 2007, down $0.24 or
25.8%.

The following is a reconciliation between core earn-
ings and earnings under generally accepted account-
ing principles in the United States (GAAP earnings):
Years Ended
December 31,
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

GAAP earnings . . . . .. $2,353  $4,350 $4,576 $4,334 $ 4,843
Investment security

losses (gains) . . . . .. 1,112 (77)  (18) (308) (1,052)
Gain on sale of loans . . 30) (88) (106) (89) (54)
Other real estate (gain)

loss . ..o 43) 1 47 3 171
Other non-recurring

items® .. ... ... .. 67 4 (142) 243 19
Tax effect of

adjustments . . .. ... 376) 54 25 51 311
Core earnings . . .. ... $3,083 $4,244 $4,382 $4,234 $ 4,238

* Includes a one-time change in tax accrual estimate
made in the first quarter of 2006, and a one-time
cash bonus in the third quarter of 2005 paid to the
retiring C.E.O.

The Company’s net interest margin continues to be
affected by a sustained flattening and subsequent
inversion of the yield curve as represented by the
difference between long and short term interest rates.
The Company’s net interest income, on a fully tax-
able equivalent basis, did reflect a modest increase of
$262 from the preceding year, with the net interest
margin ratio improving to 3.49% from 3.45%.

Financial results also reflect an increase in expenses
associated with the Company’s strategic growth
plans. These expenses include costs for professional
consulting, information system software licensing
and maintenance, personnel and educational training
program for the Company’s employees.

Total shareholder’s equity at December 31 2008 was
$36,028 representing a ratio of equity capital to total
assets of 7.30%. On a comparable basis, shareholders
equity was $48,824 at December 31, 2007 represent-
ing a ratio of equity capital to total assets of 9.91%.

A component of shareholders equity is accumulated
other comprehensive income or loss. The accumulated
other comprehensive income or loss component,
includes the net after-tax impact of unrealized gains
or losses on investment securities classified as available
for sale. Net unrealized losses on available-for-sale
investment securities were $11,078 as compared with
net unrealized losses of $94 at December 31, 2007.
Such unrealized losses represent the difference, net of
applicable income tax effect, between the estimated fair
value and amortized cost of investment securities clas-
sified as available for sale. The increase in net unreal-
ized losses resulted primarily from pre-tax net
unrealized losses of $19.5 million on $34.6 million
of collateralized debt obligations at December 31, 2008.

Due to the severe disruption in the credit markets
during the second half of 2008, trading activity for
collateralized debt obligations was significantly
reduced. In estimating values for such securities, the
Company was significantly restricted in the level of
market observable assumptions used in the valuation
of its collateralized debt obligation securities portfolio.
Because of the inactivity and the lack of observable
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valuation inputs, the Company transferred $29.1 mil-
lion of its collateralized debt obligation security port-
folio from Level 2 to Level 3 valuations in the third
quarter of 2008. Investment Securities are discussed in
more detail in Note 2 and Note 12 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements and in the Management Discus-
sion and Analysis relative to Investment Securities
prescribed elsewhere herein.

Cash dividends paid in 2008 on the Company’s com-
mon stock totaled $3,877 compared with $3,899 in
2007. The Company maintained a $0.22 per share cash
dividend for 2007 and 2008. Dividends per common
share totaled $0.87 in 2008 and $0.86 in 2007.

Under a stock repurchase program, the Company
repurchased 51,817 shares of its common stock in
2008 and 205,986 shares in 2007 at a cost of $747 and
$3,526, respectively. The current repurchase program
terminates on February 28, 2009. The Company does
not intend on renewing the stock repurchase program
after this date.

Risk-based capital measured 17.15% at December 31,
2008 compared to 19.18% at December 31, 2007. All
capital ratios continue to register well in excess of
required regulatory minimums.

Return on average equity was 5.2% in 2008 com-
pared to 8.7% in 2007, while the year-over-year
return on average assets measured 0.48% compared
to 0.89% in 2007. Book value per share decreased by
$2.89 to $8.01. The price of the Company’s common
stock traded in a range between a low of $8.56 and a
high of $15.93, closing the year at $9.42 per share.
Although a special cash dividend was not paid in
2008 or 2007, as it had been in prior years, the
Company’s dividend payout remained aggressive as
165.38% of 2008 earnings were paid as cash divi-
dends compared to 89.69% in the prior year.

BALANCE SHEET COMPOSITION

The following table illustrates, during the years pre-
sented, the mix of the Company’s funding sources
and the assets in which those funds are invested as a
percentage of the Company’s average total assets for
the period indicated. Average assets totaled $488,371
in 2008 compared to $489,047 in 2007 and $460,359
in 2006.

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Sources of Funds:

Deposits:
Non-interest-bearing 11.6% 11.8% 124% 131% 12.8%
Interest-bearing 62.5 63.2 63.3 63.7 64.6

Federal funds purchased
and repurchase

agreements 1.0 1.3 1.0 0.7 0.7
Long-term debt and other

borrowings 13.5 12.2 11.9 10.6 9.7
Subordinated debt 1.1 0.5
Other non-interest-bearing

liabilities 1.1 0.8 0.7 0.7 1.0
Equity capital 9.2 10.2 10.7 11.2 11.2

Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Uses of Funds:

Loans 46.8% 44.1% 42.6% 43.4% 43.7%
Securities 45.7 48.9 51.0 49.9 48.7
Federal funds sold, and

other earning assets 2.3 14 0.9 0.8 13
Bank owned life insurance 2.6 24 2.5 2.5 23
Other non-interest-earning

assets 2.6 32 3.0 34 4.0

Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Deposits continue to be the Company’s primary
source of funding. During 2008, the relative mix of
deposits has remained steady with interest-bearing
being the main source. Average non-interest bearing
deposits totaled 15.6% of total average deposits in
2008 compared to 15.7% in 2007 and 16.4% in 2006.
(Also see section captioned “Deposits” included else-
where in the Management Discussion and Analysis.)

The Company primarily invests funds in loans and
securities. Securities had been the largest component
of the Company’s mix of invested assets but in 2008
loans became the largest component. During 2008
average securities decreased by $15,827 or 6.6%,
while average loans increased by $12,944 or 6.0%.

The Company has also purchased bank owned life
insurance policies on the lives of directors, certain
employees and key members of management in con-
junction with the Company’s benefit plans. The aver-
age balance increased from $12,024 in 2007 to
$12,490 in 2008, reflecting the buildup of cash sur-
render value.
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ASSET QUALITY

The Company’s management regularly monitors and
evaluates trends in asset quality. Loan review prac-
tices and procedures and require detailed monthly
analysis of delinquencies, nonperforming assets and
other sensitive credits. Mortgage, commercial and
consumer loans are moved to nonaccrual status once
they reach 90 days past due or when analysis of a
borrower’s creditworthiness indicates the collection
of interest and principal is in doubt.

Additionally, as part of the Company’s loan review
process, management routinely evaluates risks which
could potentially affect the ability to collect loan
balances in their entirety. Reviews of individual cred-
its, aggregate account relationships or any concen-
tration of credits in particular industries are subject to
a detailed loan review.

In addition to nonperforming loans, total nonper-
forming assets include nonperforming investment
securities and real estate acquired in satisfaction of
debts previously contracted. Underperforming
asset totals are comprised of nonperforming assets
as well as loans which have been restructured to
provide for a reduction of interest or principal
because of a deterioration in the financial condition
of the borrower. Also included as underperforming
assets are loans which are more than 89 days past
due that continue to accrue interest income. Gross
income that would have been recorded in 2008 on
these nonperforming loans, had they been in com-
pliance with their original terms, was $127. Inter-
est income that actually was included in income on
these loans amounted to $48. The following table
depicts the trend in these potentially problematic
asset categories.

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Nonaccrual loans:
1-4 residential

mortgages $ 237 $ 499§ 887 § 719 $ 661
Commercial mortgages 469 1,572 2,497 2472 2734
Commercial loans 140 146 188 210
Consumer loans 12 17 129 41
Home equity loans 51 222 304

Total Nonaccrual Loans 858 2,285 3923 3,746 3,395
Other real estate owned 809 282 35 82

Nonperforming Assets 1,667 2,567 3,958 3,828 3,395
Restructured loans 432 546

Underperforming Assets $2,099 $3,113 $3,958 $3,828 $3,395

The following table provides a number of asset qual-
ity ratios based on this data. Contrary to general

financial industry trends, the Company reported pos-
itive trends in certain areas of asset quality through
2008. Problem loans accounted for on a non accrual
basis, which had been $2.285 million at December 31,
2007, decreased to $858 at December 31, 2008. The
ratio of non accrual loans to total loans, which was
1.02% at year end 2007, improved to 0.35% at year
end 2008. The total of all loans past due more than 30
days, which were in excess of $2.943 million or
1.32% of loan balances at December 31, 2007,
declined to $1.393 million or 0.57% at December 31,
2008. While non-accrual loans and past due loans
decreased during 2008, loans charged off, net of
recoveries increased from $163 in the fourth quarter
of 2007 to $414 thousand during the same three
month period of 2008. Net charge-offs for the year
were $630 in 2007 as compared to $936 in 2008. The
increase in net charge-offs was mostly related to
commercial real estate loans.

Despite improving trends in certain asset quality
areas, the Company recognizes that an extraordinary
amount of uncertainty currently exists regarding
credit quality as a result of the rapid deterioration
of the U.S. economy during the final quarter of 2008.
Regionally, the housing market continues to be neg-
atively impacted by a high level of bankruptcy filings
and home foreclosures, while unemployment levels
continue to rise and business failures are now being
reported on a more routine basis. Accordingly, loan
loss reserves were bolstered to account for charge-
offs against the allowance and to give recognition to
the economy’s steep slide into a serious and likely
long lasting recession, with expectations for deteri-
oration on credit quality arising from faltering eco-
nomic and financial conditions. (See additional
information regarding the Company’s loans in the
sections captioned “Results of Operation” and
“Allowance for Loan Losses”).

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Nonperforming loans as a percentage

of total loans 0.35% 1.02% 1.91% 1.99% 1.77%
Nonperforming assets as a

percentage of total assets 0.34% 0.52% 0.84% 0.83% 0.76%
Underperforming assets as

a percentage of total assets 0.43% 0.63% 0.84% 0.83% 0.76%

Underperforming assets as
a percentage of equity capital plus
allowance for loan losses 545% 6.17% 7.50% 7.58% 6.52%




CORTLAND BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(In thousands of dollars, except for per share amounts)

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Analysis of Net Interest Income Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007

INTEREST-EARNING ASSETS
Federal funds sold and other earning assets
Investment securities(1)(2)
Loans(2)(3)

Total interest-earning assets

INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing demand deposits
Savings
Time

Total interest-bearing deposits
Federal funds purchased

Other borrowings
Subordinated debt

Total interest-bearing liabilities

Net interest income
Net interest rate spread(4)

Net interest margin(5)

(1) Includes both taxable and tax exempt securities.

NET INTEREST MARGIN FOR YEAR ENDED

December 31, 2008 December 31, 2007

Average Average Average Average
Balance(1) Interest Rate Balance(1) Interest Rate
$ 11462 $ 200 18% $ 6950 $ 366 53%
223,077 12,583 5.6% 238,904 13,664  5.7%
228,440 15,557 6.8% 215,496 15,856  7.4%
$462,979 $28,340 6.1% $461,350 $29,886 6.5%
$ 49653 $ 706 1.4% $ 46,508 $ 888 1.9%
77,401 851 1.1% 78,072 799 1.0%
178,372 7259 41% 184,586 8,769  4.8%
305,426 8816 29% 309,166 10,456  3.4%
154 7 45% 605 29  4.8%
70,807 3,110 4.4% 65,570 3,346 5.1%
5,155 244  4.7% 2,175 154 7.1%
$381,542 $12,177 3.2% $377,516  $13,985 3.7%

$16,163 $15,901

2.9% 2.8%
3.5% 3.5%

(2) Tax exempt interest is shown on a tax equivalent basis for proper comparison using a statutory federal income tax rate of 34%.

(3) Includes loan origination and commitment fees.

(4) Interest rate spread represents the difference between the yield on earning assets and the rate paid on interest bearing liabilities.
(5) Interest margin is calculated by dividing the difference between total interest earned and total interest expensed by total interest-earning

assets.
Net interest income, the principal source of the
Company’s earnings, is the amount by which interest
and fees generated by interest-earning assets, prima-
rily loans and investment securities, exceed the inter-
est cost of deposits and borrowed funds. During the
recent reporting period the net interest margin ratio
registered 3.49% in 2008, 3.45% in 2007 and 3.67%
in 2006.

The increase in the net interest margin ratio from the
previous year can be attributed in part, to the decrease
in cost of funds exceeding the decrease in loan yield
during the year.

The decrease in fully tax equivalent interest income
of $1,546 was the product of a 0.4% year-over-year
increase in average earning assets and a 36 basis point
decrease in interest rates earned, while the decrease
in interest expense was a product of a 1.1% increase
in interest-bearing liabilities and a 51 basis point
decrease in rates paid. The net result was a 1.6%
increase in net interest income on a fully tax equiv-
alent basis and a 4 basis point increase in the Com-
pany’s net interest margin.

Interest and dividend income on securities registered
a decrease of $964, or 7.5%, during the year ended
December 31, 2008 when compared to 2007. On a
fully tax equivalent basis, income on investment
securities decreased by $1,081, or 7.9%. The average
invested balances decreased by $15,827 from the
levels of a year ago. The decrease in the average
balance of investment securities was accompanied by
an 8 basis point decrease in the tax equivalent yield of
the portfolio. The decrease in the average balance of
investment securities resulted from a management
decision to not reinvest all of the proceeds from
called securities that were realized in 2008. (See
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 2, and Management Discussion and Analysis
on INVESTMENT SECURITIES).

Interest and fees on loans decreased by $299 on a
fully tax equivalent basis, or 1.9%, for the twelve
months of 2008 compared to 2007. A $12,944
increase in the average balance of the loan portfolio,
or 6.0%, was offset slightly by a 55 basis point
decrease in the portfolio’s tax equivalent yield. This
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increase in the average loan portfolio balance is a
direct result of an aggressive call program designed
to increase market share. The Company has also
benefited from new loan referrals from existing
customers as well as from a customer testimonial
advertising and marketing campaign which has gen-
erated interest in the Company’s line of products and
services. (See Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, Note 3 and the section captioned “Loan
Portfolio” included elsewhere in the Management
Discussion and Analysis).

Other interest income decreased by $166 from the
same period a year ago. The average balance of
federal funds sold and other earning assets increased
by $4,512, or 64.9%. The yield decreased by 351 basis
points during 2008 compared to 2007.

Average interest-bearing demand deposits and money
market accounts increased by $3,145, and savings
decreased by $671. The average rate paid on these
products decreased by 13 basis points in the aggre-
gate. The average balance on time deposit products
decreased by $6,214, as the average rate paid
decreased by 68 basis points, from 4.8% to 4.1%.

(See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 6, Deposits and the section captioned “Depos-
its” included elsewhere in the Management Discus-
sion and Analysis).

Compared to last year, average borrowings, federal
funds purchased and subordinated debt increased by
$7,766 while the average rate paid on borrowings
decreased by 75 basis points. (See Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, Notes 7 and 8
for information regarding borrowings and subordi-
nated debt).

Net interest income was reduced by provisions for
loan losses of $1,785 booked in 2008 as compared to
$40 booked for the same period in 2007. The amount
charged to operations as a provision for loan loss in
the year ended December 31, 2008 was made to
account for charge-offs against the allowance, and
to also account for managements assessment of the
increased credit risk in the commercial real estate and
commercial loan portfolios and the current economic
environment. (See section captioned Allowance for
Loan Loss included elsewhere in the Management
Discussion and Analysis).
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Analysis of Net Interest Income — Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

INTEREST-EARNING ASSETS
Federal funds sold and other earning assets
Investment securities(1)(2)
Loans(2)(3)
Total interest-earning assets
INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing demand deposits
Savings
Time
Total interest-bearing deposits

Federal funds purchased

Other borrowings
Subordinated debt

Total interest-bearing liabilities

Net interest income
Net interest rate spread(4)

Net interest margin(5)

(1) Includes both taxable and tax exempt securities.

NET INTEREST MARGIN FOR YEAR ENDED

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006

Average Average Average Average
Balance(1) Interest Rate Balance(1) Interest Rate
$ 6950 $ 366 53% $ 4228 $ 215 51%
238,904 13,664 5.7% 234,969 12,935  5.5%
215,496 15,856 7.4% 195,838 14,381 7.4%
$461,350 $29,886 6.5% $435,035 $27,531 6.3%
$ 46,508 $ 888 1.9% $ 47415 $ 752 1.6%
78,072 799  1.0% 82,845 850 1.0%
184,586 8,769 4.8% 161,050 6,907 4.3%
309,166 10,456 3.4% 291,310 8,509 2.9%
605 29 4.8% 478 25 53%
65,570 3346 5.1% 58,773 3,048 5.2%

2,175 154 71%
$377,516 $13,985 3.7% $350,561 $11,582 3.3%
$15,901 $15,949

2.8% 3.0%
3.5% 3.7%

(2) Tax exempt interest is shown on a tax equivalent basis for proper comparison using a statutory federal income tax rate of 34%.

(3) Includes loan origination and commitment fees.

(4) Interest rate spread represents the difference between the yield on earning assets and the rate paid on interest bearing liabilities.
(5) Interest margin is calculated by dividing the difference between total interest earned and total interest expensed by total interest-earning

assets.

The increase in fully tax equivalent interest income
was the product of a 6.0% year-over-year increase in
average earning assets and a 14 basis point increase in
interest rates earned, while the increase in interest
expense was a product of a 7.7% increase in interest-
bearing liabilities and a 40 basis point increase in
rates paid. The net result was a 0.3% decrease in net
interest income on a fully tax equivalent basis and a
22 basis point decrease in the net interest margin.

Interest and dividend income on securities registered
an increase of $851, or 7.1%, during the year ended
December 31, 2007 when compared to 2006. On a
fully tax equivalent basis, income on investment
securities increased by $729, or 5.6%. The average
invested balances increased by $3,935 from the levels
of a year ago. The increase in the average balance of
investment securities was accompanied by a 21 basis
point increase in the tax equivalent yield of the
portfolio.

Interest and fees on loans increased by $1,475 on a
fully tax equivalent basis, or 10.3%, for the twelve

months of 2007 compared to 2006. The portfolio’s tax
equivalent yield remained consistent between 2007 and
2006, however, the average balance of the loan port-
folio increased by $19,658 or 10% between periods.
This increase in the average loan portfolio balance is a
direct result of an aggressive call program designed to
increase market share. The Company has also benefited
from new loan referrals from existing customers as
well as from a customer testimonial advertising and
marketing campaign which has generated interest in
the Company’s line of products and services.

Other interest income increased by $151 from the
same period a year ago. The average balance of
federal funds sold and other money market funds
increased by $2,722, or 64.4%. The yield increased
by 18 basis points during 2007 compared to 2006.

Average interest-bearing demand deposits and money
market accounts decreased by $907, and savings
decreased by $4,773. The average rate paid on these
products increased by 12 basis points in the aggre-
gate. The average balance on time deposit products
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increased by $23,536, as the average rate paid $9,099 while the average rate paid on borrowings

increased by 46 basis points, from 4.3% to 4.8%. decreased by 2 basis points. (See Notes 7 and 8 for
. information regarding borrowings and subordinated
Compared to last year, average borrowings, federal debt.)

funds purchased and subordinated debt increased by

The following table provides a detailed analysis of changes in net interest income, identifying that portion of the
change that is due to a change in the volume of average assets and liabilities outstanding versus that portion which
is due to a change in the average yields on earning assets and average rates on interest-bearing liabilities. Changes
in interest due to both rate and volume which cannot be segregated have been allocated to rate and volume
changes in proportion to the relationship of the absolute dollar amounts of the change in each.

Analysis of Net Interest Income Changes (Taxable Equivalent Basis)

2008 Compared to 2007 2007 Compared to 2006
Volume Rate Total Volume  Rate Total

Increase (Decrease) in Interest Income:
Federal funds sold and other money
markets .. ... $ 159 $ (325 $ (166) | $ 143 $ 8 % 151
Investment Securities
U.S. Treasury and other U.S.
Government agencies and

COTPOrations . ................... (1,843) 173 (1,670) 223 292 515
U.S. Government mortgage-backed
pass-through certificates ........... 761 83 844 66 147 213
States of the U.S. and political
subdivisions . ................... (398) (398) (346) (16) (362)
Other securities. . .................. 476 (333) 143 215 148 363
Loans. .............. ... .. ... 921 (1,220) (299) 1,446 29 1,475
Total Interest Income Change . . ........... 76 (1,622) (1,546) 1,747 608 2,355
Increase (Decrease) in Interest Expense:
Interest-bearing demand deposits. . . ... ... 57 (239) (182) (14) 150 136
Savings deposits. ... ... 7 59 52 (49) (2) (51)
Time deposits. .. ...........c..oi.... (287) (1,223) (1,510) 1,072 790 1,862
Federal funds purchased . .............. (21) 1) (22) 6 (2) 4
Securities sold under agreements to
repurchase ....................... (36) (115) (151) 74 11 85
Other borrowings under one year ........ (422) (65) (487) 305 45 350
Other borrowings over one year ......... 723 (321) 402 (54) (83) (137)
Subordinated debt. . .................. 155 (65) 920 154 154
Total Interest Expense Change . ........... 162 (1,970) (1,808) 1,494 909 2,403

Increase (Decrease) in Net Interest Income
on a Taxable Equivalent Basis . ........ $ 86) $ 348 $ 262 $ 253  $301) $ (48
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Analysis of Other Income, Other Expense and
Federal Income Tax

Total other income for 2008 decreased $1,230, or 39.8%
compared to an increase of $254, or 9.0% in 2007. Fees for
customer services increased by $7, or 0.3%, compared to
an increase of $68 or 3.0% in the prior year.

Loans originated for sale in the secondary market showed
gains of $30 in 2008, compared to $88 and $106 in 2007
and 2006, respectively. The early call of held to maturity
securities, and transactions involving available for sale
securities, combined to produce net gains of $139 in 2008,
$77 in 2007 and $18 in 2006. 2008 gains were offset by a
$1,251 other-than temporary impairment loss attributable
to its General Motor Corporation investment in bonds.

With rates falling, U.S. Government agencies and corpo-
rations elected to call an increasing number of issues. The
Bank held several of these issues at a discount and thus
recognized a gain when they were called.

A gain of $43 was recorded in 2008 on property owned
as Other Real Estate (OREO). This gain resulted from
the sale of one property that was held in OREO since
2007. Losses of $1 and $47 where recorded on other real
estate in 2007 and 2006 respectively. Earnings on bank
owned life insurance showed an increase of $16 in 2008
compared to an increase of $88 in 2007. Other non-
interest income decreased by $50 during 2008 following
an $11 increase in 2007. This income category is subject
to fluctuation due to the nonrecurring nature of trans-
actions recorded in the non interest income category. In
2008 other income was reduced by a $67 loss on dis-
position of fixed assets in connection with the relocation
of two branch locations which had been operating in
leased facilities, to newly constructed bank owned
facilities.

Other Income
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Fees for other

customer services  $ 2,314  $2,307  $2,239  $2,254  $2.327
Gain on sale of loans 30 88 106 89 54
Other real estate gains

(losses) 43 (€))] (47) 3) (171)
Earnings on bank

owned

life insurance 537 521 433 341 444
Other operating

income 47 97 86 126 125

2,971 3,012 2,817 2,807 2,779
Investment securities
net gains (losses) (1,112) 77 18 308 1,052

Total other income $ 1,859 $3,089 $2,835  $3,115  $3,831

Total other expenses increased by $220 or 1.7% in 2008.
This compares to an increase of $574 or 4.8% in 2007.
During 2008, expenditures for salaries and employee ben-
efits decreased by $43 or 0.6%. This decrease is a com-
bination of regular staff salary and benefit increases and a
decrease in full-time equivalent employment, which aver-
aged 161 in 2008 compared to 164 in 2007. In 2007 these
expenditures increased by $423 or 6.2%. This was also due
to salary and benefit increases and an increase in full-time
equivalent employees from 161 in 2006 to 164 in 2007.
Occupancy and equipment expense increased by $86, or
4.5%, during 2008 and increased by $60, or 3.3%, in 2007.
The increase in 2008 is due to the opening of a new leased
facility and the relocation of two branch locations which
had been operating in leased facilities to newly constructed
Bank owned facilities. The increase in 2007 was due, in
part, to construction of a banking facility to house a branch
that previously operated out of a leased location.

State and local taxes stayed fairly consistent from year
to year. Bank exam and audit expense increased by $17
or 3.8% in 2008 following a decrease of $43 or 8.8% in
2007. All other categories of non-interest expense
increased by $188 in 2008 following an increase of
$106 in 2007. This expense category is subject to fluc-
tuation due to non-recurring items. The increase in 2008
is due in part to expenses associated with the Company’s
Strategic Growth Plan initiated in mid 2007. These
expenses include costs for professional consulting,
information system software licensing and maintenance
and educational programs for the Company’s employ-
ees. The increase is also due to an $89 increase in
marketing expense, which is due, in part, to the new
branch opening, graphical and content redesign of the
bank home page and production and media costs relat-
ing to a customer testimonial marketing campaign.

Non-Interest Expense

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Salaries and benefits $ 7,156 $ 7,199 $ 6,776 $ 7,052 $ 6,722
Net occupancy and

equipment

expense 1,957 1,871 1,811 1,870 1853
State and local taxes 552 580 552 548 544
Office supplies 368 396 367 338 346
Bank exam and

audit 460 443 486 427 515
Other operating

expense 2,322 2,106 2,029 1,965 1,881

Total other expenses  $12,815 $12,595 $12,021 $12,200 $11,861
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Salaries and employee benefits represented 55.8% of
all non-interest expenses in 2008, 57.2% in 2007 and
56.4% in 2006. Salaries and employee benefits
decreased by $276 in 2006 followed by an increase

of $423 in 2007 and a decrease of $43 in 2008. The
following details components of these increases or
decreases:

Analysis of Changes in Salaries & Benefits

Amounts Percent
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Salaries $(148) $252  $(176) $317 $28) @7NDN% 47% (B2)% 6.1% (1.14)%
Benefits 115 145 (77) (29) 85 6.5 9.0 “4.6) (1.7) 52
33) 397 (253) 288 57 0.4) 5.7 3.5) 4.2 0.8
Def’d Loan Origination (10) 26 (23) 42 79 (7.4) 16.1 (16.7) 233 30.5
$ 43) $423 $(276) $330  $136 0.6)% 62% (3.9% 4.9% 2.1%

Wage and salary expense per employee averaged
$33,708 in 2008 $33,994 in 2007 and $33,063 in
2006. Full-time equivalent employment averaged
161 employees in 2008, 164 employees in 2007
and 161 employees in 2006. Average earning assets
per employee measured $2,876 in 2008, $2,813 in
2007 and $2,702 in 2006.

Income before income tax expense amounted to
$2,641 for the year ended 2008 compared to
$5,461 and $5,504 for the similar periods of 2007
and 2006, respectively. The effective tax rate was
10.9% in 2008, 20.3% in 2007 and 16.9% in 2006,
resulting in income tax of $288, $1,111 and $928,
respectively. The decrease in the effective tax rate in

2006 reflects a one time adjustment to tax expense of
$145 due to a change in tax accrual estimate. The
effective tax rate before the $145 adjustment was
19.5%. The increase in 2007 resulted from a reduc-
tion in tax free income. While the provision for
income taxes for 2008 differs from the amount of
income tax determined applying the applicable
U.S. statutory federal income tax rate to pre-tax
income as a result of the $1,785 provision for loan
loss expense and the other-than-temporary
impairment loss of $1,251 in 2008 which are dis-
cussed in the section captioned “Significant Devel-
opments” included elsewhere in the Management
Discussion and Analysis.

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Provision at Statutory rate . . . . ... ...t $898 $1,857 $1,871  $1,798  $ 1,983
Add (Deduct):
Tax effect of non-taxable income . . ... ...................... (695) (846) (909) 921) (1,084)
Tax effect of non-deductible expense . . ...................... 85 100 111 80 91
Tax effect of change in estimate®. . .. ........ ... ... ....... (145)
Federal income taxes . . .. ... .. v it $288 $1,111  $ 928 $ 957 $ 990

December 31,

One time adjustment to tax accrual estimate

Net income registered $2,353 in 2008, $4,350 in 2007
and $4,576 in 2006 representing per share amounts of
$0.52 in 2008, $0.95 in 2007 and $0.99 in 2006. Net
income for 2008 prior to the other-than-temporary
impairment charge and the increase in loan loss
allowance was $4,036 or $0.91 per share. Dividends

declared per share were $0.86 in 2008, $0.85 in 2007
and $0.84 in 2006. Per share amounts have been
restated to give retroactive effect to the 1% common
stock dividend of January 1, 2009, and the 1% stock
dividend declared on March 9, 2009.
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FOURTH QUARTER 2008 AS

COMPARED TO FOURTH QUARTER 2007
NET INTEREST MARGIN FOR QUARTER ENDED

December 31, 2008 December 31, 2007

Average Average Average Average
(Unaudited) Balance(l1) Interest Rate Balance(1)  Interest Rate
INTEREST-EARNING ASSETS
Federal funds sold and other money market funds . ... $ 12,363 $ 21 07% $ 951 $ 13 52%
Investment securities(1)(2) . . ....... ... ... 216,557 3,074 5.7% 242596 3,541 5.8%
Loans(2)(3) . o oo oo e e 234,495 3,897 6.6% 222,208 4,125 7.4%
Total interest-earning assets. . .. ................ $463,415 $6,992 6.0% $465,755 $7,679 6.6%
INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing demand deposits . . ............... $ 53,68 $ 195 14% $ 47,497 $ 235 2.0%
SAVINGS . v 79,102 231 1.3% 75,332 197  1.0%
Time. ..o 175,378 1,599 3.6% 185,152 2220 4.8%
Total interest-bearing deposits. . .. .............. 308,166 2,025 2.6% 307,981 2,652 3.4%
Federal funds purchased ....................... 2,374 29 4.8%
Other borrowings. . . ..., 68,625 737 4.3% 68,589 849 4.9%
Subordinated debt . . .............. .. ... ... ... 5,155 54 4.1% 5,155 93 7.0%
Total interest-bearing liabilities . . . ... ........... $381,946 $2,816 2.9% $384,099 $3,623 3.7%
Net interest inCOME . . . .. ..o v vv i e e e e $4,176 $4,056
Net interest rate spread(4) .. ....... ..., 3.1% 2.9%
Net interest margin(5) ... ..., 3.6% 3.5%

(1) Includes both taxable and tax exempt securities.

(2) Tax exempt interest is shown on a tax equivalent basis for proper comparison using a statutory federal income tax rate of 34%.

(3) Includes loan origination and commitment fees.

(4) Interest rate spread represents the difference between the yield on earning assets and the rate paid on interest bearing liabilities.
(5) Interest margin is calculated by dividing the difference between total interest earned and total interest expensed by total interest-earning

assets.

Tax equivalent net interest income for the Company
during the fourth quarter of 2008 increased by $120, a
3.0% increase from the fourth quarter of 2007. The
yield on earning assets decreased by 55 basis points
while fourth quarter average earning assets decreased
0.5%, or $2,340, when compared to a year ago. The
result was a decrease in tax equivalent interest

income of $687. The rate paid on interest-bearing
liabilities decreased by 81 basis points, while fourth
quarter average interest-bearing liabilities decreased
by $2,153 when compared to a year ago, resulting in a
decrease in total interest expense of $807. The net
interest margin for the quarter registered 3.61%, up
12 basis points from the same quarter a year ago.
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The following table shows financial results by quarter for the years ending December 31, 2008 and 2007:

FINANCIAL RESULTS BY QUARTER

(Unaudited)
2008 2007
For the Quarter Ended For the Quarter Ended
Dec. 31 Sept. 30 June 30  March 31 Dec. 31 Sept. 30 June 30 March 31

Interest Income $6800 $6849 $ 6,844 $ 7,066 $ 7467 $7344 $7,251 $ 6,930
Interest Expense 2,816 2,921 3,051 3,389 3,623 3,651 3,495 3,216
Net Interest Income 3,984 3,928 3,793 3,677 3,844 3,693 3,756 3,714
Loan Loss Provision (1,290) (105) (315) (75) (40)
Net Security Gains (losses) (1,228) 34 9 73 40 5 20 12
Net Gain on Loans 5 4 11 10 10 35 27 16
Other real estate (losses) gains (6) ?2) — 51 [€))]
Other Income 671 762 728 737 761 749 719 696
Other Expenses 3,143) (3,258)  (3,257) (3,157) (3,194)  (3,132)  (3,206) (3,063)
Income (loss) Before Tax (1,007) 1,363 969 1,316 1,421 1,350 1,315 1,375
Federal Income Tax (benefit) (443) 285 164 282 305 275 258 273
Net Income (loss) $ (564) $1,078 $ 805 $ 1,034 $ 1,116 $1,075 $ 1,057 $ 1,102
Net Income (loss) Per Share $013) $ 024 $ 0.18 $ 0.23 $ 025 $ 023 $ 023 $ 024
Net Core Income $ 286 $1,058 $ 793 $ 946 $1,083 $1,048 $1,027 $ 1,086
Net Core Income Per Share $ 006 $ 024 $ 018 $ 0.21 $ 024 $ 023 $ 022 $ 024
Net Interest Income

(fully taxable equivalent basis) $4176 $4,123 $8990 $ 3,874 $4056 $3911 $3984 $3,950
Net Interest Rate Spread 3.1% 3.1% 2.9% 2.7% 2.9% 2.7% 2.7% 2.8%
Net Interest Margin 3.6% 3.6% 3.4% 3.3% 3.5% 3.4% 3.5% 3.5%

Loan charge-offs during the quarter were $445 in 2008
compared to $191 in 2007, while the recovery of previ-
ously charged-off loans amounted to $31 during the fourth
quarter of 2008 compared to $28 in the same period of
2007. The Company’s provision for loan losses during the
quarter was $1,290 compared to $40 a year ago. Charge
offs of specific problem loans, as well as for smaller
balance homogeneous loans, are recorded periodically
during the year. The number of loan accounts and the
amount of charge-off associated with account balances
vary from period to period as loans are deemed uncollect-
ible by management. The balance of the allowance for loan
loss and provisions to the loan loss allowance are based on
an assessment and the risk of loss and the amount of loss on
loans within the portfolio. The amount charged to opera-
tions as a provision for loan loss in the quarter ended
December 31, 2008 was made to account for charge-offs
against the allowance and to account for; managements
assessment of the increased credit risk, specifically in the
commercial real estate and commercial loan portfolios, and
a rapidly deteriorating economic environment.

All categories of non-interest income decreased by $1,369
or 168.8% from a year ago. The net gain on loans sold during
the quarter amounted to $5, compared to $10 a year ago.
Loss on the sale of other real estate decreased to $(6) in 2008
with none in 2007. The early call of held to maturity
securities, and transactions involving available for sale
securities produced gains of $23 in the fourth quarter of

2008 compared to $40 in the same quarter of 2007. Gains on
investments were offset by a $1,251 other-than-temporary
loss attributable to its investment in General Motor Corpo-
ration bonds. Fees for customer services decreased by $26.
Non taxable earnings on bank owned life insurance policies
increased by $2. Other income decreased by $66. This
decrease is due in part to a $59 loss on the disposition of
assets relating to the relocation of a branch office in Mahon-
ing County.

Total other non-interest expenses in the fourth quarter were
$3,143 in 2008 compared to $3,194 in 2007, a decrease of
$51 or 1.6%. Salaries and benefits constituted a $21
increase, or 1.8%. Bank exam and audit fees decreased
by $12 or 8.8% mainly due to the timing of expenses
associated with the implementation of the requirements of
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Other
expenses decreased by $60 or 4.6%.

Income before income tax during the fourth quarter
amounted to $(1,007) in 2008 compared to $1,421 in
2007. Income tax expense for the fourth quarter of 2008
was $(443) as compared to $305 in 2007. Fourth quarter net
loss was $(564) in 2008 compared to net income of $1,116
in 2007, representing a decrease of $1,680. Earnings in the
fourth quarter of 2008, prior to the other-than-temporary
impairment charge and the increase in loan loss allowance
provision was $1,119 or $0.25 per share.

Earnings per share for the fourth quarter, adjusted for the
1% stock dividend paid January 1, 2009 and the 1% stock
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dividend declared March 9, 2009, were $(0.13) in 2008 and Realized gains or losses on securities are based on net
$0.25 in 2007. proceeds and the adjusted carrying amount of the securi-
ties, using the specific identification method. The table

Core earnings (earnings before gains on loans sold, invest- ‘ !
below sets forth the proceeds, gains and losses realized on

ment securities sold or called and certain other non recurring

items) decreased by $797 in the fourth quarter of 2008 securities sold or called for the perilgliireeénded: Twelve
compared to 2007. Core earnings for the fourth quarter of Months Months
2008 were $286 compared to last year’s $1,083. The largest Dece;‘(‘)ggr 31, Dece;l)l(;gr 3L
difference between core income in 2008 and 2007 relates to

the increase of $1,250 in provisions for loan losses in the Proceeds on securities sold or

quarter. Core earnings per share were $0.06 in 2008 and $0.24 called . .. ... ... ... . $5,802 $42,325

in 2007. The following is a reconciliation between core
earnings and earnings under generally accepted accounting
rinciples in the United States (GAAP earnings):

Gross realized gains. . ... ... 23 139
Gross realized losses . . . . ...

Three Months Ended
December 31,

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

GAAP earnings . . . . . . $ (564)$1,116 $1,182 $1,093 $1,305
Gain on sale of loans . . 5) 10y @37 30) (13)

Investment losses

(gains) . ......... 1,228 (40) (378)
Other real estate loss. . . 6 12 3
Loss on fixed assets . . . 59

Tax effect of
adjustments . . .. ... (438) 17 9 9 133

Core earnings . . .. ... $ 286 $1,083 $1,166 $1,075 $1,047

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

The allowance for loan losses is a reserve established through a provision for loan losses charged to expense, which represents
management’s best estimate of probable losses that have been incurred within the existing portfolio of loans. The allowance, in
the judgment of management, is necessary to reserve for estimated loan losses on risks inherent in the loan portfolio. The
Company’s allowance for loan loss methodology is based on guidance provided to SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 102,
“Selected Loan Loss Allowance Methodology and Documentation Issues” and includes allowance allocations calculated in
accordance with SFAS No. 114, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan,” as amended by SFAS 118, and allowance
allocations calculated in accordance with SFAS No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies.” Accordingly, the methodology is based
on historical loss experience by type of credit and internal risk grade, specific homogeneous risk pools, and specific loss
allocations, with adjustments for current events and conditions. The Company’s process for determining the appropriate level of
the allowance for loan losses is designed to account for credit deterioration as it occurs.

The Company’s allowance for loan loss methodology consists of three elements: (i) specific valuation allowances
determined in accordance with SFAS 114 based on probable losses on specific loans; (ii) historical valuation
allowances determined in accordance with SFAS 5 based on historical loan loss experience for similar loans with
similar characteristics and trends; and (iii) general valuation allowances determined in accordance with SFAS 5
based on general economic conditions and other qualitative risk factors both internal and external to the Company.

The allowances established for probable losses on specific loans are based on a regular analysis and evaluation of
classified loans. Loans are categorized into risk grade classifications based on an internal credit risk grading
process that evaluates, among other things: (i) the obligor’s ability to repay; (ii) the underlying collateral, if any;
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and (iii) the economic environment and industry in which the borrower operates. Once a loan is assigned a risk
grade of classified, the loan review officer assesses whether the loan is to be evaluated for impairment under
SFAS 114 based on the Company policy. A portion of the allowance for loan loss is specifically allocated to those
loans which are evaluated for impairment and determined to be impaired. Specific valuation allowances are
determined by analyzing the borrower’s ability to repay amounts owed, collateral deficiencies, the relative risk
grade of the loan and economic conditions affecting the borrower’s industry, among other things.

If after review, a specific valuation allowance is not assigned to the loan, and the loan is not considered to be
impaired, the loan is included with a pool of similar loans that is assigned a valuation allowance calculated based
on the historical loss experience of the pool type. The valuation allowance is calculated in accordance with
SFAS 5 based on the historical loss experience of specific types of classified loans. The Company calculates
historical loss ratios for pools of loans with similar characteristics based on the proportion of actual charge-offs
experienced to the total population of loans in the pool. The historical loss ratios are periodically updated based
on actual charge-off experience.

A general valuation allowance is established for pools of homogeneous loans based upon the product of the
historical loss ratio adjusted for qualitative factors and the total dollar amount of the loans in the pool. Specific
qualitative factors considered by management include trends in volume or terms, changes in lending policy,
trends in delinquent and non-accrual loans, concentrations of credit and local and national economic factors. The
Company’s pools of similar loans include similarly risk-graded groups of commercial and industrial loans,
commercial real estate loans, consumer loans and 1-4 family residential mortgages.

Loans identified as losses by management, internal loan review and/or bank examiners are charged-off.
Furthermore, consumer loan accounts are charged-off in accordance with regulatory requirements.

The Company maintains an allowance for losses on unfunded commercial lending commitments to provide for
the risk of loss inherent in these arrangements. The allowance is computed using a methodology similar to that
used to determine the allowance for loan losses. This allowance is reported as a liability on the balance sheet
within accrued expenses and other liabilities, while the corresponding provision for these losses is recorded as a
component of other expense.

Portions of the allowance may be allocated for specific credits; however, the entire allowance is available for any
credit that, in management’s judgment, should be charged off. While management utilizes its best judgment and
information available, the ultimate adequacy of the allowance is dependent upon a variety of factors beyond the
Company’s control, including the performance of the Company’s loan portfolio, the economy, changes in interest
rates and the view of the regulatory authorities toward loan classifications.

Although we believe we use the best information available to make loan loss allowance determinations, future
adjustments could be necessary if circumstances or economic conditions differ substantially from the assump-
tions used in making our initial determinations. Continued levels of job loss and high unemployment, home
foreclosures and business failures could result in increased levels of nonperforming assets and charge-offs,
increased loan loss provisions and reductions in income. Additionally, as an integral part of their examination
process, bank regulatory agencies periodically review our allowance for loan losses. The banking agencies could
require the recognition of additions to the loan less allowance based on their judgment of information available to
them at the time of their examination.
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2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Balance at beginning of year . . . .. ... .. ... $ 1,621 $2211 $2,168 $2,629 $2,408
Loan losses:
1-4 family residential mortgages. . . . .. .. ... ... . o (184) 92) 29) (87) (80)
Commercial MOrtgages . . . . . . . .ottt (624) (395) 20) (734) (108)
Consumer and other loans . . . .. ......... ... ... . ... (255) (232) (199) (203) (66)
Commercial 10ans . . . .. ... .. ... (20) N (40) (89) (10)
Home equity loans. . . . . ... ..t a7 (8) (6)

(1,100) (728) (288)  (1,119) (264)

Recoveries on previous loan losses:
1-4 family residential mortgages. . . . .. ... ... ...

Commercial MOrtgages . . . . . ... ..ot 3 5
Consumer and other loans. . . .. ... ... ... . 126 92 99 100 65
Commercial loans . . .. ... ... . 35 1 7 13 5
Home equity loans. . . ... ... ... .
164 98 106 113 70
Net 10an 10SSES . . o v vttt (936) (630) (182)  (1,006) (194)
Provision charged to operations . . .. ... ... ... ... 1,785 40 225 545 415
Balance atend of year . .. .. ... . ... $ 2470 $1,621 $2211 $2,168 $2,629
Ratio of net loan losses to
average net loans outstanding . . ... ... ... .. L L L L 0.42 % 0.29% 0.09% 0.53% 0.10%
Ratio of loan loss allowance to total loans . . .. ....................... 1.00% 0.73% 1.08% 1.15% 1.37%

The spike in charge-offs during 2005 and 2008 primarily reflected certain impaired commercial loan credits for
which specific loss reserves had been established.

The following is an allocation of the year end allowance for loan losses. The allowance has been allocated
according to the amount deemed to be reasonably necessary to provide for the possibility of losses being incurred
within the following categories of loans as of December 31, for the years indicated:

2008 2007 2006 2005 %
Types of Loans
1-4 family residential mortgages. . . . ... .............. $ 287 $ 258 $ 209 $ 243 $ 265
Commercial mortgages . . . .. ... ... 1,663 954 1,441 1,397 1,808
Consumer and other loans . . ... .................... 226 214 183 160 50
Commercial loans . . .. ................ . ... ... 257 194 376 364 505
Home equity loans. . . .. ... ... ... .. .. ... .. ... .. 37 1 2 4 1

$2,470 $1,621 $2,211 $2,168 $2,629

During 2008, the reserve allocated to all categories of loans increased compared to 2007, particularly on
commercial mortgages and commercial loans primarily due in part to an increase in net charge-offs in 2008 and
an increase in provision expense on non impaired loan balances to give recognition to management’s assessment
of the increased credit risk in the commercial real estate and commercial loan portfolios and a rapidly
deteriorating economic environment.

The allocations of the allowance as shown in the table above should not be interpreted as an indication that future
loan losses will occur in the same proportions or that the allocations indicate future loan loss trends. Furthermore,
the portion allocated to each loan category is not the total amount available for future losses that might occur
within such categories since the total allowance is applicable to the entire portfolio, and allocation at a portion of
the allowance to one category of loans does not preclude availability to absorb losses in other categories.




CORTLAND BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(In thousands of dollars, except for per share amounts)

LOAN PORTFOLIO

The following table represents the composition of the loan portfolio as of December 31, for the years indicated:

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Balance % Balance %0 Balance %0 Balance Y% Balance %0

Types of Loans
1-4 family residential

mortgages . ........... $ 68,985 28.0 $ 68,135 30.5 $ 62,882 30.6 $ 59910 31.8 $ 61,238 31.9
Commercial mortgages . . . . . 128,705 52.3 120,950 54.3 106,160 51.7 90,983 48.3 94,019 49.0
Consumer loans . . . ....... 8,162 3.3 8,484 3.8 7,745 3.8 6,714 3.6 6,087 3.2
Commercial loans . ....... 27,750 11.3 14981 6.7 17,505 8.5 19,767 10.5 19,188 10.0
Home equity loans . . . ... .. 12,179 5.0 10,559 4.7 10,807 5.3 10,828 5.8 11,245 59
1-4 family residential loans

held forsale. . ......... 236 0.1 109 0.1
Total loans . . . .......... $246,017 $223,109 $205,208 $188,202 $191,777

The following schedule sets forth maturities based on remaining scheduled repayments of principal or next
repricing opportunity for loans (excluding 1-4 family and consumer loans) as of December 31, 2008:

Types of Loans
Commercial loans

Commercial mortgages

Home equity

Total loans (excluding 1-4 family mortgage
and consumer loans)

1 Year 1 to Over

or Less 5 Years 5 Years Total

$14,613 $ 7,405 $ 5,732 $ 27,750
31,362 69,641 27,702 128,705
12,179 12,179

$58,154 $77,046 $33,434 $168,634

The following schedule sets forth loans as of December 31, 2008 based on next repricing opportunity for floating
and adjustable interest rate products, and by remaining scheduled principal payments for loan products with fixed

rates of interest. 1-4 family and consumer loans have

again been excluded.

Types of Loans
Floating or adjustable rates of interest

Fixed rates of interest. . . ..................

Total loans (excluding 1-4 family mortgage
and consumer loans)

1 Year Over
or Less 1 Year
$56,354 $ 86,986
1,800 23,494
$58,154 $110,480

Total

$143,340
25,294

$168,634
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The Company recorded an increase of $22,908 in the
loan portfolio from the level of $223,109 recorded at
December 31, 2007. Gross loans as a percentage of
earning assets stood at 53.9% as of December 31,
2008 and 48.3% at December 31, 2007. The loan to
deposit ratio at the end of 2008 was 64.7% as com-
pared to 61.2% for the same period a year ago. The
increase in loans has primarily resulted from an
aggressive call program designed to increase market
share. The Company has also benefited from new
loan referrals from existing customers as well as from
a customer testimonial advertising and marketing
campaign which has generated interest in the Com-
pany’s line of products and services. At December 31,
2008 the loan loss allowance of $2,470 represented
approximately 1.0% of outstanding loans, and at
December 31, 2007, the loan loss allowance of
$1,621 represented approximately 0.7% of outstand-
ing loans.

Between 2007 and 2008, the balance of residential
mortgage loans remained relatively unchanged.
However, 1-4 family residential mortgages represent
28.1% of total loans in the loan portfolio compared to
30.5% in 2007. The portion of the loan portfolio
represented by commercial loans (including commer-
cial real estate) increased from 61.0% in 2007 to
63.6% in 2008. Consumer loans (including home
equity loans) decreased from 8.5% in 2007 to
8.3% in 2008.

Commercial real estate and 1-4 residential loans
continue to comprise the largest share of the Com-
pany’s loan portfolio. At the end of 2008, residential
loans and commercial loans comprised a combined
91.7% of the portfolio, compared to 91.2% five years
ago. Home equity loans at 5.0% and consumer
installment at 3.3% comprise the remainder of the
portfolio in 2008.

LOAN PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION
(In Percentages)

Homg Equity :\A(‘)‘rfa;“'e'g Home Equity 1-4 Family
Consumer 2319 5.0 Mortgages

33 30.7
Consumer

3.8

Commercial Commercial
63.6 60.5

2008 2003

For fiscal year ended 2008, approximately $8,200 in
new mortgage loans were originated by the Company,
a decrease of approximately $8,100 from 2007
originations.

The following shows the disposition of mortgage
loans originated during 2004 to 2008 (in millions):
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Retained in

Portfolio . . ...... $6.2 $10.1
Loans Sold to

Investors with

Servicing Rights

Released . . ...... $2.0 $ 62 $69 $6.6 $4.0

$8.3 $7.6 $8.0

The Company’s product offerings continue to include a
service release sales program, which permits the Com-
pany the ability to offer competitive long-term fixed
interest rates without incurring additional credit or
interest rate risk.

During 2008, the Company sold fewer residential mort-
gage loans under the service release sales program and
retained fewer portfolio loans in comparison to 2007
totals. Mortgage loan originations are typically quali-
fied for sale to investors in the secondary market, but are
occasionally retained in the portfolio when requested by
a customer or to enhance account relationships for
certain customers. The mix of portfolio retained to those
sold to investors will vary from year to year. In 2008,
Community Bank managers assumed responsibilities
for mortgage originations. Mortgage originators were
previously responsible for originations but these posi-
tions were eliminated during the year as part of a branch
restructuring plan. The decrease in mortgage origina-
tions during 2008 was not specifically related to the
branch restructuring. Rather, the decline resulted from a
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combination of decreased demand, tighter underwriting
standards, and a concerted focus on asset quality. Orig-
inations were down in 2008 compared to 2007.

The Bank continues to be active in home equity financ-
ing. Home Equity term loans and credit lines (HEL-
OC’s) remain popular with consumers wishing to
finance home improvement costs, education expenses,
vacations and consumer goods purchased at favorable
interest rates.

In order to improve customer retention and provide
better overall balance, management will continue to
evaluate and reposition the Company’s portfolio prod-
uct offerings during 2009.

The balance of the commercial loan portfolio as of
December 31, 2008 was $156,455, an increase of
$20,524 from the balance of $135,931 recorded at
December 31, 2007. Short term, asset based commercial
loans including lines of credit increased during the year.
This was a direct result of commercial customers uti-
lizing their commercial lines of credit more during 2008
and as a result of a single 90 day term commercial loan
that was closed in December for $7,755 that was fully
secured by a segregated deposit account with the Bank.
Commercial real estate loans also increased during the
same period by $7,545. The increase in these loans has
primarily resulted from an aggressive call program
designed to increase market share. The Company has
also benefited from new loan referrals from existing
customers as well as from a customer testimonial adver-
tising and marketing campaign which has generated
interest in the Company’s line of products and services.

Loan personnel will continue to aggressively pursue
both commercial and small business opportunities sup-
ported by product incentives and marketing efforts.
When necessary, management will continue to offer
competitive fixed rate commercial real estate products
to qualifying customers in an effort to establish new
business relationships, retain existing relationships, and
capture additional market share. The Bank’s lending
function continues to provide business services to a
wide array of medium and small businesses, including
but not limited to commercial and residential real estate
builders, health care facilities, grocery stores, manufac-
tures, trucking companies, physicians and medical
groups, service contractors, restaurants, hospitality
industry companies, retailers, wholesalers, as well as
educational institutions and other political subdivisions.

Commercial and small business loans are originated by
loan personnel assigned to the Community Banking
offices and various geographical regions. These loans
are all processed in accordance with established busi-
ness loan underwriting standards and practices.

The following table provides an overview of commer-
cial loans by various business sectors reflecting the
areas of largest concentration. It should be noted that
these are open balances and do not reflect existing
commitments that may be currently outstanding but
unfunded.

Commercial Loan Concentrations

2008 2007
% of % of

Sector Balances Portfolio Balances Portfolio
Hotels/Motels . . . . . $19,130 12.26%  $23,608 17.66%
Eating Places . . ... 13,825  8.86% 6,925 5.18%
Steel Related

Industries . .. ... 12,276  7.87% 5,268  3.94%
Non Residential

Bldg/Apt Bldg . .. 11,371 7.29 % 25,879  19.36%

The single largest customer relationship had an aggre-
gate balance at year end of $11,124 compared to $7,047
in 2007. This balance represented approximately 7.1%
of the total commercial portfolio compared to 5.2% in
2007. It is important to note that within this relationship,
there is one short term 90 day note for $7,500 that is
fully secured by a segregated deposit account with the
Bank.

In the consumer lending area, the Company provides
financing for a variety of consumer purchases; fixed rate
amortizing mortgage products that consumers utilize for
home improvements; the purchase of consumer goods
of all types; education, travel and other personal expen-
ditures. The consolidation of credit card balances and
other existing debt into term payouts continue to remain
a popular financing option among consumers.

Additional information regarding the loan portfolio can
be found in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements (NOTES 1, 3, 9, 12 and 14).

INVESTMENT SECURITIES

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 115 (SFAS 115), “Accounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities,” investment
securities are segregated into three separate portfolios:




CORTLAND BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(In thousands of dollars, except for per share amounts)

held to maturity, available for sale and trading. Each
portfolio type has its own method of accounting.

Held to maturity securities are recorded at historical
cost, adjusted for amortization of premiums and accre-
tion of discounts. Trading securities are marked-to-mar-
ket, with any gain or loss reflected in the determination
of income. Securities designated as available for sale are
similarly carried at their fair market value. However,
any unrealized gain or loss (net of tax) is recorded as an
adjustment to shareholders’ equity as a component of
Other Comprehensive Income.

One effect of SFAS 115 is to expose shareholders’
equity to fluctuations resulting from market volatility
related to the available for sale portfolio. The potential
adverse impact of this volatility is somewhat mitigated
as bank regulatory agencies measure capital adequacy

for regulatory purposes without regard to the effects of
SFAS 115.

Securities designated by the Company as held to matu-
rity tend to be higher yielding but less liquid either due
to maturity, size or other characteristics of the issue. The
Company must have both the intent and the ability to
hold such securities to maturity.

Securities the Company has designated as available for
sale may be sold prior to maturity in order to fund loan
demand, to adjust for interest rate sensitivity, to reallo-
cate bank resources, or to reposition the portfolio to
reflect changing economic conditions and shifts in the
relative values of market sectors. Available for sale
securities tend to be more liquid investments and gen-
erally exhibit less price volatility as interest rates
fluctuate.

The following table shows the book value of investment securities by type of obligation at the dates indicated:

December 31,

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

U.S. Treasury and other U.S. Government

agencies and corporations . . ........... $ 44903 $ 83,995 $ 86,682 $ 80,053 $ 69,670
U.S. Government mortgage-backed pass-

through certificates . . . ............... 96,730 83,654 73,921 82,992 91,226
States of the U.S. and political

subdivisions . . . ... ..o 30,124 32,762 40,807 44,714 45,689
Other securities .. ... ..., 19,997 38,211 31,693 26,893 19,256

$191,754  $238,622  $233,103  $234,652  $225,841

Impairment Analysis of Investment Securities

The Company conducts other-than-temporary impairment analysis on a quarterly basis. The initial indication of
other-than-temporary impairment for both debt and equity securities is a decline in the market value below the
amount recorded for an investment. A decline in value that is considered to be other-than-temporary is recorded
as a loss within non-interest income in the consolidated statement of income.

In determining whether an impairment is other than temporary, the Company considers a number of factors,
including, but not limited to, the length of time and extent to which the market value has been less than cost,
recent events specific to the issuer, including investment downgrades by rating agencies and economic conditions
of its industry, and the Company’s intent and ability to retain the security for a period of time sufficient to allow
for a recovery in market value or maturity. Among the factors that are considered in determining the Company’s
intent and ability is a review of its capital adequacy, interest rate risk position and liquidity.

The Company also considers the issuer’s financial condition, capital strength and near-term prospects. In
addition, for debt securities and perpetual preferred securities that are treated as debt securities for the purpose of
other-than-temporary analysis, the Company considers the cause of the price decline (general level of interest
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rates and industry- and issuer-specific factors), current ability to make future payments in a timely manner and
the issuer’s ability to service debt. The assessment of a security’s ability to recover any decline in market value,
the ability of the issuer to meet contractual obligations and the Company’s intent and ability to retain the security
require considerable judgment.

Certain of the corporate debt securities are accounted for under EITF 99-20, Recognition of Interest Income and
Impairment on Purchased Beneficial Interests that Continue to Be Held by a Transferor in Securitized Financial
Assets. For investments within the scope of EITF 99-20 at acquisition, the Company evaluates current available
information in estimating the future cash flows of these securities and determines whether there have been
favorable or adverse changes in estimated cash flows from the cash flows previously projected. The Company
considers the structure and term of the pool and the financial condition of the underlying issuers. Specifically, the
evaluation incorporates factors such as interest rates and appropriate risk premiums, the timing and amount of
interest and principal payments and the allocation of payments to the various note classes. Current estimates of
cash flows are based on the most recent trustee reports, announcements of deferrals or defaults, expected future
default rates and other relevant market information. At December 31, 2008, the Company concluded that no
adverse change in cash flows occurred during the fourth quarter.

The Company analyzed the cash flow characteristics of these securities. Based on this analysis and because the
Company has the intent and ability to hold these securities until recovery of fair value, which may be at maturity;
and, for investments within the scope of EITF 99-20, determined that there was no adverse change in the cash
flows as viewed by a market participant, the Company does not consider the investments in these assets to be
other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2008. However, there is a risk that this review could result in
recognition of other-than-temporary impairment charges in the future.

As of December 31, 2008, Management does not believe any unrealized loss represents an other-than-temporary-
impairment. The unrealized losses at December 31, 2008 were primarily interest rate related.

Fair Value

The Company owns 32 collateralized debt obligation securities totaling $34,988 (par value) that are backed by
trust preferred securities issued by banks, thrifts, and insurance companies (TRUP CDOs). The market for these
securities at December 31, 2008 is not active and markets for similar securities are also not active. Given
conditions in the debt markets today and the absence of observable transactions in the secondary and new issue
markets, the Company determined the few observable transactions and market quotations that are available are
not reliable for purposes of determining fair value at December 31, 2008. It was decided that an income valuation
approach technique (present value technique) that maximizes the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizes the use of unobservable inputs would be more representative of fair value than the market approach
valuation technique used at prior measurement dates.

The TRUP CDO valuations were prepared by an independent third party. Their approach to determining fair
value involved these steps:

1. The credit quality of the collateral is estimated using average probability of default values for each issuer
(adjusted for rating levels).

2. The default probabilities also considered the potential for correlation among issuers within the same industry
(e.g. banks with other banks).

3. The loss given default was assumed to be 95% (i.e. a 5% recovery).
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4. The cash flows were forecast for the underlying collateral and applied to each CDO tranche to determine the
resulting distribution among the securities.

5. The expected cash flows were discounted to calculate the present value of the security.

6. The calculations were modeled in several thousand scenarios using a Monte Carlo engine and the average
price was used for valuation purposes.

7. The effective discount rates on an overall basis generally range from 3.91% to 24.72% and are highly
dependent upon the credit quality of the collateral, the relative position of the tranche in the capital structure of
the CDO and the prepayment assumptions.

Based upon the results of the analysis, the Company currently believes that a weighted average price of
approximately $0.43 per $1.00 of par value is representative of the fair value of the 32 trust preferred securities.

A summary of securities held at December 31, 2008, classified according to the earlier of next repricing or the maturity
date and the weighted average yield for each range of maturities, is set forth below. Fixed rate mortgage-backed
securities are classified by their estimated contractual cash flow, adjusted for current prepayment assumptions. Actual
maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations
with or without call or prepayment penalties.

December 31, 2008

Book Weighted
Type and Maturity or Repricing Grouping Value Average Yield(1)
U.S. Treasury and other U.S. Government agencies and corporations:
Maturing or repricing within one year. . . .. ........................... $ 5,997 6.026 %
Maturing or repricing after one year but within five years . . .. ... ..... ... . 5,194 4.506
Maturing or repricing after five years but within ten years ................ 6,094 5.529
Maturing or repricing after ten years . .......... ... ... . ... . ... ..., 27,618 5.957
Total U.S. Treasury and other U.S. Government agencies and corporations . .. $44,903 5.740 %
U.S. Government mortgage-backed pass-through certificates, REMICS & CMO’s:
Maturing or repricing withinoneyear. ... ............................ $37,811 5.178%
Maturing or repricing after one year but within five years . . . ... ........... 48,284 5.195
Maturing or repricing after five years but within ten years . ............... 8,696 5.304
Maturing or repricing after ten years . .............. ... ... . ... . ... .. 1,939 4.533
Total U.S. Government mortgage-backed pass-through certificates, REMICS
& CMO’S . .o e $96,730 5.184%
States of the U.S. and political subdivisions:
Maturing or repricing withinone year. . .. ............................ $ 1,311 7.068 %
Maturing or repricing after one year but within five years . ... ... ..... ... . 618 6.954
Maturing or repricing after five years but within ten years . ............... 9,350 7.135
Maturing or repricing after ten years . ............ .. ... ... . ... . ... .. 18,845 7.354
Total States of the U.S. and political subdivisions . ..................... $30,124 7.265 %
Other securities:
Maturing or repricing within one year. . . . . ...... ... ... ... ... ... .. $12,427 4.762%
Maturing or repricing after one year but within five years . . . .. ............ 1,357 6.690
Maturing or repricing after five years but within ten years . ............... 166 7.514
Maturing or repricing after tenyears . .......... ... .. .. .. .. ... ... .... 6,047 6.671
Total other securities . . . .. .......... ... . ... .. . .. $19,997 5.493 %

(1) The weighted average yield has been computed by dividing the total interest income adjusted for amortization of premium
or accretion of discount over the life of the security by the amortized cost of the securities outstanding. The weighted
average yield of tax-exempt obligations of states of the U.S. and political subdivisions has been calculated on a fully
taxable equivalent basis. The amounts of adjustments to interest which are based on the statutory tax rate of 34% were
$32, $13, $205 and $416 for the four ranges of maturities.

As of December 31, 2008, there were $22,929 in call- given current and expected interest rate environments
able U.S. Government Agencies, and $11,169 in call- are likely to be called within the one year time horizon.
able obligations of states and political subdivisions that These securities are categorized according to their
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contractual maturities, with $200 classified as maturing
after one year but within five years, $11,227 classified
as maturing after five years but within ten years and
$22,671 classified as maturing after 10 years.

Additionally, as of December 31, 2008, there were
$8,264 in callable U.S. Government Agencies,
$15,912 in callable obligations of states and political
subdivisions that given current and expected interest
rate environments are likely to be called within the time
frame defined as after one year but within five years.
These securities are categorized according to their con-
tractual maturities, with $3,662 maturing after five years
but within ten years and $20,514 maturing after
10 years.

As of December 31, 2008, the carrying value of all
investment securities, both available for sale and held to
maturity, totaled $191,754, a decrease of $46,868 or
19.6% from the prior year. The Bank’s management
elected not to reinvest all of the proceeds from called
securities that were realized during the twelve months
ended December 31, 2008. Instead, a portion was used
to lower the level of public fund jumbo certificates of
deposit, pay off FHLB of Cincinnati advances, increase
Federal Reserve Bank balances and fund commercial
loans. The investment portfolio represented 50.5% of
each deposit dollar, down from 65.4% of year end
levels. The allocation between single maturity invest-
ment securities and mortgage-backed securities shifted
to a 49/51 split versus the 64/36 division of the previous
year, as mortgage-backed securities increased by
$13,076 or 15.6%.

Holdings of obligations of states and political subdivi-
sions showed a decrease of 2,638 or 8.1%, as numerous
bonds were called during the year.

Amortization of purchase premium resulted in the
decrease of holdings of U.S. Treasury securities by
approximately $5, or 3.6%. Investments in U.S. govern-
ment agencies and sponsored corporations decreased by
approximately $39,087, or 46.6%. The Company also
purchased $1,319 in corporate debt securities during
2008 primarily to take advantage of floating rate repric-
ing characteristics. The purchases were partially offset
by $213 in debt securities that were called during 2008
and $91 in interest payments that were capitalized and
added back to the par balance. Additionally, the Com-
pany recognized $1,251 of other-than-temporary losses
on its General Motors Corporation Corporate Securities
with a cost basis of $2,354. Finally, the unrealized loss
on the corporate securities relating to Collateralized
Debt Obligations increased by $18,637. The net result
was a decrease in the corporate portfolio of $18,382.

Holdings of other securities increased $168 as the Com-
pany purchased $31 in FHLB of Cincinnati stock for

membership purposes and also received $137 in stock
dividends through the year.

The mix of mortgage-backed securities remained
weighted in favor of fixed rate securities in 2008. The
portion of the mortgage-backed portfolio allocated to
fixed rate securities rose to 83% in 2008 versus 76% in
2007. Floating rate and adjustable rate mortgage-backed
securities provide some degree of protection against
rising interest rates, while fixed rate securities perform
better in periods of stable to slightly declining interest
rates. Included in the mortgage-backed securities port-
folio are investments in collateralized mortgage obli-
gations which totalled $11,855 and $13,792 at
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. No collat-
eralized mortgage obligations were sold in 2008.

At December 31, 2008, a net unrealized loss of $11,078,
net of tax, was included in shareholders’ equity as a
component of Other Comprehensive Income, as com-
pared to a net unrealized loss of $94, net of tax, as of
December 31, 2007. This $10,984 increase reflects the
decreased market value of collateralized debt obligation
resulting from the illiquidity in the credit markets and
the widening market spreads in the sector. Lower inter-
est rates generally translate into more favorable market
prices for debt securities; conversely rising interest rates
generally result in a depreciation in the market value of
debt securities.

The Company had $4,051 in investments considered to
be structured notes as of December 31, 2008, a decrease
of $7,171, or 63.9%. The Company had no investments
in inverse floating rate securities or other derivative
products.

Additional information regarding investments can be
found in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial State-
ments (NOTES 1 and 2).

DEPOSITS

The Company’s deposits are derived from the individ-
uals and businesses located in its primary market area.
Total deposits at year-end exhibited an increase of 4.2%
to $379,953 at December 31, 2008, as compared to
$364,788 at December 31, 2007.

The Company’s deposit base consists of demand depos-
its, savings, money market and time deposit accounts.
Average noninterest-bearing deposits decreased 2.0%
during 2008, while average interest-bearing deposits
decreased by 1.2%.

During 2008, noninterest-bearing deposits averaged
$56,496 or 15.6% of total average deposits as compared
to $57,668 or 15.7% of total deposits in 2007. Core
deposits averaged $299,398 for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2008, a decrease of $1,929 from the average
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level of 2007. During 2007, core deposits had averaged
$301,327 an increase of $1,578 from the preceding year.

Historically, the deposit base of the Company has been
characterized by a significant aggregate amount of core
deposits. Core deposits represented 82.7% of average
total deposits in 2008 compared to 82.2% in 2007 and
86.0% in 2006. Non core deposits are represented by
Jumbo CD’s, certificates of deposit in the amount of
$100 or more.

The Company’s portfolio of Jumbo CD’s are sourced
primarily from customers in the subsidiary bank’s
immediate market area, and does not include any bro-
kered deposits.

Over the past five years, the Company has decreased the
share of deposits represented by noninterest-bearing and
interest bearing checking accounts. These products now
comprise 22.4% of total deposits compared to 25.4% five
years ago. The following depicts how the deposit mix has
shifted during this five-year time frame.

AVERAGE DEPOSIT MIX
(In Percentages)
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Additional information regarding interest-bearing
deposits is presented in the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements (NOTE 6).

OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Cash and cash equivalents increased to $26,843 at
December 31, 2008 from $9,441 at December 31,
2007 and $14,275 in 2006. The increase in 2008 is
due to a $17,399 increase in funds held at the Federal
Reserve Bank which are now interest-bearing. The
Bank’s management has elected to employ a higher
level in this account to meet short-term liquidity needs
to support loan demands.

Premises and equipment increased to $7,571 at year end
2008 from $6,206 at December 31, 2007 and $4,780 in
2006. This is mainly due to the following: (1) renovation
at a new branch in Middlefield, Ohio which opened in

May 2008; (2) purchase of property and construction of
a new banking office in Brookfield, Ohio. This branch
opened June of 2008, and replaced an existing leased
banking location; and (3) purchase and renovation of
property for a new banking office in North Lima, Ohio.
This branch opened in November 2008, and also
replaced an existing leased banking branch office.

Other assets increased to $23,650 at December 31, 2008
from $16,937 at December 31, 2007 and $16,496 at
December 31, 2006. Other real estate increased to $809
at year end 2008 compared to $242 at December 31,
2007 and $282 at December 31, 2006. resulting from
increased foreclosure activity. Net deferred tax assets
measured $6,456 at December 31, 2008 compared to
$291 at December 31, 2007 and $666 at December 31,
2006, primarily reflecting an increase in deferred tax
benefits arising from unrealized losses on available-for-
sale investment securities, the increase in provision for
loan loss, and an other-than-temporary impairment loss
on corporate securities. Included in other assets is bank
owned life insurance with a cash surrender value of
$12,748 at December 31, 2008, $12,283 at Decem-
ber 31, 2007 and $11,814 at December 31, 2006.

Federal Home Loan Bank advances and other short term
borrowing and subordinated debt decreased $2,265
from the December 31, 2007 balance of $75,568 to
the December 31, 2008 balance of $73,303, but
increased from the December 31, 2006 balance which
stood at $62,015. The increase from 2006 was due to
$5,155 of subordinated debt issued in July 2007, the
proceeds of which are for general corporate purposes
including the repurchase of treasury shares. Also, Fed-
eral Home Loan Bank advances increased by $7,500
from 2006 as the Company was able to obtain advances
at competitive rates to assist in funding loan growth.

Other liabilities remained fairly consistent measuring
$4,081 at December 31, 2008, $3,514 at December 31,
2007 and $3,326 at December 31, 2006. The major
components are accrued interest on deposits and bor-
rowings which measured $967, $1,265 and $1,104 in
2008, 2007 and 2006 respectively. The other item is
accrued expenses which measured $2,489, $1,820 and
$1,711 in 2008, 2007 and 2006 respectively. The
increase in accrued expenses is due to $585 accrued
in 2008 for the expense of post retirement cost of
insurance for split-dollar life insurance coverage, in
accordance with the Emerging Issues Task Force Issue
06-04 “Accounting for Deferred Compensation and
Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-
Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements”.
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ASSET-LIABILITY MANAGEMENT

The Company’s executive management and Board of Directors routinely review the Company’s balance sheet
structure for stability, liquidity and capital adequacy. The Company has defined a set of key control parameters
which provide various measures of the Company’s exposure to changes in interest rates. The Company’s asset-
liability management goal is to produce a net interest margin that is relatively stable despite interest rate volatility
while maintaining an acceptable level of earnings. Net interest margin is the difference between total interest
earned on a fully taxable equivalent basis and total interest expensed. The net interest margin ratio expresses this
difference as a percentage of average earning assets. In the past five years, the net interest margin ratio has
averaged 3.64% ranging between 3.45% and 3.83%.

Included among the various measurement techniques used by the Company to identify and manage exposure to
changing interest rates is the use of computer based simulation models. Computerized simulation techniques
enable the Company to explore and measure net interest income volatility under alternative asset deployment
strategies, different interest rate environments, various product offerings and changing growth patterns.

GAP TABLE
December 31, 2008
Maturity or Repricing Interval
Non Rate
Sensitive
3 Months 3to 12 1to5 or >5
or Less Months Years Years Total
Interest-Earning Assets
Interest-Bearing Balance from Depository
Institution . . . . ... ... . $ 18,449 $ $ $ $ 18,449
Investments . ........................ 41,453 50,191 79,429 20,681 191,754
Loans & Leases. . .. ................... 52,651 62,939 95,158 35,269 246,017
Investment in Nonconsolidated Subsidiary . . . . . 155 155
Total Earning Assets . .. . ................. 112,708 113,130 174,587 55,950 456,375
Other ASsetS . .. .. ... 36,990 36,990
Total Assets . . .. ... $112,708 $113,130 $174,587 $ 92,940 $493,365
Interest-Bearing Liabilities
Interest-bearing Checking . . . .. ........... $ 25,033 $ $ $ $ 25,033
Money Market Accounts. . . .............. 40,106 40,106
Passbook Savings . ............ ... ... .. 79,908 79,908
Time Deposits =100,000 . .. ............. 9,972 33,191 20,583 1,880 65,626
Time Deposits <100,000 ... ............. 24,282 43,620 35,125 7,618 110,645
Repurchase Agreements . .. .............. 4,743 4,743
U.S. Treasury Demand . . ... ............. 905 905
Subordinated Debt . . .. ................. 5,155 5,155
Other Borrowings . . ................... 6,000 28,000 28,500 62,500
Total Interest-Bearing Liabilities . . ... ........ 190,104 82,811 83,708 37,998 394,621
Demand Deposits . .. ......... .. ... .. .... 58,635 58,635
Other Liabilities . . .. .................... 4,081 4,081
Shareholders” Equity . . .. ................. 36,028 36,028
Total Liabilities & Equity. . ... ............. $190,104 $ 82,811 $ 83,708 $136,742 $493,365
Rate Sensitivity Gap . ... ... ... ... $(77,396) $ 30,319 $ 90,879 $ 17,952
Cumulative Gap . . . ... ... (77,396) (47,077) 43,802 61,754
Cumulative Gap to Total Assets . ............ (15.7) % (9.5)% 8.9% 12.5%
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The preceding Gap Table presents an analysis of the
Company’s earliest repricing opportunity for each of
its interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabil-
ities. Assets are distributed according to the earlier of
interest rate repricing opportunity or expected cash
flows. Time deposits and liabilities with defined
maturities are distributed according to the earlier
of the repricing interval or contractual maturity.
Other core deposit accounts (Interest-bearing check-
ing, Money Market and Savings accounts) are shown
as being available for repricing in the earliest time
frame, although management can exert considerable
influence over the timing and manner of repricing
such core deposits. Therefore, these accounts may
reprice in later time intervals and reflect smaller
incremental changes than other interest-earning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities. Since manage-
ment may reprice these accounts at its discretion, the
impact of changing rates on net interest income is
likely to be considerably different than inferred by
this table.

During 2008, the effective maturities of earning assets
tended to shorten as rates in the credit markets fell
sharply. Federal Reserve policy makers decreased
short-term interest rates three times during the year
to the range of 0.00% to 0.25% from 4.25% at
December 31, 2007, in an attempt to ease strains in
the financial market, soften the effects of the housing
correction and to help avoid a recession. With rates
falling during the year, the volume of investment secu-
rities eligible to be called increased, while prepayments
on loans and mortgage-backed securities similarly
increased, causing the effective maturities of existing
earning assets to shorten. Management, in the first half
of the year, invested excess overnight funds (federal
funds sold balances), with an allocation towards
U.S. Government agencies purchased at a discount that
contain a lock-out period prior to the first call date and
mortgage-backed securities. In the second half of the
year, proceeds were allowed to build up in the Federal
Funds sold account.

While the preceding Gap Table provides a general
indication of the potential effect that changing inter-
est rates may have on net interest income, it does not
by itself present a complete picture of interest rate

sensitivity. Because the repricing of the various cat-
egories of assets and liabilities is subject to compet-
itive pressures, customer preferences and other
factors, such assets and liabilities may in fact reprice
in different time periods and in different increments
than assumed.

The computerized simulation techniques utilized by
management provide a more sophisticated measure
of the degree to which the Company’s interest sen-
sitive assets and liabilities may be impacted by
changes in the general level of interest rates. These
analyses show the Company’s net interest income
remaining relatively neutral within the economic and
interest rate scenarios anticipated by management.
As previously noted, the Company’s net interest
margin has remained in the range of 3.45% to
3.83% over the past five years, a period characterized
by significant shifts in the mix of earning assets and
the direction and level of interest rates. The targeted
federal funds rate during that period ranged from a
low of 0.00% to 5.25%, as Federal Reserve monetary
policy turned from guarding against deflation to
warding off inflationary threats and now back to
attempting to avoid a recession.

NET INTEREST MARGIN RATIO
(In Percentages)
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LIQUIDITY

The central role of the Company’s liquidity manage-
ment is to (1) ensure sufficient liquid funds to meet
the normal transaction requirements of its customers,
(2) take advantage of market opportunities requiring
flexibility and speed, and (3) provide a cushion
against unforeseen liquidity needs.
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Principal sources of liquidity for the Company
include assets considered relatively liquid, such as
interest-bearing deposits in other banks, federal funds
sold, cash and due from banks, as well as cash flows
from maturities and repayments of loans, investment
securities and mortgage-backed securities.

Anticipated principal repayments on mortgage-
backed securities along with investment securities
maturing, repricing, or expected to be called in one
year or less amounted to $91,644 at December 31,
2008, representing 47.8% of the total combined port-
folio, as compared to $149,748 or 62.8% of the
portfolio a year ago.

Along with its liquid assets, the Company has other
sources of liquidity available to it which help to
ensure that adequate funds are available as needed.
These other sources include, but are not limited to,
the ability to obtain deposits through the adjustment
of interest rates, the purchasing of federal funds, and
access to the Federal Reserve Discount Window. The
Company is also a member of the Federal Home Loan
Bank of Cincinnati, which provides yet another
source of liquidity.

Cash and cash equivalents increased from $9,441 in
2007 and $14,375 in 2006, to $26,843 in 2008. The
decrease from 2006 to 2007 is due to a reduction in
federal funds sold. In 2006 $4,275 was recorded in
federal funds sold, with none at December 31, 2007
or 2008. The increase in 2008 is due to a $17,399
increase in the balance at the Federal Reserve Bank.
These deposits became interest-bearing late in the
third quarter of 2008. The bank management has
elected to employ a higher level in this account to
achieve a higher level of short-term liquidity needed
to support increased loan demand, and compensate
for poorly functioning credit markets. Operating
activities provided cash of $5,297 in 2008, $5,009
in 2007 and $5,082 in 2006. Key differences stem
mainly from: 1) a decrease in net income of $1,997
between 2008 and 2007 and a $226 decrease between
2006 and 2007; 2) there were no loans held for sale at
December 31, 2007 and 2005 and $236 at 2008;
3) gains on the sale of investments, was $(1,112) at
December 31, 2008, $77 at December 31, 2007 and

$18 in 2008; 4) amortization on securities was $77 in
2008 compared to $199 in 2007 and $506 in 2006;
5) loss on the sale of other real estate totaled $47 in
2006, $1 in 2007 and a gain of $43 in 2008; 6) the
purchase of an additional $128 of insurance contracts
on the lives of participants in the supplemental post
retirement benefit plan in 2006 and none in 2008 or
2007; 7) the increase in liabilities is due to $585
accrual for post retirement cost of insurance for split-
dollar life insurance as coverage. Refer to the Con-
solidated Statements of Cash Flows for a summary of
the sources and uses of cash for 2008, 2007 and 2006.
The following table details the cash flows from oper-
ating activities.

December 31,
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
$2,353 $4,350 $4,576 $ 4,334 $ 4,843

Net income
Adjustments to reconcile
net income to net
cash flows from
operating activities:
Depreciation,
amortization and
accretion 758 775 991 1,469 2,176
Provision for loan
loss 1,785 40 225 545 415
Investment securities
losses (gains) 1,112 77)  (18)
Other real estate
(gains) losses 43) 1 47 3 171
Impact of loans held
for sale (236) 109 (109) 103
Changes in:
Securities to settle
and securities
sold to settle
Purchase of
insurance

(308) (1,052)

(1,270) 1,270

contracts (128) (500)
Other assets and
liabilities (432) (189) (502) (498) (44)

Net cash flows from

operating activities ~ $5,297 $5,009 $5,082 $ 4,275 $ 7,382

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND
COMMITMENTS

The Corporation has various obligations, including
contractual obligations and commitments that may
require future cash payments.

Contractual Obligations: The following table pre-
sents, as of December 31, 2008, significant fixed
and determinable contractual obligations to third
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parties by payment date. Further discussion of the
nature of each obligation is included in the referenced
note to the consolidated financial statements.

See
Note
Non-interest bearing deposits . ...........
Interest bearing deposits(a) . .. ........... 6
Average Rate(b) . ...................
Certificates of deposit(a). ... ............ 6

Average Rate(b) . ................ ...

Federal funds purchased and security
repurchase agreements(a) ............. 7
Average Rate(b) .. ..................

U.S. Treasury interest-bearing demand

note(a) . ..o 7
Average Rate(b) . ...................
Federal Home Loan Bank advances(a) .. ... 7
Average Rate(b) . ...................
Subordinated debt. . . .................. 8
Average Rate(b) . ...................
Operating leases. . . ................... 10

Contractual Obligations
as of December 31, 2008

Payments Due in

One One Three

Year to to Over
or Three Five Five
Less Years Years Years Total
$ 58,635 $ $ $ $ 58,635
145,047 145,047
1.35% 1.35%
101,639 40,045 24,130 10,457 176,271
3.15% 3.18% 4.66% 4.43% 3.43%
4,743 4,743
0.31% 0.31%
905 905
0.0% 0.0%
6,000 24,000 4,000 28,500 62,500
5.30% 5.24% 3.49% 3.96% 4.55%
5,155 5,155
3.45% 3.45%
134 234 112 258 738

(a) Excludes present and future accrued interest.

(b) Variable rate obligations reflect interest rates in effect at December 31, 2008.

The Corporation’s operating lease obligations repre-
sent short and long-term lease and rental payments
for the subsidiary bank’s branch facilities.

The Corporation also has obligations under its sup-
plemental retirement plans as described in Note 10 to
the consolidated financial statements. The postretire-
ment benefit payments represent actuarially deter-
mined future benefit payments to eligible plan
participants. The Corporation does not have any
commitments or obligations to the defined contribu-
tion retirement plan (401(k) plan) at December 31,
2008 due to the funded status of the plan. (See further
discussion in Note 10.)

Commitments: The following table details the
amounts and expected maturities of significant com-
mitments as of December 31, 2008. (Further discus-
sion of these commitments is included in Note 9 to
the consolidated financial statements.)

Expected Maturities of Commitments
as of December 31, 2008

One One  Three
Year to to Over
or Three Five Five
Less Years Years  Years Total

Commitments to extend

credit:

Commercial $ 4511  $41 $1 $18,687 $23,240

Residential real estate 88 554 642

Revolving home equity 12,512 12,512

Overdraft protection 11,536 11,536

Other 606 606
Standby letters of credit 850 850

Commitments to extend credit, including loan com-
mitments, standby letters of credit, and commercial
letters of credit do not necessarily represent future
cash requirements, in that these commitments often
expire without being drawn upon.
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CAPITAL RESOURCES

Regulatory standards for measuring capital adequacy
require banks and bank holding companies to main-
tain capital based on “risk-adjusted” assets so that
categories of assets of potentially higher credit risk
require more capital backing than assets with lower
risk. In addition, banks and bank holding companies
are required to maintain capital to support, on a risk-
adjusted basis, certain off-balance sheet activities
such as standby letters of credit and interest rate
swaps.

The risk-based standards classify capital into two
tiers. Tier 1 capital consists of common shareholders’
equity, noncumulative and cumulative perpetual pre-
ferred stock, qualifying trust preferred securities and
minority interests less intangibles and the unrealized
market value adjustment of investment securities
available for sale. Tier 2 capital consists of a limited
amount of the allowance for loan and lease losses,
perpetual preferred stock (not included in Tier 1),
hybrid capital instruments, term subordinated debt,
and intermediate-term preferred stock.

The following graph, which is not “risk-adjusted,”
depicts Tier 1 capital as a percentage of total average
assets over the past several years. This measure of
capital adequacy is known as the “leverage ratio.”
The ratio which was 10.99% in 2007 declined slightly
to 10.58% in 2008, but remains well above regulatory
minimums.

LEVERAGE RATIO
(In Percentages)

10.99 11.04 11.05

10.58 10.88

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improve-
ment Act of 1991 (FDICIA) required banking regu-
latory agencies to revise risk-based capital standards
to ensure that they take adequate account of interest
rate risk. Accordingly, regulators subjectively con-
sider an institution’s exposure to declines in the
economic value of its capital, due to changes in
interest rates, in evaluating capital adequacy.

The following table illustrates the Company’s risk-
weighted capital ratios at December 31, 2008 and
2007. Banks are required to maintain a minimum
ratio of 8% of qualifying total capital to risk-adjusted
total assets. The Tier 1 capital ratio must be at least
4%. Capital qualifying as Tier 2 capital is limited to
100% of Tier 1 capital. As the table indicates, the
Company maintains both Tier 1 and total risk-based
capital well in excess of the required regulatory
minimum ratios.

Risk-Based Capital
December 31,

December 31,

2008 2007

Tier 1 Capital $ 52,045 $ 53,820
Tier 2 Capital 2,476 1,635
QUALIFYING

CAPITAL $ 54,521 $ 55,455
Risk-Adjusted

Total

Assets(*) $317,861 $289,081
Tier 1 Risk-

Based

Capital Ratio 16.37 % 18.62%
Total Risk-

Based

Capital Ratio 17.15% 19.18%
Total Leverage

Capital Ratio 10.58% 10.99%

(*) Includes off-balance sheet exposures

In management’s opinion, as supported by the data in
the following table, the Company met all capital
adequacy requirements to which it was subject as
of December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007. As of
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those dates, the Company was “well capitalized”-
under regulatory prompt corrective action provisions.

Actual Regul y Reg y Capital Ratio
Capital Ratios as of: requirements to be:
Dec. 31, Dec. 31, Well Adequately

2008 2007 Capitalized Capitalized

Total risk-based
capital to risk-

weighted assets 1715%  19.18% 10.00% 8.00%

Tier I capital to risk-

weighted assets 16.37%  18.62% 6.00% 4.00%

Tier I capital to
average assets

10.58%  10.99% 5.00% 4.00%

SFAS 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in
Debt and Equity Securities,” requires that
investments designated as available for sale be
marked-to-market with corresponding entries to the
deferred tax account and shareholders’ equity. Reg-
ulatory agencies, however, exclude these adjustments
in computing risk-based capital, as their inclusion
would tend to increase the volatility of this important
measure of capital adequacy. Additional information
regarding regulatory matters can be found in the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(NOTE 13.)

REGULATORY MATTERS

On March 13, 2000, the Board of Governors of the
Federal Reserve System approved the Company’s
application to become a financial holding company.
As a financial holding company, the Company may
engage in activities that are financial in nature or
incidental to a financial activity, as authorized by the
Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 (The Financial
Services Reform Act). Under the Financial Services
Reform Act, the Company may continue to claim the
benefits of financial holding company status as long
as each depository institution that it controls remains
well capitalized and well managed. The Company is
required to provide notice to the Board of Governors
of the Federal Reserve System when it becomes
aware that any depository institution controlled by
the Company ceases to be well capitalized or well
managed. Furthermore, current regulation specifies
that prior to initiating or engaging in any new activ-
ities that are authorized for financial holding

companies, the Company’s insured depository insti-
tutions must be rated “satisfactory” or better under
the Community Reinvestment Act (CRA). As of
December 31, 2008, the Company’s bank subsidiary
was rated “satisfactory” for CRA purposes, and
remained well capitalized and well managed, in
management’s opinion.

MARKET RISK

Management considers interest rate risk to be the
Company’s principal source of market risk. Interest
rate risk is measured as the impact of interest rate
changes on the Company’s net interest income. Com-
ponents of interest rate risk comprise repricing risk,
basis risk and yield curve risk. Repricing risk arises
due to timing differences in the repricing of assets
and liabilities as interest rate changes occur. Basis
risk occurs when repricing assets and liabilities ref-
erence different key rates. Yield curve risk arises
when a shift occurs in the relationship among key
rates across the maturity spectrum.

The effective management of interest rate risk seeks
to limit the adverse impact of interest rate changes on
the Company’s net interest margin, providing the
Company with the best opportunity for maintaining
consistent earnings growth. Toward this end, man-
agement uses computer simulation to model the
Company’s financial performance under varying
interest rate scenarios. These scenarios may reflect
changes in the level of interest rates, changes in the
shape of the yield curve, and changes in interest rate
relationships.

The simulation model allows management to test and
evaluate alternative responses to a changing interest
rate environment. Typically when confronted with a
heightened risk of rising interest rates, the Company
will evaluate strategies that shorten investment and
loan repricing intervals and maturities, emphasize the
acquisition of floating rate over fixed rate assets, and
lengthen the maturities of liability funding sources.
When the risk of falling rates is perceived, manage-
ment will consider strategies that shorten the matu-
rities of funding sources, lengthen the repricing
intervals and maturities of investments and loans,
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and emphasize the acquisition of fixed rate assets
over floating rate assets.

Run off rate assumptions are obtained from a service
that provides forecasted prepayment speeds based on
the median forecast of eleven dealer firms for various
mortgage types. Repricing characteristics are based
upon actual information obtained from the Bank’s
information system data and other related programs.
Actual results may differ from simulated results not
only due to the timing, magnitude and frequency of
interest rate changes, but also due to changes in
general economic conditions, changes in customer
preferences and behavior, and changes in strategies
by both existing and potential competitors.

The following table shows the Company’s current
estimate of interest rate sensitivity based on the
composition of its balance sheet at December 31,
2008. For purposes of this analysis, short term inter-
est rates as measured by the federal funds rate and the
prime lending rate are assumed to increase (decrease)
gradually over the next twelve months reaching a
level 300 basis points higher (lower) than the rates in
effect at December 31, 2008. Under both the rising
rate scenario and the falling rate scenario, the yield
curve is assumed to exhibit a parallel shift.

During 2008, the Federal Reserve decreased its target
rate for overnight federal funds by 425 basis points.
At year end December 31, 2008, the difference
between the yield on the ten-year Treasury and the
three-month Treasury had increased to a positive 214
from the positive 68 basis points that existed at
December 31, 2007, indicating that the yield curve
had become more steeply upward sloping. At Decem-
ber 31, 2008, rates peaked at the 20-year point on the
Treasury yield curve. The yield curve remains pos-
itively sloping as interest rates continue to increase
with a lengthening of maturities, with rates peaking at
the long-end of the Treasury yield curve.

The base case against which interest rate sensitivity is
measured assumes no change in short term rates. The

base case also assumes no growth in assets and
liabilities and no change in asset or liability mix.
Under these simulated conditions, the base case
projects net interest income of $15,464 for the year
ending December 31, 2008.

Simulated Net Interest Income Sensitivity
For the Twelve Months Ending December 31, 2009

Net Interest

Change in Interest Rates Income $ Change % Change

Graduated increase of +300
basis points
Short term rates unchanged

$15380  $ (84) (0.5%)

(base case) 15,464
Graduated decrease of —300
basis points 15,333 (131) (0.8%)

The level of interest rate risk indicated is within limits
that management considers acceptable. However,
given that interest rate movements can be sudden
and unanticipated, and are increasingly influenced by
global events and circumstances beyond the purview
of the Federal Reserve, no assurances can be made
that interest rate movements will not impact key
assumptions and parameters in a manner not pres-
ently embodied by the model.

It is management’s opinion that hedging instruments
currently available are not a cost effective means of
controlling interest rate risk for the Company.
Accordingly, the Company does not currently use
financial derivatives, such as interest rate options,
swaps, caps, floors or other similar instruments.

IMPACT OF INFLATION

Consolidated financial information included herein
has been prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, which require the
Company to measure financial position and operating
results in terms of historical dollars. Changes in the
relative value of money due to inflation are generally
not considered. Neither the price, timing nor the
magnitude of changes directly coincide with changes
in interest rates.




INFORMATION AS TO STOCK PRICES AND DIVIDENDS OF CORTLAND BANCORP

OTHER INFORMATION

The Company files quarterly reports, (Forms 10-Q),
an annual report (Form 10-K), current reports on
Form 8-K and proxy statements, as well as any
amendments to those reports with the Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC) pursuant to sec-
tion 13(a) or (15)d of the Exchange Act. In 2009, the
quarterly reports will be filed within 40 days of the
end of each quarter, while the annual report is filed
within 75 days of the end of the year. Any individual
requesting copies of such reports may obtain these
free of charge, as soon as reasonably practicable after
such material is electronically filed with or furnished
to the SEC by visiting our web site at www.cortland-
banks.com or by writing to:

Deborah L. Eazor
Cortland Bancorp
194 West Main Street
Cortland, Ohio 44410

The SEC also maintains an Internet site that contains
reports, proxy and information statements, and other
information regarding issuers that file electronically
with the SEC at www.sec.gov.

The Company’s stock trades on the NASDAQ OTC
market under the symbol CLDB. The following bro-
kerage firms are known to be relatively active in
trading the Company’s stock:

Community Banc Investments, Inc.
26 East Main Street

New Concord, Ohio 43762
Telephone: 1-800-224-1013

Ferris Baker Watts, Incorporated
655 Metro Place South

Metro Center V, Suite 330
Dublin Ohio 43017

Telephone: 1-866-313-4803

Hill Thompson Magid and Co., Inc.
15 Exchange Place Suite 800
Jersey City, New Jersey 07302
Telephone: 1-201-434-6900

Smith Barney Citigroup, Inc.
5048 Belmont Ave.
Youngstown, Ohio 44505
Telephone: 1-800-535-0017

UBS Financial Services
3701 Boardman Canfield Rd
P.O. Box 100

Canfield, Ohio 44406
Telephone: 330-533-7191

The following table shows the prices at which
the common stock of the Company has actually been
purchased and sold in market transactions during the
periods indicated. The range of market price is com-
piled from data provided by brokers based on limited
trading. Also shown in the table are the dividends per
share on the outstanding common stock. All figures
shown have been adjusted to give retroactive effect to
the 1% stock dividend paid as of January 1, 2009 and
January 1, 2008 and the 2% stock dividend paid as of
January 1, 2007 and the 1% stock dividend declared
March 9, 2009. The Company currently has approx-
imately 1,641 shareholders of record.

HIGH OR LOW TRADING PRICE PER QUARTER

Price Per Share Cash
Dividends
High Low Per Share
2008
Fourth Quarter $12.73 $ 8.56 $0.22
Third Quarter 13.97 11.77 0.21
Second Quarter 15.93 12.11 0.22
First Quarter 13.24 10.78 0.21
2007
Fourth Quarter $16.01 $10.98 $0.22
Third Quarter 17.42 14.66 0.21
Second Quarter 18.69 17.04 0.21
First Quarter 18.44 16.50 0.21
2006
Fourth Quarter $17.72 $15.28 $0.21
Third Quarter 17.36 15.28 0.21
Second Quarter 17.84 16.84 0.21
First Quarter 18.79 17.14 0.21

For the convenience of shareholders, the Company
has established a plan whereby shareholders may
have their dividends automatically reinvested in the
common stock of Cortland Bancorp. Participation in
the plan is completely voluntary and shareholders
may withdraw at any time.

For current stock prices you may access our home
page at www.cortland-banks.com.

For more information on the dividend reinvestment
plan, you may contact Deborah L. Eazor at the fol-
lowing telephone number: (330) 637-8040 Ext. 118
or E-mail address DLEAZOR @cortland-banks.com.
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